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Chalr S Statement : -

‘.

. It gives me great pleasure to introduce the AWE plc Annual Report & Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023.

AWE plays a fundamental role in the Continuous at Sea Deterrent (CASD) and defence of the United Kingdom (UK),
guarding against the most severe threats to our nation and way of life. AWE maintains and supports the in-service -
warhead system; designs, produces and assembles components into certified warheads; and supports warhead and
Defence Nuclear Material dellverres while contmumg to invest in the underlying mfrastructure to support all its
activities.

AWE i is also undertakmg a once-in-a-generation programme to desrgn and deliver a Replacement Warhead, as well
as carrying out Nuclear Threat Reduction (NTR) activities. NTR provides a unique contribution to the national security
of the UK through expertlse in the defence against evolvmg radiological and nuclear threats -

AWE became a Non-Departmental Public Body (NDPB), wholly owned by the Ministry of Defence (MOD) in2021.
This is the second.annual report that has been published since this change. Over the past year, both AWE and the
MOD have continued to work together effectively, building on the initial transition period to start realising the full
potentlal of closer integration with government. . :

This time last year, we had' defined and laid out a business transformation programme. that will make an important
contribution to the capabilities necessary to deliver our current and future programmes. Significant progress on
delrvermg this transformation has been achieved during this reportmg period. We are making a fundamental shift in
how AWE. operates, maturing and performing at pace. Crucrally, we have also maintained and delivered our
" commitment to safety, meetmg our own standards.as well as those expected of us by govemment regulators, and the
public. : . .

We have taken a positive and decisive step forward with the renewal of AWE over the past year ‘and we must contmue
to deliver our plan for change, as an output-focussed business that embraces srmp11c1ty

Subsequent to the reporting period, an acmdent on-one of the construction programmes att AWE’ s Aldermaston site
resulted in the death.of one of the contractor’s employees. Although-AWE was not directly involved it is- supporting
the assocrated investigations. The incident did not affect any of AWE’s nuclear mstallatrons or materlals Our
condolences are with the deceased’s family, friends and colleagues at thrs tragrc time.

[ would like to thank Alison Atkinson, AWE’s former Chief Executive, for her commrtment contribution, and
leadership over 18 years. Alison achieved many great thmgs during her AWE career, across both caprtal projects
* and technical programmes.

I'look forward to working alongside lain Stevenson AWE’s.Interim Chief Executrve the’ Executive Comrmttee our -
people, and partners as we contrnue to dr1ve the busmess forward : oo

Slr John Manzom, Chair
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Chief Executlve s Statement

This has been a pivotal year in AWE’s proud hrstory Comparmg where we are now, wrth thrs time last year, we have
made real progress as a business.

This is because we'have a clear strateglc programme, and ‘we have mamtamed a relentless focus on delivering it. l
have seen our business embracé bold new ways of working, driven by simplicity and efficiency. None of this would
have been possible without the hard work of our dedlcated people and I would hke to thank them for their commitment
‘and contribution. :

Over this reportmg penod we have taken forward the 14 key Strategrc Initiatives in our Busmess Plan at pace, as -
- part of our transformation programme. Our focus on drwmg these initiatives is paymg dmdends

We continue to make srgmﬁcant strides in building'an effectwe collaborative, and trustmg relatlonshrp with the MOD,

and we are now setting and driving the agenda for our work together. In the past 12 months, we have also established .

a stand-alone, empowered Engineering function and stood up a Liabilities function, which will re-start high hazard
decommissioning in 2023 and deliver our first draft lifetime plan. Our strategy to; modernise productlon is progressmg
- and begmnmg to realise benefits. . .

. Great progress has been made with the Mark 4/4A warhead and we have completed the Systems Requirements
Review for the Replacement Warhead Programme. We have also taken positive steps in transitioning from enhanced
* to'normal levels of oversight from the Office for Nuclear Regulation, both at our Burghﬁeld and Aldennaston sites —
the transition has been completed at the Burghfield site.

" We have incredible, world-leading scientific capablllty at AWE, and we have been pubhcly credited for the role that -
we played in the scientific breakthrough of fusion ignition announced by the National Ignition Facility at the Lawrence
Livermore National Laboratory-in- California. Physicists have been pursuing this scientific breakthrough for decades
as it will ‘enhance our ability to assure weapon performance without the need for an underground test, and our '
involvement in this tantastic achievement is a reminder of the brilliant work that we do :

- As we prepare for si gmﬁcant milestones ahead, I-know that our people will'continue to brmg their focus, dedlcatlon
and expertise to the tasks and challenges. .

I would also like to thank my predecessor, Alison Atkmson for her extraordinary contribution to the busmess over 18 :

“years. | am honoured and humbled to take on the responsibility of Interim Chief Executive, and it will not be easy to
follow in  Alison’s footsteps. Alison leaves a lastmg legacy and, along with all’ of us at AWE has la1d the foundatrons
for our transformation for the future.

' With the support of the Chair and the board, we are in a strong posrtlon to succeed, with a wealth of talent and
experience among our team. Our unique capability and sheer determination will enable us to build a trusted, safe, and
sustainable business fo effectively play our part in the defence of our country.

Iain Stevenson, Chief Executive Officer
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AWE and our Mission
AWE Mission .
AWE’s mission is to support the defence-and security of the UK

Smce 1945, the people of the UK have elected govemments which have maintained a pohcy to have a nuclear
deterrent. The modern form of this is CASD, which deters the most severe threats to the UK and our way of hfe

AWE des1gns manufactures maintains.and develops the UK’s nuclear warheads for CASD as weIl as provrdmg
.unique expertise to support national nuclear security and threat reduction. To do this, we must. sustain the scientific
.expertise and industrial know-how to manage, integrate, and deliver a set of complex | programmes and prO)ects safely -
and securely.

Thrs leads to three programmes which AWE undertakes to support the UK $ defence and securlty

1. The work we carry out for, and in collaboratlon with, the MOD includes manufacturmg and maintaining .

warheads that enable the UK to deter the most extreme threats to our way of life. This is our Trldent Mk 4A
' mission.

2; Undertakmg research and development to keep the current product in service and to be able to design and
manufacture a replacement warhead. This is our Replacement Warhead and Warhead Underpmnmg ’
Technologies mission. - : ) e

3. Using nuclear know-how and technical expertise to support the UK s counter terrorism and nuclear thréat -
reductlon activities. This is our Nuclear Threat Reduction rn_lssmn. :

To deliver these three programrnes we sustain our capability for the long term — the people, the facilities, the know-
" how — ensuring that the UK can provrde warheads and nuclear threat reductlon servrces not only in the present but
far into the future.

AWE Vision
~ Together, delivering solutions for a safe and secure future.

“The ultimate guarantee of our national security is nuclear deterrence which relies on us having a credible nuclear
" capability to detér the most extreme threats to the UK and our Allies. As such, there can be no risk to our ability to
deploy this without interference. The Treaty on the:Non-Proliferation of Nuclear Weapons prohibits nuclear weapons -
_ states from transferring nuclear weapons to other states, including other nuclear weapons states. Therefore, while we
can acquire the ballistic missiles from the US, the warheads themselves must be produced in the UK.” - MOD Defence
& Secunty Industrial Strategy 2021 -

AWE Business Model & Orgamsatlonal Structure .
'The MOD owns the AWE sites. AWE is responsible under a contract w1th the MOD for operating the sites safely and
' "securely as well as delivering a safe, effective, and efficient nuclear warhead programme. AWE employs the

workforce; holds the nuclear site licences, env1ronmenta1 perrmts and other regu]atory permissions.

The NDPB structure was selected by the Govemment to strengthen alignment, 51mphfy the relatronshlp with AWE, .
and improve value for money.
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 Our strategic imperative is to deliver on time, securely, safely, and sustainably. Trust and transparency are critical to
achieving these because success relies on the effective and efficient collaboration and alignment across the Defence
Nuclear Enterprise (DNE), from reqlrirement setting to funding'decision making through to delivering output. AWE’s
reputation as an employer of choice, particularly in science, engineering and programme management, w1ll ensure
that we continue to attract the most highly skilled employees. : : ’

‘Our Business Plan outlines the transformatlve actions we must undertake to ensure that we continue to maintain the
trust of our customers, stakeholders and the wider UK economy. As we make tangible progress on these actions, the
nature, needs and priorities of our contmumg and development actlvmes will contmue to evolve

We will complete 5 strategic actions by 2025

1.

Modernise delrvery ~ Reduce end-to-end productlon span times, increase consistency of product
configuration and traceability, ratlonalrse design processes and 1mprove assessment capability.

Partner with the wider UK economy — Optimise the use of supply cham in productlon improve -

“infrastructure delivery and decommrssmnmg, invest to regenerate natronal capacrty, and partner w1th the UK

and US National Labs Alliance.

Attract, grow, and retain the best people - Continue to improve workforce agility, provide an attractive

" employee -value proposition, increase outreach to the national- talent pool and including through our

apprentice/graduate schemes, all based on being known for UK nuclear security and a great place to work.

Recapitalise and consolidate our estate — Deliver the estates master plarl that encompasses Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG) prmcrples and deliverables which align with strategrc partnershrps achlevmg

) early contract engagement and solutlons to accelerate pro_|ects

Support DNE alignment — Clarify ways of working, improve-alignment of teams, governance, and decision-
making, as well.as product approvals and technical assurance, and develop and implement an approach to
real-time international collaboration. ' '
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Financial Review.
Company financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2023

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 show the following*:
e revenue of £1,476.7 million (15 months ended 31 March 2022: £1,425.7 million) , .'
e  gross lossof £214 mil_lion (15 months ended 31 March 2022: gross loss of £3A1.2 mi}lion)
«  net profit for the year of £3.9 million (15 ménths ended 31 March 2022: net-loss of £439.2 million)
e npet liabilities of £234.1 million (15 months ended 31 March 2022: net liabilities of £57.0 million)

« capital contribution of £nil (15 months ended 31 March 2022: £63.0 million received in relation to an equity
contribution from the owner of the Company equal to the amounts pard by the Company to the pension’
scheme in respect of the deficit funding of the scheme) :

* Compansons are for the 15 months ended 31 March 2022 due to the transmon to government ownershrp when AWE
plc changed its accountmg reference date from December to March to align to the MOD. -

Revenues mainly arise from work undertaken in relatron to AWE’s prmcrpal activity. This accounts for 98% of -
revenue (15 months ended 31 March 2022: 99%). The increase in revenue on a pro rata basis_reflects the increased -
level of activity in the year compared to the prior period. This reflects mainly the increasing mvestment in the
infrastructure in connection wrth current and future facilities for the nuclear warhead programme.

Revenues with regards to ‘the prmcrpal activity, being the performance of the Management & Operatlons (M&O)
contract in relation to operating the AWE sites owned by the MOD and delivering the nuclear warhead programme,
mainly reflect the re-imbursement of costs with fee for expenditure in relation to meeting the trident and replacement
" warhead commitments, and-the delivery of the critical infrastructure projects required to meet these commitments.
The costs include those associated with maintaining and operating the site and the costs of the-workforce - involved in
- delivering these commitments at Aldermaston, Burghfield and Blacknest, together with the costs of the infrastructure
projects. The infrastructure is owned by the MOD, not AWE plc, and accordingly the investment in infrastructure is
not caprtahsed but dealt with as a programme cost. The performance of the M&O contract is addressed in summary
" in the Performance and KPIs section. . :

. The gross loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 arises as a result of the fee earned on the M&O and other contracts
of £1.3 million (15 months ended 31 March 2022: £2.3 million) offset by Research and Development Expenditure
Credit (RDEC) income received by AWE (the income received by AWE is recognised in Other operating income)
returned to the MOD under contract of £18.4 million (15 months ended 31 March 2022: £21.5 million) and the net -
current service and related interest costs arising in relation to the defined benefit pension scheme included in cost of
sales of £4.0 million (15 months ended 31 March 2022: £12.0 million). ' :

The net profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 arises principally as a result of the gross loss, as explained above;
being offset by Research and Development Expenditure Credit (RDEC) income received by AWE of £18.4 million
included in Other operating income, together with administrative expenses, finance expense and a tax credit. The net
loss in the prior period includes the one-off write off of £423 mrlhon in respect of the pension-fund asset previously
recogmsed up to 30 June 2021 . .

Net liabilities principally arise as a result of the net liability in respect of the defined bénefit pension scheme. The net
liability of the defined pension scheme has increased to £238 million (31 March 2022: £53 million). Further details
are provrded in note 15 in the financial statements.

A detarled account of AWE S ﬁnances is provrded in the financial statements (pages 66 to 71). The land and propertres
-utilised by AWE for the performance of their activities are owned by the MOD and are therefore not included in
AWE’s financial statements.

Going concern

The ﬁnancral statements are prepared on the basis that the Company continues as a going concern. Further detarls
regarding this assessment are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 35.
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‘ Performance 'and KPIs -

- This section sets out theperfor'r.nan'ce and KPIs of the Company ‘for the vyear ended 31 March 2023.
Performance and KPIs -
Overview. of KPIs

The KPIs set out bélow, which 1ncorporate performance against milestones, are those that the AWE board Judge the
* most effective in assessing progress against objectives or strategy, monitoring prmcrpal nsks or are otherw1se utilised
to measure the development performance, or posmon of the entlty .

) The KPIs and milestones therein, are broadly split between delrvery outputs as.a measure of del1very performance
and those activities and benefits that are ‘making the business better’. .

’ The KPIs are set out in four sections, addressmg our key pnnc1ples of performance as follows
. . is AWE safe and secure? ‘

. is AWE performing, i.e., 1s the plan being a’chieved? '

e« .isAWE in"conitrol, ie., is the plan stable?

e is AWE mobilised with thé right resources?
Performance -

[n ovetview, the overall health of the business has beenassessed as' improving, but it is fecognised that this is not yet -
- at the pace the board desires. The KPI’s are on an improving trajectory, and that is translating into increased confidence

in business delivery performance, whrch must be seen in the context that for AWE this is the first year of a mult1 -year
plan . .

‘This overall assessment is reflected in the mlxed performance against targets as set out in the table below. The.
commentary below provrdes some addmonal context to that set out in the table.

e is AWE safe and secure?

o In this section all targets were met throu0h the reportmg year. recogmsmo the continued focus on -
safe and secure operations.

e s AWE performmg, i.e., is the plan being achleved?

o. ' The infrastructure mrlestones across a range of the key infrastructure prOJects were all achieved.
However, targets in other areas were not achieved where challenges remain in other areas of the -
business as we set targets to drive improved performance. Focus continues on making further
1mprovements to production facilities and their performance against schedule. The current outlook

- s an improving posrtron ’

' is AWE in control, i.e., is the plan stable?

o Fmancral targets were - achieved. Timeéliness of investment approvals fell short of the target set,
which was for no late submissions and approvals against the plans. The majority of, planned dates
were met, however given a few fell short the overall target was not achieved. The target set of the
proportion of spend under category management was set when the initiative to.achieve i increasing -
the amount of expenditure under category management was immature. The target is being revisited
in light of further progress in th1s area, to ensure an appropnate achlevable level of ambition is set
asa target . : :

10
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" Performance and KPIs (ébntinu'ed)

. 1s AWE mobilised w1th the right resources?

o Half of the six targets were delivered in this area. Significant focus contmues on ensuring AWE is
able to secure the right number of the right resource. Initiatives are in place to address this challenge
to deliver to the targets in future periods. Through the reporting period availability of resource has
fallen short of that requested by the business and that planned to be delivered to the business. The
first shortfall was within target, which anticipated some level of shortfall, but the latter was outside
of target. The target regarding building and mamtammg diverse teams and an inclusive culture was
achieved. -

The KPIs, with the performance assessment and explanation of the target and delivery, .are set out below-ig the four
. sections. : ’

KPI ] ' Target Outturn ' - Comment
Is AWE Safe and Secure? _ h ( ’
I Océ:upationél Safety and Health <03 - ‘ B 0 256 Target achieved. The OSHA rate ‘has
Administration (OSHA) rate | . - ' L - [remained below target the whole year.
Security incidents per 100,000 <15 . 13 [Target achieved. Security incidents -
hours (12 month rolling)- ] : - remained below target the whole year..

: : Target achieved. Mandatory training
Mandatory training compliance ->95% . 99%. compliance was above target the whole
' . ' ) . [vear, except for January 2023.

. [Target achieved. No enforcement -

i Regglatory .enf(‘)rce'ment | None . ' None *[notices were received through the year.
Is AWE Performing?
On time delivery of defined ' No late "~ . [Target not achieved. Not all miléstones
. L7 . : 7 missed .
milestones (Mission Delivery) milestones - were delivered. :

: . [Target not achieved. Delivery to order . |
>90% ) - 90% book is on an upward trend but was
' ' below target. * :

Delivéry.to order book
(cumulative)

. Target achieved: Production right first
-Production right first time (non- arget achieved. Froduction rght firs

- >=95% : 95% time has.remained at a consistent level
conformance) . I :
: - through the year.
On time delivery of defined o . ‘ Target achieved. All IPD milestones
milestones (Infrastructure 100% 100% were-delivered on time. :
| -Project Delivery (IPD)). . :
Is AWE in Control?
Performance against Defence - A . . .
Nuclear. Investment Committee ‘ ‘ . [Target not achieved. 2 delivered on time
,(DNIC)/ Investment Approvals - * No late . 2late and to cost. 2 delayed with adverse cost |

Committee (IAC) approved’ S variance.
projects (cost/time) ' : : -]

S
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. Target

Outturn -

Equality & Inclusion (ENEI).

. KPI 7 Comment

Is AWE in Control? (continued)

On time delivery of IAC stage 'N0‘la te ' 1 la e Target not achieved. 9 out of 10 IAC
‘gates ’ o [stage gates were on time.

Full Year variance between - . ‘o" f o o
actual and budget < +f‘- 5 /o 0.4% Target aehleved.
[Target not achieved. Spend.ur;der
category management remained
e S o . . consistently below target. The target has|
‘Spend under category > 98% 2‘% been reassessed as there is now a better |
management uriderstanding of an appropriate target
ffor AWE. The position is also -
improving- with 15% achieved -
' . _ Jsubsequent to the reporting perxod ‘
1Is AWE Mobilised with the Right Resources?- ‘
A o Target achieved. Supplied resource was|
‘Variance between FTE demand < +-10% 9% below demand but within target. In year
and supply : ¢ ‘ ° there was a 51% increase in hires and an|
" [improving Time to Offer.
Vanance between actual supply < +-2% 9% Térget not achieved
and budget : : : : e
" [Target " not achieved. 'Employee net
. ' : " ppromotor score has been " negativel
Employee net promotor score. >10 -4 through the year since measurement
: : Istarted in September 2022. It has trended N
.- lupwards in the final quarter.
Core and crmcal skills’ for the o 90'0/ ' 91% - ‘-Tarce’ . achieve d&
future . TR o ° :
. Target not. achieved; The upward trend
Female hires (12 month rolling) >35% 32% gigeo“ﬁzhy‘;;s ;i‘(’fiiﬁ;f;?ﬁi:‘feigiv
' target.
' Employere Network for >70% '79% : [Target achieved. ENEI has remained '

consistently above target all year.

12
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Principal Risks
This section sets out the principal risks identified and be'ing_manage'd by the Company.as at the date of this report.

The board has identified and assessed the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Organisation; their potential
- impact; the mitigating actions proposed in respect of such risks and their change in risk profile-during the year (in
terms of both impact and likelihood). The risks have been managed to a level to minimise impact on the delivery of
the strategic objectives. Each risk has.an assigied Executive Committee member, and the effectiveness of the
mitigation actions are monitored: through the governance arrangements in place up to the board. AWE’s risk appetite

is embedded within the Company’s assessment of risks and the assocxated responses. AWE’s pr1nc1pal risks. are set

out below:
‘Principal Business Risk - Impact / Mitigation Actions.
AWE ‘Unavailability of current Potential Impact
. current . plant,'facilities and enabling = Delays to operations and resource management
Capabilities infrastructure to support the inéfficiencies. :
' programme. ® Increase in frequency &/or s'ignjﬁcance of Environment,
. ’ Safety, Health & Quality (ESH&Q) events.
Risk owner AWE has a large and complex = Increased costs through €xtra maintenance and
" Chief operation across multiple sites monitoring to-keep current facilities operational.
. Operating with some ageing plant and ’
Officer supporting infrastructure. Mitigating actions
' ' . = Delivery of re-kit programmes delivering pI‘O_]eCtS to
"Failure to manage risks replace equipment and upgrade facilities to quUII'Cd
associated with ageing and standards.
dbsolescence has potential to » Delivery of Estates strategy and asset management plans.
result in delays and increased = Robust risk-based asset through life management plans
potent1a1 of a serious safety " implemented.
1nC1dent s Single points of fallure prioritised for investment.
- * Continued focus on managing operations safely and
securely, maintain Licence to Operate controls.
* Robust on-site emergency response and business
" resilience capability.
AWE Future 'Unavailability of future Potential Impact
Capabilities plant, facilities and critical * Delays to operations.
: " | .infrastructuré to support the = | ® Increase in frequency &/or 51gn1ﬁcance of ESH&Q
programme. ' events.
* Financial penalties arising from ﬁnes legal action and
Risk owner As above, the large and project delay / prolongation.
Chief _complex operations across . -
Operating multiple sites require the right 'Mmgatmg actions
Officer capabilities to be in place at the | = Delivery of new Capital builds and re-klt programmes.
right time to deliver the long = | s Delivery of Estates Strategy and Master Plan.
-term and future programmes. = Robust risk-based asset through life management plans
' implemented. '
Failure to manage risks * Single points of failure prlorltlsed for investment.
associated with these = [nvestment in utilities through the Infrastructure
uncertainties over future " Capability Plan. '
capability has the potential to = Continued focus on managing operations safely and
result in delays in delivery and securely, maintain Licence to Operate.
increased potential of a serious : '
safety incident. '

13
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may adversely affect AWE's
ability to deliver against its
business objectives.

AWE?’s employees are critical
to.its current and future
performance. AWE needs to
identify, recruit and retain the
right people. with the right
skills, experience and -

- behaviours to ensure current

and future delivery.

AWE Sites ‘Impediment to the use of Potential impact
AWE sites to allow . Restrlctlon or delays to operatlons on some or all AWE
' operations to-continue. sites. -
Risk owner . : ' = Increased cost resultmg from recovery of operatlons
Executive | AWE sites and operations are - and/or project delay / prolongation.
- Director subject to a variety of external | : c
Liabilities threats that require close Mitigating actions -
management. - * Business resilience and continuity capability with h
These include pandemic, established routine exercising of continuity. plans.
environmental and protestor * ‘Security controls, mcludmg physical and personnel
action.and other force majeure security, : :
events. : = Robust on-site emergency response capablllty in place and
regularly exercised.
People " Inability to attract &/or | Potential impact )
’ retain the right number of = Adverse effect on delivery of AWE's business objectives:
. | people, with the right skills at | = Potential regulatory and legal compliance issues due to
Risk owner | ‘the right time (or access the lack of Suitably Qualified and Experlenced Persons
Chief People” | required resource across the (SQEP).
Officer nuclear enterprise) which * Damage to AWE's brand and reputatlon as an effective

member of the Nuclear Enterprlse and Employer of
Choice. :

= Wellbeing issues including overwork, stress and absence.

= Additional cost for hxgher—than expected recruitment
activity.

| " Deterioration in safety performance lmpactmg safety and

- regulatory comphance

.Mmgatmg actlons -

= Deliver and execute robust Strategic Workforce Plannmg

to include key skills/ roles of interest.

.Location Strategy to promote inclusivity and unlock

innovation, diversity and access to talent i 1ncreases

resilience in the organisation.

Reward framework to ensure pay and conditions remain

fair, competitive and appropriate.

= Strive to maintain an effective and inclusive work -
environment and culture. ’

' Investment in Leadership and SQEP skills development

* Commitment to drive contmuous improvement in
employee engagement.

= Continue to develop and focus on wellbemg of all
employees.

= Continue to offer development and growth through

training, job progression, career and learning pathways.

= Complement staff development with core Science,
technology, engineering, and mathematics (STEM)
outreach programme and External Technical Partnerships.

* Partnering with industry through enduring relationships.

14
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| Potential impact

ESH&Q

operations and significant
legacy issues that require
continuous management of

- environmental, héalth, safety

and sustainability issues:

_Supply Chain | Insufficient capability and
" | capacity within the supply * Reduced ability to set up longer term agreements and,
‘ chain to fully:support the foster collaborative supplier relationships focussed on
Risk owner complexity and risk within proactively pre-empting issues. =
Chief Finance. | AWE’s programmes of work. | = Unavailability of critical goods and services, 1mpact1ng on
Officer . delivery delays and increased costs.

: AWE relies on its supply chain | ® Conducting existing business becomes mcreasmgly _
for delivery of its programmes challenging, with increased cost of materials and supplies.
and projects. Maintaining close |- « Damage to relationships with critical suppliers
and effective working - : N '
relationships with the supply Mitigating actions
ohaln 1s a priority for AWE. * Provide a robust forward looking demand plan and
With the srg_mﬁcant increase in procurement pipeline. .
futur ¢ procurement actlv.rty“ = Develop and maintain long-term strategic relatlonshrps o
reanred by AWE, supplier with critical and high risk category supply chain partners
ffa%““y and the globa! supply and sub-contractors through an industrial strategy across
chain challenges remain a all of the business. L
concern. * Support delivery focussed contract management in all

. areas. . ' : '
Funding Either insufficient funding Potential impact” ’ _
' available to AWE from *Inability to invest sufficiently in both people and
: MOD, or an inability for capability, adversely affecting delrvery of AWE' s
Risk owner - | AWE to persuade MOD and business objectives.
Chief Finance | wider government that- = Cessatron of some or all operatlons in the short/medium

“Officer. additional funding is term.
required to fund the short, | ® Conducting exrstmg business (programmes and prOJects)
medium and long term " becomes increasingly difficult. .
requirements of AWE to = Loss of confidence by key stakeholders.
provide sovereign and L

.| sustainable capability to the Mltlgatmg actlons
UK. : : = Focus on improved long-term planning with Busmess
Case ‘Assurance reviews. :
®Build and maintain strong relationships with MOD and
-wider government to ensure appropriate prioritisation to
AWE’s programme requrrements and governance of
. programme change.
Environment, | Failure to maintain safe and | Potential Impact '
Safety & - sustainable operational ® Restriction or'delays to operations.
Health environment and prevent a » Worker fatality, serious injury or environmental release.
: ma]or incident. « | =Increased cost resulting from fines or pros’ecntion, and .
: ' recovery of operations:
Risk owner = | AWE operations sites .are Mitigating actions’ .
Director inherently complex with many » Maintain Licence to operate controls.
and varied hazardous = Business continuity and emergency response capabllltles

established and exercised.

= Continuing process of Periodic Review of Safety (PRS)
across critical hazardous facilities.

= Continuing programme of decommissioning and
replacement.

"= Continued and enhanced focus on ESH&Q & Employee

Engagement strategy, including leadership behaviours,
"Culture of Cate and safety culture. -
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.Qualiey '

programmes and nuclear .

" operators are changing and
potential impacts arising from -

major events (e.g., Fukushima)

"need to be understood and
- potential consequences-.

managed.

Failure to éstablish, manage - Potentral rmpact
and monitor. adequate . Quality assurance and quality control fallures .
' quality management = Delays to 'AWE operations and increased cost due to
Risk owner - systems. _ defects, rework and lost production time.
Director - o . Erosion in the MOD confidence in products delivered by
.| ESH&Q Quality is a critical enabler to AWE. o
‘ o mission success and to Mltrgatmg actions
Nuclear Safety, Security and = Drive proactive culture of i 1mprovement through Quallty
Environmental Performance. Improvement Plans and digitisation.
-’ * Maintain Quality training.
. Momtonng Quality risk reviews, Audit and Assurance
strategy, non-conformarice management through in
- process inspections, quality failure and escape
A ‘investigations. o L
Employee Deteriorating industrial Potential Impact
‘Relations relations leading to formal = Restriction to, or temporary suspensron of operatlons on
industrial action. some or'all AWE sites. :
_ - "= Adverse effect on dehvery of AWE s busrness
Risk owner- Not maintaining a positive - . objectives.
Chief People relationship with employees = Damage to AWE’s brand reputatlon and employee
Officer and Trade Unions generates a -engagement. :
‘ “ risk of industrial action and - Mitigating actions
| associated programme ’ - Contmue to positively engage employees and therr TU
disruption. representatives at all levels across National, Regional
: and local relations.
= Reward framework and assocrated processes and
émployee relations interfaces.
= Operationally continue to reduce disruption risk by
maintaining and further deyeloping resilience strategies.
External ‘Uncertainties that follow Potential impact
Environmental | sudden political change, = Significant change to the fundmg and scope of work. ’
Shock serious accidents or(rapi‘dly . Slgmﬁcant change to the requirement schedule and
) changing global trends in programme of work. .
.o regulating nuclear = Politically motivated. regulatory change and.i mcreasmg :
Risk owner operations. regulatory burden. :
Executive ; ' '
" Director . Views and opinions related to Mitigating actions .
Assurance- -nuclear deterrence - » Undertake geopolltrcal risk assessments as part of

" regular due diligence.

s Established crisis- response and business resrlrence
capabilities. - :

» Strategy, PR, -and govemment-relations teams.
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Contract

Risk owner

- Officer

Management

". Chief Finance-

. Failure to manage contracts
with suppliers leading to

inefficient delivery of AWE’s
mission.

Failure to manage. contracts
effectively and in a timely

_manner at each stage of a.

project’s lifecycle léading to
significant loss and / or
delivery delays.

'|'Potential lmpact

) Mltlgatmg actions

= Failure to manage programme and prOJect delivery to
meet AWE’s financial and schedule targets.’

= AWE incurring losses against individual contracts.

* Claims for breach of contract with the potentlal for
litigation or legal accountability.

. Negatlve consumer and public opinion.

= Senior Responsrble Officers are allocated and responsible
- for operational management of contracts thh supplters

* Contract handover plans from Supply Cham Management
to the business area.

= Correct systems, templates and toolsets in place to enable

_ compllance to be measured through government’s- Internal

Controls and Assurance Framework (ICAF). ‘

= Reporting and performance review of contracts through
business as usual supplier relatlonshlp management
activity. -

= Provision of appropriate trammg and accredrtatron

Project and

Failure to maintain

Potential Impact

Programme programme control.. = Adverse eftect-on delivery of AWE's business objectlves
Baseline ‘ o , o .cost over or under runs, schedule delays (due to mis-timed
Management | AWE has alarge and diverse - |  procurement, material delivery etc.) and inadequate
portfolio of programmes and rresourcing. '
oo projects in progress at any one » Poor performance management information without high
Risk owner time. Programme and Pr_oject' quality factual data.
Chief Management is key to = Poor project decisions, slow decision making, damage to
Operating ' . determine, with high AWE’s reputation and loss of stakeholder confidence.
Officer confidence, that AWE’s" T : ' - .
-delivery mission is on track. Mitigating actlons
:* Enterprise Portfolio Management Office (PMO) as'the
central governing body of AWE’s total programmes, .
‘bringing together requirements, constructing a coherent
‘and optimised schedule of work and coordinating and
reporting the delivery of programme output.

* Timely and effective engagement with relevant SROs and
to identify and: address emergmg issues in a collaboratrve
manner.

Cyber’ " AWE is exposed to cyber- Potential impact - ) .
Security and | attack leading to denial of IS » Breach of IT security, denial-or mterruptron of services.
.data loss services and loss of data. * Escape of sensitive information to the public domain.
‘ ‘ g * Financial penalties from Information Commissioner’s
) Failure to keep up to date with Office (ICO) for personal data breach.
Risk owner the cyber-attack landscape as . : '
Executive well as protecting from current | Mitigating actions
Director conventional cyber risks could s Continual programme of upgrades to technology to
Security " cause denial of IS services and | * respond to changing threats.

loss of control of sensttlve
data.

= Effective IT, cyber and data management controls
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Social and

Risk owner
Direptor’
ESH&Q

Environment,

-| Governance.

Failure to recognise impact

" of ESG on achieving business
- objectives or demonstrate

sufficient ESG cred’entials._

As a result of changing views
and opinions relative to nuclear

deterrence and / or AWE's
ESG credentials there is a risk
that AWE may experience .

| difficulty recruiting and

retaining necessary staffor -

‘engagmg key supply cham
‘ partners

1 ® Loss of key suppllers

‘ _' Strive to continually reduce our environmentaj footprint.

Potentlal lmpact )
"= Adversely affect delivery of AWE s busmess .objectives.
* Inability to attract and retain required staff and Skll]S

» Reputational and financial impacts.

Mitigating actions .

* Delivery of Sustainability Plan, Environmental and Socnal
Value and Equalities Policies.

* Consideration given to environmental impacts-in all
mvestment decisions.

= Be leaders in diversity and mcluswn research and
- development, social impact, and employee benefits,
keeping up with and engaging in current developments.
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Environmental Sustainability Reporting-
Outstanding envrronmental performance and sustamablllty remains lmportant to AWE, itis an essentlal part ‘of being
a responsible and successful Company, helping to deliver the core mlssmn

AWE’s Env1ronmental Sustamabrhty Strategy (ESS) sets out AWE’s visions and goals for becommg a more
envnonmentally sustamable business, against three key themes :

~e . reducing Carbon
« - implementing the circular economy’
+ _ enhancing Biodiversity

‘ Underpmmng the three themes are the UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) Wthh provide a blueprint to
- achieving a better and more sustainable future for all. AWE has identified and pnontlsed those key SDGs that it will
contribute towards; responsible consumption, climate action and life on land.

The development and progress of the strategy, including endorsement of the annualised targets and monitoring of -
progress against them, is governed at Executive level via The Security, Environment, Safety, Health,- and Quality
(SESH&Q) executive board, the Environmental Social Governance (ESG) Committee and overseen by the Board
. SESH&Q Committee. The environmental goals set in the ESS are delivered in ‘a staged manner and environmental
improvement targets are set on an annual basis. Environment and sustainability are also key elements of AWE’s
Culture of Care behavioural framework so that all employees understand they have a responsibility to help “minimise
the envirorimental footprint of AWE's core mission and" strlve to deliver the hlghest standard of environmental
protectlon and sustamabmty :

. Over "the last year .the AWE Carbon' Management ‘Strategy has been updated'(https://www.awe.co.uk/yvp-

content/uploads/2023/07/Carbon-Management-Plan.pdf) and both a Nature Recovery Plan and an Implementing the

Circular Economy Plan have been endorsed. These documents provide more detail as to how the goals set out in the
. ESS will be achieved 1ncludmg how the Greemng Govemment Commitments will be met.

‘ThlS is AWE’s second year of reporting progress agamst the Greemng Government ‘Commitments (GGC),
.improvements will continue to be made to the collection -and reporting of data to ensure it meets the reporting
‘ requrrements The followmg section provrdes a summary of performance against the overarching GGC 202 1-2025

Mitigating Climate Change Workmg towards net zero by 2050
Reduce Overall Greenhouse Gas Emissions

AWE has the ambltlon to achieve net zero carbon emissions across the value cham by 2050 To support this ambition
"AWE’s Carbon Management Strategy (CMS) was updated in Autumn. 2022 and identifies the key themes for focus
including:

+ supply of energy and opportunities for renewable energy sources

«  built environment, sustainable new builds and improving the energy efﬁciency of the existing estate
e travel and transport including'AWE vehicle fleet, business travel and employee commuting

« supply chain and sustainable procurement ' ‘ -

. leadershin and ,cuttu_re '

o climate change adaptation
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Scope 1 and Scope 2 carbon emissions are well understood, and further work has been undertaken to understand and
. baseline AWE’s Scope 3 emissions which can often represent the largest source of emissions for companies and occur
within the wider value chain. The revised CMS now includes a Scope 3 emissions strategy which identifies areas for
focus including measuring embodied carbon from construction, further developing the Information Communication
and Technology (ICT) carbon footprint, working in collaboration with the supply chain and reducing carbon emissions
. from business travel and employeé¢ commuting. These categories have been selected based on the significance of the
- carbon contributions, the levels of influence AWE can have in reducing emissions and the pnormes set by the
Greening the Government Commltments :

In developing the organisational carbon footprint AWE follows the Greenhouse Gas Protocol and uses the UK
Government Greenhouse Gas conversion factors for company reporting. A carbon reduction target was set in 2019
" for Scope 1 and 2 emissions. Since the baseline year of April 2017 —March 2018 (FY18) AWE’s Scope 1 and 2 estate
and operational emissions have reduced by 29%: This target has recently been updated to ensure it meets the
requirements of a Net Zero Target following guidance from the Science Based Target Initiative (SBTI) This will be
reflected in the reduction targets for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Table 1 provides a summary of Scope l and Scope 2 einissions and Scope 3 emissions from business travel where

~ available.

Financial Year — 1 April to 31 March

2022/23 || 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 | 2017/18
Scope 1 : < ‘ " : :
Direct
Emissions
(Natural .
Gas, other
Fuels and
- Refrigerant
Losses)

32,727 35,033 37,130 35959 | 36,595 © 40317

Scope 2
.| Indirect
Emissions ’ .
(Purchased 26,357 28,645 31,061 . 33,870 - 36,518 43,282
Electricity - |- : . .
N Location :-
on- Based)

Financial
. Scope 2
Indicators N
Indirect

(tonnes Emissi

COze) missions . : _ . : _
o (Purchased .5 01 - 0 0 36,518 43,282

Electricity - o : :

. Market

Based)

Total Scope
1&2 : R : .
Emissions 59,084 © 63,678 - 68,191 |- 69,829 73,113 - 83,599
Location : . : .

Based

‘| Total Scope
1&2 . . ‘ : . :
| Emissions . 32,732 35,033 37,130 35,959 | 73,112 83,599
Market - : . : o ‘

Based
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travel provider).

-(As charged by.

was lower as a
result of impdct
of Covid-19]

- 8,888,423

Related Natural gas 174,463 183,923 . 190,983 188,875 189,943 202,860
Energy . : ' : :
Consumption Purchased ' v T :
(KWh) (000s) | : Urenasec 136,297 134,908 133,228 132,513 | 129,005 123,115
electricity
Gross )
Expenditure’ | N : . .
©®) Energy 27,728,743 | 21,185,187 | 20,401,354 | 19,139,911 | 18,535,260 16,337,624
(Includes
purchased.
electricity, Off-Sets - - Z - - - -
natural gas, and : :
other fuels). . )
,‘ Financial Year — 1 April to 31 March
2022/23 | 2021/22 | - 2017/18 —2020/21
Domestic air 129 46
travel N
International C
air travel 105 Not
(Short Haul) reported
International |
air travel’ . Not |
- (Long Haul) 4,570 reported
Scope 3 . .
Business
Travel . ; .
(tCOze) Vehicle hire 245 130
Private N
mileage - 158 99 Not reported
claims an
Rail 27 11
' : -| Business
Gross travel
Expenditure | [prior year level -
of expenditure 2,077,386

Table 1 — Carbon Emissions
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Scope 2 emissions from purchased electrlclty are reported using the locatlon based and market-based methodologies.
The location-based method reflects the average émissions intensity of the grid.on which energy consumption occurs .
and uses the UK Government Greenhouse gas (GHG) conversion factors. The market-based method reflects emissions
from electricity that companies have purposefully chosen. As of April 2019, AWE’s purchased electricity has been a
© “Renewable Backed Supply” through participation in the ‘Renewable Energy Guarantees of Origin’ (REGOs) scheme,
emissions are therefore reported as zero.

Reducing EmisSions from A WE Fleet Vehicles

Currently, AWE owned vehicles are fuelled w1th diesel. Future proposals include a phased approach to the transition
of AWE'’s vehicle fleet to Ultra Low Emission Vehicles (ULEV) and the implementation of electric vehicle (EV)
charging infrastructure. Ten EV charging points have already been installed as part of a successful trial and: plans have
been developed for the mstallat10n of a further 120 EV chargmg pomts by 2025.

- AWE’s site-based car hire pool fleet is provided by a thlrd-party supplier, the cars provided are a mixture of mild.
hybrids (66%) and diesel (35%). Additional hire or lease cars are predominately diesel or petrol. AWE. will continue
to engage with supphers workmg towards mcreasmg the number of ULEV and reducing carbon emissions from -
transport. . .

Rea’ucirlg Erhissions from Domestz'c Flights and T rdvel Policy

Although carbon emissions from domestlc flights continues to be well below the FY'18 baseline (954 tCOze) and the
GGC target of a 30% reduction has beén maintained, there has been an increase in emissions from domestic flights
compared to FY22. This increase is due to the lifting of all travel restrictions followmg the pandemrc International

- business flights have been baselined and are reported for the first time. -

A Travel Policy remains in place which encourages employees to consider their travel arrangements and sustainable
travel options. when making decisions about business travel. AWE continues to leverage IT solutions, reducing the '
need for face-to-face meetmgs and reframing what is considered necessary travel and will continue to revxew the

" policy in light of emerging opportun1t1es to enhance it wrth regards to sustamablhty :

‘Carbon Oﬂsets

* Carbon offsets are not purchased AWE s purchased electr1c1ty isa “Renewable Backed Supply” through participation )
in the REGOs scheme. . .

Mlmmlsmg waste and promotmg resource efficiency
Rea’uce the overall amount of waste. generated

AWE is a drverse organisation that produces a wide range of wastes including radioactive; aqueous, gaseous, and
explosive waste types. Multiple large demolition and construction projects have also been undertaken in recent years.
For this report, ‘controlled wastes’ have been reported, that is, wastes arising from conventional operations, such as
offices, maintenance, laboratories and workshops, that is-neither radioactive, explosive nor aqueous discharges. Waste
from large demolition and construction projects have also been excluded. Radioactive waste is minimised through the
application of Best Available Technique (BAT) and discharges are made in compliance with the Environmental
Perrmts The quantities of waste generated from demolition and constructlon pro;ects are also monitored and recorded. .

AWE’s waste management performance continues to improve. Initial focus was to reduce waste to landfill and in .
recent years, working up the waste hierarchy, the-focus is now to improve reuse and recycling. In the year ended 31
‘March 2023, the landfill diversion rate was 99% and the reuse and recycle rate.was 73%. Asbestos and asbestos
containing materials have been excluded from these statistics as at present these wastes can only go to landfill in the

- "UK. Most of the asbestos waste is generated from demolrtlon and construction actrvmes

- Table 2 shows the overall operatlonal controlled wastes categonsed by the waste hlerarchy Itis acknowledged that

- to align with the GGC waste categories, .data will need to be categorised further including wastes recovered from
incineration with and w1thout energy recovery AWE is working with- our supplier to obtam this data for future
reportmg . .
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Table 2 — Waste Management Performance )

The increase in controlled waste between 2021/22 and 2022/23 is due to the removal of assets that are no longer
required and disposal of legacy wastes as operations modernise and prepare to move into the new facilities that are

being built, It is anticipated that the quantities of controlled waste could increase over the next 2 to 3 years as this

transition continues. However, focus w111 on continue the irhplementation of the waste hrerarchy

During thé year ended 31 March 2023 AWE started to segregate and record the quantities of food waste from the
Aldermaston site. Since November 2022, 8.8 tonnes of food waste have been sent for anaerobic dlgestlon a recovery
operation. (Thrs excludes food waste generated on the constructlon/demolrtron srtes) -

The quantities of ICT waste are shown below in Table 3. ICT waste is removed from site via a Defence Equipment
Sales Authorrty (DESA) contractor and is taken away for checking, repairing and resale '

. B . Financial Year — 1 April to 31 March .
2022/23 | . 2021/22 . 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18
ICT Waste 27 SR CH I (] - A B 29 3
(tonnes) : : .

" Table 3 — Approamate Infarmatzon Communication Technologv Waste Artsmgs

Reducing Paper Usage

Since the last reporting period improvements have been made to the collation of data on paper use. The data in Table
4 represents the volumes of printer paper purchased for A3 and Ad, the figures prevrously reported in FY22 have been
updated and figures 1 for FY21 have been included.- .

_ Printer paper dommates AWE office supply, averaging around 84% of all paper products that it purchases. The
introduction of more agile working patterns has helped reduce the level of printing and even after the Covid-19
* pandemic there has remained a drop of around 60% in prmtmg, compared to the 2017/1 8 baseline.

23

. Financial Year — 1 April to 31 March ..

: - - 202223 2021722 | . 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18
Controlled Waste . 3446 | 1,662 1425 | 2215 Co1,822 | 2,287
A(tonnes) . . ‘ )
Reused Waste (tonnes) 131 57 g : 99 , 179 162 319
Recycled Waste (tonnes) [ - 99 1,163 945 | 1401 10861 - 1270 |
‘Recoyered Waste ) 334 352 304 Coa2 |l o a9l 431
(tonnes) : , : ‘ .
Disposed (Incineration | =~ - - : ‘ ' ;
and Landfill) (tonnes) - 80 00 7T 203 | 1450 267
Gross Expenditure (£) - 4 _ : A _

: 988,543 851,347 780,759 . LT
(Includes Waste Contract Costs . . . P
-& Electronic Media Shredding)

o



N

AWE plc
Annual report and financial statements
31 March 2023

- Environmental Sustainabil_ityReport (continued)

Financial Year — 1 April to 31 March _
2022/23 2021/22! . '2020/212
A3 Paper- r o . 49'0 ‘ '
Total No. Reams (500 sheets ' 488. o 1,790
: (3,910)
per ream) : .
A3 Paper ’ o e - 298 . |
Total No. Boxes (5 reams per o 98 : ' © . 358
o - (782) -
box) .
‘A4 Paper S .
Total No. Reams (500 sheets - 8,560 ‘ 10,726 9,684
, (12,115)
per ream) . . .
A4 Paper . ’ . ‘ 2.145 . o
Total No. Boxes. (5 reams per ‘ 1,712 y 1,936
box) o ' - ‘ 42 ( - . - = o

‘Table 4 — Paper Purchased
!FY22 data has been updated, figures in brackets are prevzously reporlea' figures
’Additional data added in ihe year ended 31 March 2023 ‘

e

Removing Single-Use Pjastics

Prior to the latest legislation on single use plastic AWE has removed all single-use plastics in the canteen. All cutlery

" is either washed and reused or is wooden, take away boxes are made from blodegradable materials and condiment

sachets have been replaced w1th reﬁllable dispensers.

Pnor to the Covid-19 pandernlc, the introduction of reusable cups had reduced onsite wasting of approximately 4,000
cups a week, a 75% reduction at the time. During the pandemijc there.was, as would be expected, an increase in the

use of disposal cups, however since July 2022 AWE, has once again driven down the use of disposable cups from

catering services, by incentivising the workforce to use reusable cups and has seen a 50% reduction. Whilst not as low

- as pre-pandemic levels this isa srgmﬁcant reduction and AWE will contmue to encourage employees to use re-usable-

cups.

AWE will continue to identify opportunities to embed the principles of the circular economy, to reduce resource
consumption, conserve scarce and non-renewable resources and minimise waste generation. Movmg forward there
©will be continued focus ori: :

e reducing the consumptron of consumer single-use plastics across the business
. reducmg onsite chemlcal 1nventor1es and the use of envrronmentally harmful substances

. mm1m1smg water | u_sage on site

Redicing Water Use '

Water is abstracted from on-site boreholes at the Aldermaston and Burghfield sites. There is also a mains water supply
at Aldermaston and Blacknest. Most of the water is used for welfare supplies (i.e., provision of water for staff),

_ however there is some process use, notably wrthm the site boiler houses and the raising of steam for site heating

purposes

Managing leaks on-the water network is a challenge, espec1ally on an aging infrastructure. The water network is”

divided into District Metered Areas (DMAs) and data is analysed -to identify leakage and target resources
appropriately. A two-stage strategy is implemented; firstly, Find and Fix Campaigns to accelerate leakage reductions

. and secondly pressure management on the network to further reduce leakage rates.

_ There has been a reduction in water abstraction since the baselme year FY 18 as shown in Table 5. AWE wrll continue

to identify opportunities to improve water efficiency; reduce usage and set site specific targets. Improvements have -
been made to data capture and analysis to ensure consistency in reportmg ThlS has resulted i ina revision of the ﬁgures
as lndlcated in Table 5. .

1.
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Financial Year — 1 April to 31 March

2022/23

A 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 | - 2018/19 2017/18
Aldermaston ' ' o :
-Borehole Abstraction m3 : S . ot
Scope 1 Water controlled | - 457,206 | 496,304 | 4832211 = go0010| 574310 | 603,826

: A o : (432,595) (697,368) ‘ ,
by the orgamsatzon - .
Burghfield
Borehole Abstraction m? . :  2i4 1 47 A
| Scope 1 Water controlled - 181,986 146,567 . ’ 86,159 123,734 165,706
; i . (214,635) : - :
by the organisation -

.| ‘Aldermaston . .

Main Water Supply m 178,840 | . 129,713 116,333 143,323 216,158 | 177,653
Scope 2 Water - A : |
purchdsed water

Blacknest . ‘ ' 4

Main Water Supply m’ 117,310 6,034. " 4,739 4,577 11,833 1,316
Scope 2 Water - o . R L :

‘| purchased water
Total m? _

825.432 778,618 818,440 | 600,869 926,035 948,501
’ © (708.875) 1 (1,028,336) (596,292) (914,202) (947,185)
Gross Expenditure (£) '
(Purchased Water) E : L :
: 244,883 189,005 | 163,631 174,808 266,476 | 198,383

Table 5 — Water Use

Figures in brackets previously reported in FY22.

Sustainable Procurement

' Einbedding best practice sustainability measures is a key part of AWE’s supplier 'rela'tionships. AWE’s terms and
. conditions; . outlines the Company’s expectations and mandatory requirements not just for environmental
sustainability, but also areas such as tackling modern slavery arid child labour. Support is drawn on from both internal
and external experts in envuonment ethlcs and people management to. bolster the procurement processes.

As part of the trahsition to an NDPB, AWE is further embracing the Govemment s goals and considerations on areas
such as social value, sustainabi]ity, and transparency into the Company’s procurements. These policies cover a range '
of criteria to promote new jobs and skills, encourage economic growth and prosperity, and tacklmg chmate change,
ultimately driving the goal of bemg a responmble ethlcal and sustainable business. . .

~As part of AWE’s desire to strivc for best practice in sustainable procurement a gap analysis has been undertaken
against International Organisation for Standardisation (ISO) 20400: Sustainable Procurement and actions are currently
being 1mplemented that W111 align AWE closer to the standard.
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Nature Recovery

AWE is committed to protecting and enhancing the biodiversity of the estate it manages. To this end the organisation -
. developed and published its Nature Recovery Plan (NRP) in 2022. The NRP sets out how AWE’s Vision, Goal and

‘Objectives relating to enhancing biodiversity, as set out in thie ESS and is aligned with the GGC’s and the M1n1stry of
Defence Climate Change and Sustalnabrllty Strateg1c Approach. Progress over the last year 1ncludes

* -engaging with the Local Nature Pamrersh1p, wrldhfe chantles local planning authority and other orgamsatrons
in the nuclear sector to ensure actions taken to enhance biodiversity, complement wider reglonal goals and share.
best practlce with similar organisations

e - to raise staff awarenéss 6f biodiversityl issues several articles have been publi'sh.ed in AWE’s in-house magazine,
awareness presentations given to groups of staff and internal intranet pages covenng sustainability have been
improved .

¢ all major development projects are on target to achieve at least 10% Biodiversity Nét Gain

. orotecting and enhancing tree planting and woodland cover through compensatory planting when trees are felled
at a 3:1 ratio (new:old). Plantmg of a traditional orchard habitat has also started, wh1ch will eventually cover 2.5
) hectares : . .

K to protect and enhance pollinator friendly habitat the area of reduced mow grassland has 1ncreased by 5000m? to
total of 20, 000m :

. recogmsmg the potential of .and deploying, Nature Based Solutlons (NBS) an esttmate has been made of carbon
* sequestration benefits of exiting woodland areas

o . methodologles have been reviewed and selected for the production of a Natural Capital l{egister' which will form
the basis for subsequent assessments of the benefits denved from Ecosystem. Servrces and ultimately the
L productlon of a full set of natural caprtal accounts :

. reportmg agamst the NRP and demonstrating progress against key biodiversity indicators and targets, site wide
surveys undertaken for the great crested newts (Triturus cristatus), breeding birds and over-wmtermg wetland
bird specres . . '

Adapting to Climate Change -

Over the last year climate change risk assessments have been completed following the Defence Infrastructure
‘Organisation ((DIO) Climate Impacts Risk Assessment Methodology (CIRAM), which is designed to improve the
resilience of MOD establishments to climate related hazards and ensure continuity of operations. It identifies the risks
posed by current and projected impacts of climate or extreme weather events, any opportunities and actions and
measures required to build resilience. The assessments have been undertaken on key facilities at Aldermaston and
Burghfield and it is intended to undertake further assessments over the next year Several project level CIRAM
assessments have previously been completed for new build developments

An assessment agamst the recommendations from the Task Force on Chmate Related Financial Dlsclosures (TCFD) .
was also completed in 2022. Further disclosure against TCFD is provided in Taskforce on Climate Related Financial
Disclosures set out below. AWE continues to work on strengthening its alignment to the recommendations. :

Sustainable Construction N

Sustainability Appraisals are required for all projects that'could affect the environment, society, or the economy. It
helps to identify potential negative impacts, allowing alternative options to be sought or mitigation measures. to be
implemented, and to identify positive sustainability benefits and enhancement opportunities.

"Defence Related Environmental Assessment Methddology (DREAM) Assessments are required for certain
construction projects, with the expéctation that all new builds will achieve a rating of “excellent” and refurb1shments .
shall achieve a rating of “very good”. Progress against DREAM is tracked and monitored.
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All new build projects and significant refurbishment projects are required to produce an Energy and Carbon
. Management Plan to ensure that the energy hlerarchy is taken into consideration during the design phase. This will
assist progress towards a more sustainable energy system, prioritising energy saving and efficiency opportunities. This .
will 'also examine the feasibility of various low/zero carbon or renéwable energy options against the concept design,

. allowing any relevant requirements to be taken forward into the detailed design phase. '

. AWE is focussed on improving current procurement arrangements to promote sustainable procurement and continues
to work closely. with supply chdin partners to- 1dent1fy ‘sustainability opportunmes mcludmg the selection and
purchasing of key building materials. -

. Reducing environmental impacts from ICT and digital.

AWE remains committed to modernising and bringing new information and technology capabilities to AWE,
improving ways of working and minimising the impact on the environment. ICT suppliers are assessed following
AWE’s sustainable procurement processes and- further supplier engagement is undertaken through the -Sourcing
Strategy, including how suppliers can démonstiate their current carbon footprint and how they intend to reduce this
over the term of the contract. This includes but is not hrmted to hardware and software provision be it on site or off.

As previously described the quantities of ICT waste are recorded and are removed from site via a DESA contractor.
and are taken away for checking, repairing and resale. The Sourcing Strategy works is also used to identify where
improvements can be made to further drive this behaviour across all our ICT suppliers.

All AWE staff receive awareness and training in data hy_glen_e, cyber security, and data protection.

This work aligns to the objectives in the Greening Government ICT and Digital Services Strategy, AWE has also
- provided ICT sustainability data to the Sustainable Technology Advice and Reporting (STAR) team.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) )

‘Energy and Emissions Summary

The. consumption and emissions data for AWE has been collated and summarised below. It is'a mandatory requirement
to include the location-based emissions within the SECR report, based on UK Conversion factors. Market based
emissions have also been included taking into consideration the renewable electricity contracts. This is not mandatory
and has been provided as a voluntary addition.

The below figures differ slightly from those reported in the greenhouse gas emissions section above. This is due to
the difference in the information that is required to be reported, e.g., SECR does not include refrigerant losses or report
all the fuel data.

Currént, Companson
Unlts |- Repuoiting Year w o Roportmg Year
. "(April 22 - March 23) - (April 21— March 22)

Emissions from compustlon of gas {CO%e i 31,848 ' 33,689,
(Scope 1)

Emissions from combustion of fuel . , : : _ o
for transport purposes tCO2¢e : 534 _ : 463
(Scope 1) ’
.Emissions from purchased electricity |- ' : o e
(Scope 2 - location based). "~ . 1C02e ' 26,357 |- 28,643

Emissions from purchased electricity | . ST
(Scope 2 - market based) €02 | ’ . 5 .0

Emissions from generation of
electricity that is consumed in a _ . . . )
transmission and distribution system , . :

-| for which the Company does not own - (CO2e ' : 2,411 -2,335
or control .

1 (Scope 3 - location based)
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o Current - : Coxnpari‘s_on
Units. Reporting Year - ‘Reporting Year
= oo . (April 22 March 23) (April 21 =March 22)" .|

"Emissions from generation of
electricity that is consumed in a -
transmission and distribution system
for which the Company does not own
or control - -
(Scope 3 - market based)
Emissions from business travel in
rental cars or employee-owned ] : :
vehicles where Company is 4 | tCo2e | . o 403 . 227
responsible for purchasing the fuel o ' " :
"(Scope 3)
Total Gross emissions
(Location based)
Total Gross emissions =
(Market based)

1Co2e | - 0 ' o)

tCO2e - o ©. 61,553 | ~ 65,556

0% | . - 3279 - 34379

Energy consumptlon used to calculate - kWh , . 314,642,051 . : 321,741,182
above emissions . . :

Intensity Measurement - ; m Afi‘:’r : . 569531 | - 593,620

Intensity Ratio - location based | S eaest|t . 01104

Intensity Ratio - market based . : 0.0576 | 70,0579

Table 6 - Energy and Emissions Summary
Quantification and Reporting Methodoldgy

Organisations are required to disclose the methodology used to calculate the data reported. AWE have followed the
2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines and GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard. We
" have also used the 2022 UK:Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting. We have used an operatlonal
approach to define our boundary and scopes. This data has been mdependently audited. .

Thrs financial report is based upon the year ended 31 March 2023.

The prlmary source for gas and electricity data is supplrer invoices. Where'i invoices are not in line with the ﬁnancral_ :
year a pro rata calculation has been used to estimate the usage, which falls within the reporting period. AWE has one
Landlord supplied site, this site is not directly invoiced and landlord supplied data is used.

quueﬁed petroleum gas (LPG) usage has been based on dellvered quantmes At Aldermaston this was based ori the
estimated annual usage used in, UK Emissions Tradmg Scheme (ETS) reportm«y . :

‘On-site (Scope 1) transport data was calculated from litres used, this was taken from dlspensmg records. Burghﬁeld
diesel records did not define the proportion of usage to vehicles. It was assumed that 100% of the Diesel usage is for ‘
,vehrcles .

. Company vehicles (Scope 1) transport data was calculated from fuel card data which provided the litres used by
company vehicles. Grey. Fleet (Scope'3) transport data for-private vehicles was calculated using mileage claim data

_and emissions factors for average vehicle of unknown fuel type Hire cars were calculated from’ elther litres used or
from estrmated mileage and average vehicle types.

The chosen 1nten51ty measurement ratio is tCO2e per m? ﬂoor area. This is calculated by gross external ﬂoor area of
the buildings, multlplled by the number of levels. .
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* Energy Efficiency . '

For the year ¢ ended 31 March 2023 ‘AWE delivered the following energy efﬁciency savings:’

e 16,800,000 kWh/year natural gas reduction from multiple building closures and subsequent disconnection
from site- Wide steam networks .. . oo

. 20,000 kW/year natural gas reduction from repairs and insulation improvements to multiple building roofs
e 57,000 kWh'/year electricity reduc_tion from replacement of fluorescent lighting systems with LED

e 652,000 kWh/year electncrty reduction from replacement of hydrobOils motors, fans and pumps With
' nlore efficient models

For the year ended 31 March 2023 AWE also;

. integrated the site heating strategy for decarbonisation of estate heating infrastructure into requirernents for
all new capital builds and major refurbishment programmes. Resulting in a phased withdrawal from steam
and natural gas systems at AWE aligned with programme investments and decarbonisation targets-

. commenced a project to install a further, 120 ‘electric vehicle charging points on ‘site(s) '

e commenced a metering proiect to improve monitormo and targeting of energy consuiiiption and support
) behaVioural changes

e engaged a supply chain partner to bolstet AWEs intemal Energy Management team resources and accelerate
" future reduction activmes . .

Taskforce on Climate Related Financial Disclosures

. The Companies (Strategic Report) (Climate related FmanCial Disclosure) Regulations 2022 amend sections 4l4C
414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006 to place requirements on certain publicly quoted compames and large
'private companies to mcorporate TCFD aligned climate disclosures in their annual reports.

'This year AWE has been working towards its first disclosure against ‘the Taskforce on Climate Related Financial

~ Disclosures’ (TCFD) recommendations. A readiness review was undertaken in 2022 which presented an initial view
of AWE’s climate related risks and opportunities, identified opportunities for improvements to policy documents,
governance and strategy processes, and metrics and targets and developed a roadmap to further align With the TCFD .

disclosure recommendations. : -

Since the readiness review was completed, work has been undertaken to identify climate related risks and opportunities‘
. using the Defence Infrastructure Organisation (DIO) Climate Impact Risk Assessment Methodology (CIRAM), which

forms part of the wider Sustainability and Environmental Appraisal Tools (SEAT), utilised by the Ministry of Defence
. (MOD). . .

This work also contnbutes to Commmnent F on Climate Change Adaptation under the Greening Government
Commitments (GCC), which requires organisations to develop climate change adaptation strategies, and th¢ MOD
* Climate Change and Sustainability Strategic Approach (MOD CC&SSA) publication which outlines the initial
response required to adapt to and mitigate the challenges of climate change. .
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The followrng disclosure presents a summary of AWE’s prooress with implementanon of'the TCFD recommendations ‘
and planned actions for the year ended 31 March 2024 to further i improve allgnment across the followmg areas:

.. governance: Disclose the organisatlon’s governance around climate related risks and opportunities

° strategy: Disclose the actual and potential impacts of climate-related risks and opportunmes on the -
organlsatlon s businesses, sfrategy, and financial planmng where such mformation is material

. risk management: Disclose how the organisation ridentiﬁes, aSSesses, and manages cli_mate-related risks

e metrics and targets: Disclose the metrics and targets used to assess and manage relevant chmate-related
risks and opportunities where such information is material '

Governance

As described in the Environmental Sustainablllty Report outstanding env1ronmental performance is crucial to AWE
It is for this reason that envrronmental sustainability. is identified as-a’ strategic initiative in delivery of the AWE
Business Plan. ’ , '

AWE s Environmental Sustainability - Strategy (ESS) sets out AWE’s ‘visions ard goals for becoming a more -
_environmentally sustainable business against three key themes: Reducing Carbon; Implementing: the Circular
. Economy and Enhancing Biodiversity.. Leadership commitment is instrumental in making the ESS a reality.
Environment Social Governance (ESG) at AWE is, sponsored by ESHQ&EE Executive Director and the ESG
committee, attended by Executive -members, is responsrble for setfing the strategic direction for ESG. Therefore, :
development and progress of the ESS, mcludmg endorsement of the annualised targéts and monitoring of progress -
against them, .is governed at Executive level via the SESH&Q board and the ESG Committée and overseen by the
" Board SESH&Q Committee.

AWE’s Carbon Management Strategy (CMS) is also endorsed by the SESH&Q board. Progress agamst the CMS
including improvements against the implementation of TCFD .recommendations is monitored monthly at the
. Environmental Sustainability Steering Group chaired by the Head of Environment.. Regular progress against the ESS
and CMS is presented to the SESH&Q board and ESG Committee including an annual report of progress :

AWE has well established govemance processes for risk management AWE s risk and opportumty management
. framework is de51gned to ensure that all risk information is communicated up and down the:business. This ensures
that the Executive and Customer have a clear understandmg of the cumulative risk. posxtlon of AWE :

During the year ended 31 March 2024 it is intended to integrate the climate related risks and op’portunities identified
. during the recent CIRAM Assessments into AWE’s existing risk management process, 1nclud1ng the development of
o a dedicated clrmate change risk register . . .

Strategy

AWE’sESS and CMP provrde the framework to enable AWE to become a more environmentally sustainable business,

" including the ambition to achieve Net Zero Carbon by 2050. Durlng the yéar ended 31 March 2023 AWE have'

" undertaken scenario analysis to identify climate related risks and opportunities using the DIO Climate Impact and
- Risk Assessment Methodology to produce. a Climate Impact Vulnerability Assessment Report. This methodology
identifies the risks posed by current and projected impacts of climate change and extreme weather events and identifies.

“actions required to optimise operational capabilities.’ -
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AWE assessed physical climate-related risks for 9 facilities, against two climate scenarios. The facilities were chosen
as they represent key buildings and enduring capabilities and are representative and transferrable to other facilities.
Two scenarios were used, in line with MOD guidance to endble an easy comparison of a lower and more extreme
climate change scenarios, specifically the Met Office’s UKCP18 datasets:

e 'RCP2.6: compatible with aims to llmit global warming since pre- -industrial levels to below 2°C in line with
the Paris agreement

e RCP8.5: considered to be a reasonable worst-case scenario with an-increase of around 4.3°C by 2 100 above
* pre-industrial temperatures. It aligns with the MODs strategic approach ambltlon to be readied for a climate
changed world of between +2°C and +4°C

The assessment identified that the estate will be most 1mpacted by the followmg climate hazards: flood, temperature
extremes, storms and drought. Key climate risks identified. across the facilities include flooding, rainwater ingress,
high indoor temperatures with potential impact on plant, equipment and staff and lack of water due to drought, with
potential to-increase capital .and operational expendlture For the physical I‘lSkS identiﬁed mmgation is already in
place or has been planned for the neéar future :

"The TCFD Readiness Review identiﬁed a number of climate related transition risks, such as policy and legal risks and '
reputational risk. These will also be captured within the Climate Risk Register during the year ended-31 March 2024

" " and further identification and assessment of transitional risks is planined. The CMS is the main mitigation for managing

“transitional risks. AWE’s CMS also identifies some climate-related opportunities including AWE’s ambitious new
build programme which provides significant opportunity for the construction of sustainable buildings compatible with
Net Zero ambitions, improving energy efficiency, reducing future running costs and lmpiovmg building climatc
resilience. :

" Risk Management

Following the requirements.of the GGC and MOD CC&SSA the Climate Impact Risk Assessment Methodology
(CIRAM) will be used as the means of identifying and assessing climate related risks and opportunities. A formal
approach for identifying climate-related transition risks and. opportunities will be developed. Relevant risks and
_ opportunities will be assessed and managed via AWE’s existing ‘risk management framework incliding the
development of a Climate Change Risk Reglster This arrangement shall-be formalised in the year ended 31 March
2024

‘Metrics and Targets

AWE’s net zero ambition is supported by a carbon reduction target for Scope 1 and Scope 2 carbon emissions
following the Science Based Targets Initiative (SBTi) methodology. This target was originally set in 2019 and was
aligned to the below 2-degree pathway. During the year ended 31 March 2023 this target has been realigned to ensure
it meets the requirement of a Net Zero target aligned to the 1.5 degree pathway To date AWE has achieved the annual
reduction targets. Thrs is reported as a Tier 1 Executive KPI. . '

AWE discloses energy usage and carbon emiSsions as required by the GGC and the mandatory SECR.: Scope 3.
business travel emissions aré also reported, as well as other key environmental metrics including water consumption
and waste. Specific mefrics for climate related risks will be developed during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Continuing to 1mprove AWE s alignment with the TCFD recommendations-had been 1dent1fied asa key objecnve

against the CMS for the year ended 31 March 2024. A programme of works including the actions identified above is

. being developed Progress will be monitored monthly at the- Envrronmental Steermg Group and .reported to the
SESH&Q board and overseen by the Board SESH&Q Committee. :
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~ This is the sectlon 172(1) statement of AWE, made pursuant to the Compames Act s414CZA. It sets out the way in
‘which the directors of AWE have had regard to the matters set out in s172(1)(a) to (f) of that Act. :

The board of directors of AWE retains overall challenge to and oversight of the activity of the Company. It operates .- '

-under AWE’s Articles of Association and Terms of Reference which mcludes a statement of those decisions whlch
are resérved to the board. -

. For national security reasons, this statement does not discuss individual decisions in detail.  The board’s main areas
of focus in the reporting period have been oversight of the Company’s performance of its programme of work in
alignment with the objectives and mission of MOD, and of the design and executlon of the Company’s transformation
programme. - :

The board réviewed and approved the Company’s first Business Plan since its transfer into public ownership; this Plan -

sets out among other matters the programme that the Company undertakes in support of the UK’s strategic deterrent.

- The board also con51dered and approved the Company’s strategy, which underpins the programme of transformation
to put the Company into the best position to address and deliver the future demands on its capabilities. This strategy’s
five themes entail modemising AWE’s capability through -driving operational excellence, a production-centric
operating model and investing in information technology systems; enhancing engagement with national academic and

industrial capability; ensuring the Company is able to attract, retain and develop the people it needs to deliver its -
missions; implementing a substantial construction programme to ensure it has the necessary infrastructure to continue

‘to fulfil 1ts programmes into the future; and enhancing its engagement w1th the wider defence nuclear enterprlse

‘In taking such decmons the board tdkt:b mto account the considerations referred to in s172(1) as follows

+ long term consequences: The nature of AWE’ s prmc1pal actlvmes often require plannmg ahead for many.

years so that it is able to respond to the requirements of its prmc1pal customer, the MOD. Near-term decisions
are taken within the context of longer-terrn plans which are developed and shared with MOD

« employee interests: The workforce of AWE is fundamental to its ability to discharge its role. The Company.
has well established processes and ongoing dialogue engaging both with trades unions and other employee
representatives. The board has reviewed 'AWE’s programmes of leadership development, its strategic
workforce planning and career develooment structures which_underpin the opportunities available to

.employees, and measures including safety and anti-bullying and harassment training, and- the provision ofan
award-winning programme for health and wellbeing .

e supplier, customer, and other, relationships_: The board recognises that fulfilling AWE’s mission requires
* close liaison with MOD and its other customers, together with careful management of internal resources and

. skills drawing on best-in-class-capabilities from its supply chain, including strategic partners and specialist

" providers encompassing small and medium enterprises as well as ultimate shareholder rfesources.
Recognising that work for AWE can be of particular significance to the prosperity of some, particularly, of

its specialist providers, the Company takes careful account of the reliability and sustainability of support’

. from.its supply chain

o community and environment: AWE maintains a regular executive- led meeting with focus on the engagement
" between the Company and the wider community and environment. This meeting considers both the impact
_ and potential impact of the Company’s operations on the local community and environment, and the
opportunities for employment and educational benefits. This meeting is complemented by regular liaison
with local community groups comprised of local authorities and other representatives. All decisions taken by

- the Company with regard to its estate consider not just its obligations to comply with environmental ’
" regulation, but also the opportumtles to enhance local conditions for ﬂora and fauna on its sites and the wider -

. community

« reputation for high standards of business conduct: AWE takes its corporate responsibility very seriously. As
a Company and, since its change of ownership a publicly owned body, whose operations are of significant
national importance, AWE is conscious that its actions are open to scrutiny from the press and public at large
as well as parliamentary and- other formal forums. AWE takes its decisions in the light, not just of their

. operational appropriateness, but also in the light of the requirement to demonstrate the integrity and fairness
of its decision-making mcludmg impacts on and relationships with others .
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e acting fairly as between members: Followmg transition to public ownershlp, the sole shareholder of AWE is
the Secretary of State (SoS) for Defence so that the issue of competing interests among the Company’s
members does not arise. The board supports its relationship with the shareholder by ensuring that the
Company balances the interests of all of its wider stakeholders in its decision-making and implementation

Approved and signed on behalf of the board on 27 Septcmber 2023

_Iain Stevenson
Chief Executive Officer

33



g AWE plc L
: Annual report and financial statements
. 31'March 2023

- C‘Orpo.raté,Gqurnance Re'por_ti .

34



. AWE pl¢
Annual report and financial statements
- 31 March 2023

- Directors® Report

Directors’ names

The directors present the1r report together wrth the ﬁnancral statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2023. The Company is reglstered in England and Wales and has reglstratlon number 02763902.

Dlrectors who have held office on the AWE board between 1 Aprll 2022 and 31 March. 2023 are:
«  SirJohn Manzom Chamnan _ ' )
. Alison Atkinson, Chief Executlve Ofﬁcer (CEO) - resrgned 17 Apnl 2023
. . Richard Elsy, Non-executive Director -

. "Clalre Flint, Non executive Director
. Barry Hunter Chief Financial Ofﬁcer (CFO)
. Dame Sue Ion, Non-executive Director '
¢ Nicole Kett MOD-appointed Non-Executive Director — resrgned I June 2022
. Richard Keys, Non- executive Director
.. Hem'y Lloyd MOD-appointed Non Executive Dlrector _
e . Andrew McNaughton Non-executive Director (from 6 February 2023, Executlve Dlrector)

e Dr J Stephen Rottler Non executive Dlrector '

D1rectors who have held ofﬁce on the AWE board at the tlme of approving the annual report and accounts:

. Ia1n Stevenson — appomted 7 June 2023 °
Directors’ interests
We have established procedures in place in accordance w1th the Company s Articles ‘of Assocratlon to ensure

compliance with the directors’ corflicts of interest duties within the Companies Act 2006. This includes requiring
each director to identify all external interests (whether or not they present an actual or potential conflict with the

" interests of the Company). Where any actual or potential conflict is identified, appropriate procedures are agreed on

and recorded. These typicaily entall the relevant director’s recusmg themselves from all decrslon -making associated

with the conﬂ1ct

The followmg interests, where it was assessed that conﬂlcts of interest could potentlally arise, were. held by members,

of the board durmg the year ended 31 March 2023:

“e - Claire Flint was a dlrector of National Nuclear Laboratory Limited, a current supplier to the Company
"« Nicole Kett was an employee ¢ of the MOD, the SoS for Defence being the sole shareholder of the Company

e Henry Lloyd was an employee of UKGI, which works along31de the SoS for Defence who is the sole -
shareholder of the Company . .

o  Andrew McNaughton was a director of Sheffield Forgemasters Limited, a current suppller to the Company.
He also carried out consultancy work for the Company through Aczel Limited for a period of 10 weeks

. Ahson Atkinson was a director of Kier Group plc who was a potentlal contractor to the Company.

No conflicts have: -arisen with respect to these interests. A full list of all interests ‘is maintained, however all other
mterests were not considered to give rise to potentlal conﬂrcts and are therefore not disclosed.
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‘External auditor .

The directors who were members of the board of directors at the time of approvmg the Directors' Report are listed
above. Havmg made enqumes of fellow drrectors and of the Company s auditors,-€ach of these drrectors confirms
that -

e 50 far as-they are each aware, there is no: relevant audit mformatwn (that is, information ‘needed by the
‘ Company s auditor in connection with the preparatlon of the annual report) of which the Company's auditor
is unaware '

e reach director has taken all the steps a drrector mlght reasonably be expected to take to- be aware. of any
relevant audit information and to establish’ that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

Pensnons

" The Company operates both a deﬁned beneﬁt pension scheme and defmed contribution scheme which have been

" accounted for under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The defined benefit scheme was closed to

new entrants and future accrual for existing members, other than the members working at Coulport, on 31 January
2017..0n 21 July 2022 MOD provided a guarantee in favour of. the trustees of the defined benefit pension scheme (the
“Scheme”), under which it committed to meet any paymient due to the trustees in relation to the scheme that was not
. met by AWE when due: The Scheme deficit at 31 March 2023 was £238m G March 2022: £53m).

: DlVldends

The d1rectors have declared no dividends durmo the current year. In the 15 months cnded 3l March 2072 a dividend -

- of £17 7m-was paxd pnor to the transfer of ownershlp on. 30 June 2021

" Personal data

There were no disclosures of any personal data breaches durmg the repomng perrod that were reportabIe to the
. Information Commxssroner s Office. . : ,

‘ -Pohtlcal donatlons and expendlture )

The Company made no pohtlcal donatlons or expendlture durmg the year ended 31 March 2023 (15 months ended 31
March 2022: ml) : . o

F inancial Instruments

The Company has established a risk and. financial managemen’t’ framework \yhose primary objectives are to protect

- the Company from events that hinder the achievement of the Company's performance objectives. The objectives aim’

to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient workmg capital exists and monitor the management of risk.

' Credrt risk is the I‘lSk that one party to a ﬁnancra] instrument will cause a financial loss for another party by failingto -
dlscharge its obligation. The directors consider the credit risk to be low given that the principal customer is the MOD,
and therefore the UK Government. The liquidity and cdsh flow risk is also considered low as this is managed through -

" the government banking facilities, the Government Banking Service (GBS) which AWE i is part of. It i is not con51dered

' that there is any srgmﬁcant credrt nsk on the trade debtors held by the Company.

The Company uses forward currency contracts to hedoe 1ts foreign currency cash ﬂows (see Note 18 for further
'detarls) _ .

' Research & Development '
Research and development expendrture is- prmcrpally camed .out for the purposes of the performance of the M&O )

.. Contract 'with. the MOD. Research and development expendlture is not caprtahsed as assets remain in government
'ownershrp

36



AWE plc
Annual report and financial statements
31 March 2023

Directors’ Report (continued)
Likely future'develOpments ;

-The Company expects to continue w1th 1ts principal activities for the foreseeable future. No other SIgmﬁcant
developments are anticipated. . .

Overseas branches
The Company maintains a branch in France.
Events after the reporting period ,

 There have been no events since 31 March 2023 t0 the date the accounts were authorised for issue which would affect
the understanding of these accounts. International Accounting Standards require AWE to disclose the date on which
the accounts are authorised for issue. The Board has authorised these accounts to-be 1ssued on the date they were .
. cemﬁed by the Comptroller and Audrtor General.

Gomg concern

The Companys business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development its performance
and position, financial risk management objectives, details of its financial instrument and derivative activities are .
descrlbed in.the Directors' Report on page 35 and’in the accountmg policies on pages 72 to 79.

-The Company is expected to continue to generate positive cash flows on its own account under exnstlng contractual :
and . non-contractual arrangements with the MOD. The Company’s banking arrangements are dealt with by .
Government Banking. Government Bankrng provides a shared banking service across central government and wider -
public sector customers. Current arrangements include the provision of sufﬁc1ent funding secured from the MOD -
which will enable the Company to contmue operatmg

. The directors consrder that the Company has a secure long-term position on whrch to found their expectation-that the
Company will continue as a going concern, based on the national requirement and associated funding for the activities
. carried on at the facilities operated by the Company, and the Company’s practical tenure as the operator. The only UK
facilities currently capable of maintaining .and manufacturing the nuclear warheads necessary to deliver the UK’s
.. CASD posture are those managed'and operated by the Company. The directors have considered the possibility that
the Company could be replaced with another operator of these facilities within the timeframe to be considered for
going concern purposes. They have been advised that such a change would require lengthy and substantial regulatory
and other processes and that consequently there is a sound basis for assuming that the Company will continue to be
" the manager and operator of the facilities for that timeframe at a minimum, and that the continuation of the UK’s

CASD policy means that the requrrement for the actwrty conducted by the Company at the fac1ht1es wrll continue for.".
the foreseeable future. : :

Based on these anangements the directors believe that the Company will ¢ontinue to receive. support from the:MOD
in carrying out its principal activities for a number of years which is corroborated through funding forecasts received
from the MOD which indicate this.

On the basis of their assessment of the Company's financial position, the Companys directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company. will be able to continue in operational existence for at least the penod through to 30
. September 2024.. : .

In maklng this assessment the directors have given sufﬁc1ent consrderanon to the current extemal social, political, and
economic environment and have considered the impact of plausible downside scenarios including the plausibility of
- a reverse stress case. The implications of the current economic and business environment have been considered in

' arriving at this conclusion. These events and circumstances do not alter the directors’ assessment of the Company’s
ab111ty to contrnue as a going concern as, set out above

.Engagement with suppllers, customers and other ina busmess relatlonshlp with the Company

'Please see the commentary‘in relation to Companies Act s172(1) on page 32 and 33.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
- Engagement with employées

Please see'the commentary in the People Report on page 55.

Apprqved and signed on behalf of the board on 27 September 2023

Tain Stevenson '
Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors and Accounting Officer (AO) are responsible for preparmg the Annual Report and financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations and for ensurmg that proper accounting records are maintained that
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of AWE and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply w1th the Compames Act 2006.

They are also responsrble for safeguardmg the assets of the Company and for takmg reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities. The directors and AO are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial infofmation included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom -
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The SoS for Defence has also directed AWE to prepare for each financial period a set of financial statements-in the
“form and on the basis set out in the Framework Document. The financial statements are prepared on an accruals basis

and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of AWE and of its income and expenditure, balance sheet and

cash flows for the financial perlod :

In preparing the accounts, the directors and AO, who is also a director, are required to comply with the requirements

of the Companies Act 2006, and apply additional disclosure requirement of the Government Financial Reporting

Manual (FReM) where these are compatible with the requirements of the Companies Act, and in particular to:

o observe the Accounts Direction detailed in the Framework Document, including the relevant accounting and -
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis

e make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis
e prepare the accounts ona gomg concern basis

e state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the relevant statutes, pnmarrly Companies Act

2006-and as specified in the Framework Agreement, principally International Financial Reporting Standards

" asadopted in the UK, including reference where relevant to the FReM, have been followed, and disclose and
explain any material departures in the financial statements .

The Permanent Secretary of the MOD, as Departmental AO, has designated the CEO of AWE plc as an additional AO
of AWE plc. The responsibilities of an AO, including responsibility- for the propriety and regularity of the public
finances for which the AO is answerable, for keeping proper records and for safeguarding AWE’s assets, are set out
in Managing Public Money publrshed by the HM Treasury. :

The dlrectors have taken all the steps that ought to have been taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit _
Anformation and to establish that AWE’s auditors are aware of that mformatlon So far as they are aware, there is no
_ relevant audit mformatron of which the auditors are unaware. - ‘

.The directors.and AO confirm that to the best of our knowledge that the Annual Report and financial statements, taken A
as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for the Shareholder to assess
the Company’s performance, business model and strategy. :
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Governance Statement
The AWE Board

The AWE board meets around seven times a year. The role of the board is set ot in the Framework Document The.
board has seven committees, whose roles and activities in the reporting period are described elsewhere in thrs report,
which undertake closer scrutmy and challenge on behalf of the board.

The board is accountable to the Respon51ble Mrmster as representatlve of the shareholder for all aspects of AWE s
activities and performance including responsrblllty for: : :

‘s providing effective leadershlp of. AWE and setting the standards and values. w1th1n a framework of.prudent -
and effectrve controls - e .

o« for determmmg AWE s Strategy, and Corporate Plan and Business Plans and seekmg its approval by the. SoS
for Defence

o establishing and taking forward the strategic aims and obj'ectiyes of AWE consistent with its overall strategic
direction and within the policy framework and resources determined by the SoS for Defence

o ensuring that the SoS for Defence is kept informed of any significant changes which are likely to impact on
v the strategic direction of AWE or on the attamabrhty of its targets, and determmmg the steps needed to deal
- with such change : . .

"« ensuring that the AWE board operates within the limits of the delegated authority agreed with the MOD, and -
in accordance with any other conditions relating to the use of public funds and that, in reaching decrsrons
AWE board takes-into account guldance 1ssued by His Majesty s Government (HMG) as notified to it by the
MOD . ..

» reviewing regular financial and other relevant 1nformat10n concemmg the management of AWE ensuring it
’ is informed in-a t1mely manner about any material concerns about the activities of AWE,-and where relevant,
provrdmg positive assurance to the Shareholder that appropr1ate action has been taken on such concerns

. ensuring that effectlve arrangements are in place to provide assurance on AWE § major projects, programmes
and procurements, risk management, governance, health, environment, safety, and security, finance, and
_ internal controls alongside ensuring the effective performance of AWE generally .

e ensurmg the necessary financial and human resources are in place for AWE to meet its objectlves

. revrewmo management performance in light of AWE’s strateglc aims, obJectlves Corporate and Busmess
"Plans and budgets -

. fostermg a culture of partnershlp ‘and transparency between the MOD -and AWE

The size and composition of the board is agreed with the Shareholder from time to’ t1me having regard to guldance
and best practice on other boards in the public and private sectors, in order to ensure the right balance of skills,
experrence and challenge. However, the majorlty of the board members will be mdependent

The board and its committees conduct annual assessments of their effectiveness, mcludmg the quality of information
provided'to them to enable them to discharge their roles. The board conducted what was its first such assessment as a
self—assessment during the repomng period.

Board members

The board consists ofa chalrman executive directors and non-executive drrectors the non-executrve drrectors mclude
representation from the shareholder and form the majority of the board. The Chair is responsible for leading the board.
Board members are responsible for overseeing and challenging the management of AWE and setting the strategy.for
the Company. As individuals the mernbers must ensure compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board Members of
" Public Bodies and AWE board Terms of Reference (TOR) as well as their obligations under company law.

Non-executive directors are responsible for bringing independent judgement to bear on a wide range of issues — from

strategy and performance to resourcing, key appointments and standards of conduct. Under the Articles of Association,
the Shareholder has the right to appoint and remove any. person asa d1rector of the Company by notlce in writing.
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Governance Statement (continued)

'Board commitment and attendance

Biographies of the current "board members are published on the www.awe.co.uk website. The appointment and
re51gnatlon or retirement dates of board members in the reportmg perlod have been set out in the Dlrectors Report on
page 35.

: Atten‘dance at the AWE board and sub-committees
The following table sets out-attendance at board meetings and sub-committees of which the relevant Director was a

member. ‘All board members are invited to attend sub-Committees whether or not they are members, except where
they have a conﬂlct of mterest . o

) ’ F “. .| infra.” |- Nom. - P&P | Rem. - | SESHQ | ESTAC |
_Board member Boa_rd ARAC Cttee | Cttee | Cttee | Cttee | Cttee . .
Sir John Manzoni | 8/8*% . . 2/2% - ’ -
Alison Atkinson . 88 | . : : .
Richard Elsy 8/8* 44 | 22 | a4 .
Claire Flint . - 8/8 o ) . . 2/2 ' 6/6* | 4/4
Barry Hunter | 88 ’ K L A . :
Dame SueIon . 8/8 . e - 4/4 - : 4/4 5/5%
Nicole Kett ! 2/2 . 1/1 .. ) : :
Richard Keys 7/8 6/6* 2/4 : A | 5/6°
[Henry LloydZ | 88 6/6 4/4 0 3/4 6/6 74 | . 55
Andrew ’ . : ) . .
McNaughton. 8/8 4/5 aar | 4/4 | |
Dr J Stephen 88 | 66 A am | | aee | ss
Rottler L )

*Denotes chair of the board or committee
'Nlcole Kett resigned as a director of the Company as of 1 June 2022.

-2 meo to concurrent meetings during the year, Henry Lloyd was unable to attend 2 SESH&Q meetings and
appomted alternates for both

.B'oard sub-committees - - -

Thére are seven sub- commlttees of the board with advisory or decision-making deleganons as set out in their Terms
of Reference. Reports on these committees are set out below. )

" Audit and Risk Assu'rancé Committee (ARAC)

The role of the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee s to support the board in momtorlng the Company’s business .

" control systems and in reviewing the Company’s financial statements. The remit of the Committee includes oversight
~ of: the risk management processes. of the Company; ‘the’ appomtment of the external auditor, ‘including their
performance, remuneration and terms of engagement; and the internal audit function including the appointment of the
head of internal audit, the review, approval and performance of the.function’s annual audit work plan and their findings
and reports. The Committee meets a minimum of four times a year and is chaired by a non-executive director, Richard
" - Keys. The other committee mémbers in the réporting period were non-executive directors, as follows: Henry Lloyd .
Andrew McNaughton (for part only of the year) and Dr.J Stephen Rottler. :

’ Performance durmg the perwd

In the period the Committee met six times, including extra-ordinary meetings. The Committee receives regular reports
on the ICAF internal financial control environment second line of defence; key strategic risks, internal controls and
the risk management processes; and from internal audit and the National Audit Office- (NAO). As part of these reviews
. the Committee has reviewed:the effectiveness of the system of internal controls Further details on the effectiveness
. of the control envuonment is set out on page 47 of thlS report .
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- The Committee has considered a number of discrete matters during the year, including the preparation and audit of
the annual report and accounts, and the related accounting principles and policies, including the approach to be taken
to segmental reporting. The Committee also had oversight of the annual assurance report delivered to the Department'
and reviewed.and approved the current year corporate assurance and internal audit plans as part of a review of the

‘three year forward programme, as well as the creation and appointient of the new role of Head of Assurance with

. responsibility for leading the design and delivery of these plans. The Commiittee also received updates on the proposed

future transfer of the management of the Company s Internal Audit function to the Govemment Internal Audit Agency

(GIAA).

. The Committee noted that the provision of a guarantee by the MOD to the trustees of the Company’s defined benefit

* pension scheme (thie “Scheme”) and surrounding arrangements did not change the accounting position relating to the

Scheme’s deficit. In providing the guarantee to the trustees; MOD also put in place arrangements to provide practical

" assurance to the‘Company’s board of Directors as to the Company’s ability to continue operatmg asa gomg concern
- should the trustees be in demand of funds and where the guarantee would be involved.

- Engmeermg, Sclence and Techmcal Capabrllty Assurance Committee (ESTAC)
The role of the Englneermg, Science and Techmcal Capability Assurance Commrttee is to support ‘the board by
reviewing the status of the Company’s Engineering, Science, Technology and Nuclear Threat Reduction capabrlmes

and of its techmcal outreach and international relatlons

The Commrttee meets a minimum of four times a year and is chaired by a non-executive director, Dame Sue Ion. The -

" other commlttee members are Dr J Stephen Rottler (non-executive director), Mr Henry Lloyd (non-executive director) -

and four mdependent advrsors The Lommlttee was formed in 2022 w1th its maugural meetlng in April 2022.

There were 5 full day sessions in the reportmg penod on7 Aprll 2022,29 June 2022,7 September 2022, 30 November,
2022 and 31 January 2023

Performance during the pertod

The Comm1ttee has consrdered the followmg rnatters durmg the perrod

overview of AWE organisation’s technical gov.emance_ :
annual capability assessments 2021 and 2022 - '

" Replacement Warhead programme and governance arrangements
Non-Nuclear Components (NNC) strategy ‘
science and engineering view of the Hub
AWE National Nuclear Serv1ces Laboratory
outreach strategy
Annual Assessment of Stockptle Health (AASH) 2022
AWE Technical Authorities Advice ’ T o .

. potent1a1 Defence Scrence and Technology Laboratory (DSTL) Radiation Sc1ence Group (RSG) transfer to,

AWE
hydrodynamics trrals plan and capablllty mcl EPURE and ﬁrlng point 2.
materials and analytical science and labs capabrlrtyp

© The Committee has undertaken tours of the 'folloWin'g_facilities:

Non-Nuclear Components Facility (NNC) Facility

"High Performance Computing (HPC) F acrlrty

hydrodynarhics facilities :
forensics, analytical chemistry and radiochemistry- facrllty (joint tour wrth SESH&Q committee) ’
dosimetry and bioassay facility (]omt tour with SESH&Q commrttee)
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Infrastructure Committee

. The Infrastructure ‘Committee reviews the planning and execution of AWE’s capital infrastructure new build and
refurbishment programmeé in support of its current and future operations. This includes the overview of processes
adopted for the planning and execution of individual projects and programmes and the measures taken to address risks
associated with the programme delivery. It reports to the board on the adequacy of controls in place and the validity
-of the cost and schedule projections provrded to the MOD. The Comm1ttee also receives updates on safety performance

" across the capltal portfolro

The Committee meets a minimum of three times a year and-more frequently if there are specific programme
considerations. The Committee is chaired by a non-executive director. During the period, the Chair of the committee
. was mltlally held by Andrew McNaughton At the point of his transfer to an Executive position within the organisation,
. the rol€ of chair was adopted by Richard Elsy who was previously a committee member. The other committee
members in the reporting period were non-executive directors — Richard Keys, and Henry Lloyd.

" Thé Committee has significant interface with the Production and Programme Committee given the need to implement
" ‘significant infrastructure investment whilst maintaining full operational capability.

Pelformance during the period

The Commrttee has considered the followmg significant matters:
. the management and performance of supply chain . P - S

«  the effectiveness of the Company s dpproach to sequencing of programmes lo deLOllﬂlt,t between 1nd1v1dual
projects and operatxonal requirements

« the progress of each programme agamst its plan to lnclude cost schedule and antrcrpated outcomes agamst
" approved fundlng levels :

e 'the alignment between the schedule for the portfollo of prOJects against the Company s strateglc busmess
plan .

‘o the assessment of funding mechanisms for‘major programmes against the defln'ed delivery outcomes -

~» the relationship with strategic contractors and suppliers and in partrcular the relevant commercrals selected
' for the delivery of specific projects

Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committee reviews the membership and composition of the board and its Committees, including
the appointment of directors and executives. The Committee also considers succession planning for the board and
executive teams, talent management leadership development and Equality, -Diversity & Inclusion strateg1es and
performance

: The Committee meets twice a year, and is chaired by the Charrman of the board Str John Manzom other committee
‘ members are Richard Elsy, Claire Flint, and Henry Lloyd

Performance during the perwd

The Committee met twrce in the reporting perrod and focused on executive succession, talent management of 'the
leadershlp population and the advancement of equality, diversity, and inclusion at AWE.
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The principal activities of the Nomination Committee during the year were:

. e Executive and board Succession The Committee reviewed changes to the Executive team in-the year ended
31 March 2023, including the introduction of a Chief Operating Officer role and Executive Director Fissile
Infrastructure, and succession for three executives who indicated their intention to leave in or shortly after
the end of the reporting period. The Committee reviewed succession plans for each role including CEO. - It
was noted that the Executive is 30% female and 100% white and there was opportunity in recruitment activity

- to improve in both gender and ethnic diversity for the Executive team. An improvement in succession for
core operational business areas and the number of immediate suitable successors for the Executive team were
observed. The Company’s newly launched high potential programme was appraised and supported.

In addition the Committee considered the arrangements for board succession, particularly in the light of one
noni-executive director’s transitioning to the Executive Director Fissile Infrastructure role and the need to
replace them as a non-executive director. Further, the Committee discussed the fact that the simultaneous
appointment of many of the non-executive directors on AWE’s transition to NDPB status means that their
. terms of office expire at the same time, and considered measures to mitigate the impact on board continuity
should this mean that a number of non-executive directors stepped down from'the board at the same time.

o Leadership & Manager capability The Committee reviewed the activity in place to improve leadership and
line manager capability aligned with the strategic ambition of the organisation. This included a sngmﬁcant
.. step forward through investment in AWE's leadership development.
. Equallty, Diversity & Inclusion ‘The Committee agreed and set diversity targets recognising the stretch-
- target for nuclear and defence sector for 40% female for 2030. The committee noted AWE was recruiting
more females into the organisation, dbove the 22%. female talent ponl ‘however more was needed to be done
to reach the 2030 ambltlon

The Committee noted the plans in the strategy, including greater working families support as well and
reproductive health, were designed to improve diversity and inclusion at all levels of the organisation. The
committee recognised the emergmg location strategy would be a key enabler of greater cognitive as well as
demographic dlver51ty

- Production and Programme Committee

The Production and Programmes Committee reviews the execution by the Company of the programme of work it is
undertaking for its customers, with particular focus on that carried out for the MOD. In domg this it reviews the
forward plan of programmes, prOJects and busmess cases coming to the board for approval. -

The Committee also reviews the. output of the Company’s production facilities and its performance against schedule.
The Committee was established in September 2021 and meets four times per year and as matters arise. The Committee
-is chaired by a non-executive director, Richard Elsy. The other committee members in the reporting period were non-

executive directors ~ Andrew McNaughton, Henry Lloyd, Nicole Kett, Dame Sue Ion and DrJ Stephen R'ottler.

The Terms-of Reference for the Committee also allow for representation from industrial experts to prov1de the
Company w1th guidance and experience from other advanced manufacturing sectors.

Performance during the period '
The Committee has considered the followih'g matters during the period:
e Deployment of transforr-nation‘ac'tivities in Operations To Help improve overall operational perforfnance, )
-manufacturing industry “best practice” fechniques and processes have been benchmarked and a plan

formulated to embrace these within AWE plc Operanons This year has seen us move from the planning.
phase into the initial stages of 1mplementat10n
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.. Investments for the Laboratories and Trials Delivery Unit A’ conSIderable amount of work has been done
to define and agree a directional plan for Laboratory and Trials equxpment investment needed for AWE’s
future programmes. One major investment “The Hub” has been approved and will start full construction in
2023 now that the ground has been prepared. ‘ o ' '

» Digitising operations A major programme to fully digitise our engineering and operations, in line with
industry best practice has been defined and agreed. Preparation work to get ready for implementation is -
underway. During 2023 there will be a ramp up of activities within operations to deliver the project, named
Odin, and the benefits defined in the business case.

¢ Development of Prolect Endurance In line with Operations seekmg to adopt best practice our PMO has
also undertaken a project to streamline performance and enhance management information systems. The
committee has reviewed these plans and supported the 1mplementation of this prolect named Endurance.

e Programme deep dives Several valuable deep dives into the individual prOJects that make up the forward
plan have been conducted throughout the year and regular updates are reported into the committee across the
Warhead Portfolio. . : .

o Deep dives into specific facilities A regular schedule of deep dives into the production Technology Centres
have been conducted throughout the year focusing on operational excellence and cross-businéss best practice.

Securlty, Envnronment Safety, Health, and Quality Comnmittee (SESH&Q)

The SESH&Q Committee provides independent assurance to the board that effective arrangements are in place for
the management of security, environment, safety, health, and quality matters at AWE. The SESH&Q committee
-monitors and reviews the Company’s SESH&Q performance and supports the executive team on effective strategies
for eliminating or mitigating related risks. As a key part of its remit, the Committee reviews the principles, policies,
ard processes adopted by the Company in complying with statutory and regulatory requirements in relation to
SESH&Q matters affecting the Company’s business. It provides assurance to the board that the executive team is
effectively managing risk and exercising suitable controls with respect to SESH&Q matters. -

The Committee meets quarterly and is chaired by a non-executive director, Dr J Stephen Rottler. The other committee

‘members in the reporting périod were non-executive directors — Claire Flint, Dame Sue Ion and Henry Lloyd,
supported by independent advisors. Every other month, the chair meets.one-on-one and in small groups with Company
management and staff to review and.discuss the Company’s SESH&Q performance, risk management, and related
improvement- programmes. The Committee chair also meets quarterly with the ONR Deputy Chief Inspector for
Operating Facilities to discuss the Company’s performance as a nuclear licensee and review ONR concerns about the
* Company. :

Performance during the period

Over the past year, the Committee has considered the following significant’ matters
e regular review of the Company s security, environment, safety, health, and quality performance
* deepdives into Security and Cyber-Security ’

o ageing estate and legacy assets. This paper provided an update on AWE’s ageing infrastructure posmon and
Asset Management approach to future sustamment - :

e abrief on the i 1ssue and plan to resolve on site transformers followmg an event at AWE Aldermaston site,
where a high voltage transformer link box failed due to an over pressure. This operated the high voltage
switchboard safety devices and shut down the transformer. The investigation has been completed resulting
in actions to prevent reoccurrence, a wider leaming reference asset management has been identified

e board leadership and sustainéd safety performance and closure of level 1 regulatory issue. This paper put
forward the means of demonstration by the board and its committee members

. the future proofing of Safety case delivery was discussed. Which identified improvement themes to respond -
’ to those challenges in terms of capacity, capability and safety case delivery processes. -
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e an mtroductlon to sustamablhty and the ESG Framework

. msrghts to the AWE Supply Chain, discussed observed issues and understood proposed recommendations to
manage the issues. Proposals rdentrﬁed several actions to confirm and remedy the identified issues. These
include but are not limited to supporting supplier achievement of ISO9001, improvement to and addition of

- supply processes, and Abolishmeht of MOTS |

« project Fleet progress update Followmg feedback from a number of AWE key internal and extemal
* stakeholders that the current AWE approvals and governance processes do not always deliver a successful,
efficient and timely scrutiny/approval of Nuclear Safety cases and/or submissions, the Executive Director

- Corporate Assurance and the Executive Director ESHQ&EE have sponsored Pro;ect Fleet to.re-assess the

overall requirements for safety submissions approvals/governance and to propose an efficient §ystem Wthh :

gives clear accountability and is propomonal to the hazards/risks involved

. Remuneraﬁon Committee

The Remuneration Committee supports the board by conducting oversight of the management of reward. This includes
ensuring that AWE’s remuneration policies fit within public sector pay policies or the freedoms granted to AWE by
..government, whilst enabling it to attract and retain people with the experience, skills and capabilities to deliver the
AWE mission. The Committee meets-at least four times a year and is chaired by a non-executive director; Claire Flint.
The other committee members were non-executive directors as follows: Richard Keys and Henry Lloyd. The chair of -
the Committee issues a report providing appropriately detailed commentary on.remuneration approach, rationale and .
outcomes (including effectiveness of any freedoms) on an annual basis through the Remuneration Report section of
the AWE Annual Report and- Accounts.

Performance during the period

'The Committee.has met six times during the reporting period. It has considered the .20’22 and 2023 pay awards for all
employees and conducted a detailed review and benchmarking exercise for Executive incentive schemes. Performance
measures and subsequent outcomes for incentive schemes were also agreed. The Committee has monitored the
performance management outcomes for all employees and continued, in consultation with HMG, to develop a broad

- reward framework for all employees that will enable the attraction and retention of the skills and capabilities needed. -
Willis Towers Watson-(WTW) have been appointed to provide advice to the Committee on executive remuneration
including benchmarking. The Committee considers the advice provided by WTW alongside other information and

" data as part of its decision making. WTW also provide 1nves§ment and actuarial advice on pensions to the Company.
There is no-connection between any individual director and WTW. ' .

Risk management, :

AWE’s risk ‘management framework aligns with HM Treasury Guidance and the Cabinet Office Framework for the -
Management of Risk in Government and SO 31000:2018 Risk Management. .

AWE ‘applies_ a structured risk methodology, _which-, identifies threats in the buslness that have the potential to impact
on the Company. Risk and Opportunity Management is embedded in the management processes and reported through
the Executive Committees, Programme Performance Reviews and Risk and Opportunity Managemerit boards.

As a nuclear licenced site, AWE has a ‘Cau;ious Risk Culture’ in our day-to-day operations. This is defined as:

e . apreference for delivery options that have a low degree of residual ris_k_' '
) applying innovation prudently where the risks are low and are fully understo'od

e  consideration of some near-term mvestment to dehver benefits where there is’high benefits realrsatron
cenamty :
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“Both: management and external stakeholders expect decisions regarding deliverables, current and new technologies
and systems to be made carefully and with great attention to detarl risks and safety. We accept some schedule risk on .
key projects, such as modernisation of the site.

AWE’s risk appetite is embedded within the Company s. assessment of risks and the assocrated responses Our risk
appetite is regularly revrewed '

Modern Slavery Act

" The Company supports the Governmerit’s objectives to eradicate modern slavery and human traffic. It carries out
measures in relation. to its employees and its supply chain to verify that it is not supporting these practices either
directly or indirectly. Further information is set out in the modern slavery statement on the Company’s website.

i Effectiveness of control environment
. Internal Control '

. ‘AWE has a mature financial control framework which is de51gned to mmgate the risk of material financial error or

_ misstatement. The financial control framework was introduced in 2017 when AWE was required to demonstrate )
‘conformance with US Sarbanes Oxley (SOX), following Lockheed Martin’s acquisition of a controlling interest in
AWE ML, AWE’s then parent company. There is clear ownership of financial processes 'and individual controls, a
compliance testing regime, and a process to monitor controls in need of remediation. AWE is now required to comply
with the MOD’s Internal Control Assurance Framework which is a similar financial control framework to SOX. '
AWE’s controls are mapped against MODs controls annually, which identified three low-risk gaps (Import Duty,
Busmess Cases and Delegatron of Authorlty) for this year. These gaps are being addressed by process owners.

The Company Management System captures the policies and procedures that the orgamsatron operates to, against 16
high level processes. It describes what AWE does and how it does it through 16 end-to-end processes that operate
across functions to reflect the way work and information flows. It contains high level policies, processes, and detailed
procedures to ensure that activities are conducted in a safe and consistent. manner, ensuring they comply with
regulatory requrrements in particular the Office for Nuclear Regulation (ONR) Licence Condrtrons

The Company Management System has been approved against ISO9001:2015 (Quallty Management) and
ISOl4001 2015 (Envrronmental Management) standards ’

: Assurance

The Company adopts the three lines model as recommended within the HM Treasury gurdance and i is continuing to
mature the associated Assurance Map. co

. There is a designated Corporate Assurance and Legal (CAL) function which consists of Internal Audit, Internal
Regulation, Technical Assurance and Legal. The purpose of CAL is to provide independent and ob)ectwe assurance
and legal advice to the company. : .

Intemal Audit provides risk-based assurance over the operauon of tisk: management mternal control and govemance
processes

' Internal Regulation provides independent peer review of safety submissions, audit/inspection against ONR Licence
" Conditions and a programme of facrllty surveillance, providing independent technlcal assessment to the executive
along with-Regulators.

Technical Assurance deliver a programme of independent reviews of AWE technical capability. They assess specific
technical areas within the busmess and provide the AWE Executive and key stakeholders mformatlon to help 1nform
_decision making. S .

A combined plan of the Corporate Assurance activities is produced to demonstrate coverage of the strategic risks and
allow for progress against the plan to be momtored and discussed at the approprrate Executlve Commrttee meeting
and relevant board ‘sub- commrttee ’
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_ Head of Internal Audit opinion

_The Head of Intemal Audit’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2023 noted that the Internal Audit programme
- of work undertaken during the year was developed to provrde assurance against the 14 strategic risks. The approach
to each activity is risk-based and aims to support the expressron ‘ofa formal opinion on the overall effectiveness of :
internal control:

An opinion of Limited Assurance is provided by the Head of Internal Audit on the adequacy and effectiveness of
. governance, risk management and control. This opinion corresponds to a finding that the system of internal controls
is operatmg effectively except for some areas where Sigmﬁcant weaknesses have been 1dentified

~The report noted that Intema] Financ1al Control is an area where an opinion of Substantial Assurance is provided. This
is based on the adequacy of the related governance, risk management and controls which consist of clearly defined
~ controls with’ oversrght by a deSignated compliance team :

Internal Audit place reliance on the activities of the Internal Regulation and Quality Management System Compliance -
teams for assurance over environment, safety and health and production related activities. Intemal Audit reviews the
approach and processes of these teams which were given Substantial Assurance

Recurring themes from individual audits were highlighted including process compliance / improvement data accuracy
and local risk management. Planning of i improvement projects was also highlighted, where several medium-risk issues
* were identified at an individual improvement programme level. Detailed, resourced implementation’ plans were not'
available to prov1de corifidence that the benefits would be delivered in the deSired timescales

The report recognised that the Company ‘continues to undertake significant orgamsational change in-order to meet the .
future programme demand. It also acknowledges that during the period AWE was in the process of maturmg its .
. approach to risk management and internal control framework .

The Head of. Internal Audit’s opimon of Limited Assurance has been accepted and agreed by the Executive noting the
context of the. significant period of transformation'that AWE is undergoing currently. Management actions are in
~ place to address weaknesses speCifically identified through the work of Internal Audit and the these will continue to -
. be monitored by Internal Audit with-appropriate overview from the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee.

Anti'-corruptiori and bribery A

AWE has a zero-tolerance approach to bribery and corruptio_n and commits to acting professionally, fairly and with
integrity in all its business dealings and relationships. AWE implements and enforces effective systems to counter
bribery wherever it operates, AWE upholds all applicable laws relevant to countering briberyiand corruption. .

The Company provides, training on compliance with laws (including those relating to anti-bribery and corruption)
regulations, professional standards and the AWE Code of Conduct to all employees j joining the firm, and every two
years thereafter. It keeps under review its anti-bribery systems and controls to ensure that these meet the. requirements..
of legislation : .

Whistleblowmg arrangements ) .

AWE offers a number of mechanisms through which employees and contractors can raise concerns or blow. the
whistle. These include an internal phone number and e-mail address, a helpline and website supported by an external
provider, Safecall, and an Ethics office. The mechanisms for contact are all monitored by the Ethics Manager who
"carries out.any investigations that are required, including workmg with Subject Matter Experts as appropriate.

- Anonymous reports can be made through the internal phone line and through the external provider. The non-executive
lead on ethics for the board of directors is Claire Flint. : -

AWE keeps a record of the number of contacts with the Ethics department. Whilst. the overall number of contacts *
continues to increase, none of the cases raised in the period would be described as whistleblowing in the legal sense.
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The increase in-contacts between these two years indicates that the methods for raising issues are increasingly used
and effective, enabling minor issues to be resolved informally and more serious issues to go through due process. A
range of methods to promote the ways to raise concerns are used including.regular articles in in-house publications,
presentations to teams and posters circulated to all buildings on all sites. A Whistleblowing policy and procedure are
available in addition to the Code of Ethics. There is also an Ethics intranet site which has mformatlon for workers
including links to relevant documents and the detalls for ralsmg concerns.

Annual ethics trammg is mandatory for all employees and typlcally 97% of those requlred to complete it do 50 within
a four-week period. ‘

Governanceframework

AWE has adopted an mtemal governance model which is genérally consistent w1th the principles of the Financial -
Reporting Council’s UK Corporate Governance Code 2018. There are certain respects in which AWE does not comply .
with the Code, prmmpally as a result of its being an NDPB These are as follows:

. ,General AWE’s report and accounts have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as explamed in the
accounts' and having regard to the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual (FReM), which contains
requirements for disclosure on similar lines to those addressed by the Code. Where differences exist between
the requirements of the Code and the FReM, AWE has addressed disclosure in light of the FReM
requirements. - ’

o . Workforce engagement AWE’s commumcatlon -and engagement with its workforce is described in the

" . People Report. This is a comprehensive set of processes building .on those in place under the previous
ownership structure and includes full engagenicnt by the board and remuneration committee on key areas.
The board is satisfied, at the present time, that this provides the most optimal approach and has not adopted
any of the three options suggested by. the Code. (Provision 5).

e Annual re-election of directors Under AWE’s Articles of Association its single shareholder may termmate
the appomtment of a director on notice taking immediate effect so directors are not subject to annual re-
election. (Pravision 18). -

.o - Appointment of external auditor Under the terms of the Framework Agreement between AWE and the

.MOD, the Comptroller and Auditor General assisted by the National Audit Office acts as AWE’s external -
independent auditor and was appomted by AWE to carry out this role w1thout atendering exerc1se (Prov1510n
; 26). "
"« Remuneration of non-executive directors and Chair The remuneration of the non- executlve Chair and of |
" the non-executive directors is set by the Secretary of State in each case. (Provisions 33 and 34).

Accounting Officer’s introduction'

~ The Chief Executive Officer and designated AO of AWE is personally respon51b1e for safeguardmg the public funds

.under their control, for ensuring propriéty, regularity, and value for money in the handling of those public funds, for
" keeping proper records, for safeguarding the Company’s assets, and for the day-to-day operations and management
of AWE. The AO is required to ensure that AWE is run on the basis of the governance, decision-making and financial
management standards that are set out in HM Treasury’s ‘Managing Public Money’. This Governance Statement sets
out how the AO has dlscharged these responsibilities durmg the reportmg period. :

"Role of the Accounting Officer .
The AO’s role is fully set out in the Framework Document The AO s respon31b111t1es include ensurmg that effective.

systems of corporate governance are in place mcludmg adequate systems for internal ‘and ﬁnanmal control and
effective measures against fraud and theft. :
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_ Accounting Officer’s Annual Assurance Report

- The report was prepared and submitted to the Department. where the AO gave a Limited Assurance opinion.  This
opinion remains the same as reported in 2021-22. This reflects the changes that have resulted from transition to an -
.. NDPB and the ongoing transformation programme. Whilst some improvement initiatives were 1mplemented during

the year, they were not fully embedded to change the opinion. The initiatives are designed to transform the way AWE -
* operates, clarlfylng accountability and providing a more defined control environment and assurance framework.

Conclusion .

This report is for the year ended 31 March 2023 and, in relatlon to significant balance sheet events to. the date of '
51gmng .

The Busmess Plan sets out what AWE needs to achieve and pnontlses the need to modemlse delivery. AWE’s change .
of operating model during the period will bring with it clarity on the-role that functions play; including responsibility
for defining, operatmg, and ‘assessing compllance with the policies and procédures that make up the control
envnonment . : : ~

The continued operatlon of a mature ﬁnanclal control environment prov1des asolid foundatlon for developmg AWE’s
other, non- ﬁnanc1al controls and ensure their operation is consistently ev1denced and monitored.

Through developing and articulating the key controls the overall control environment will be’ clariﬁed and
strengthened where appropriate. This activity will support the contmumg assessment of the efficacy of the control

" environment in future years.

- Performance against the business plan will continue to ‘be closely. monitored through the Executive governance
structure and the board demonstrating commitment to implementing and embedding improved working practices.
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Overview

This Remuneration Report mc]udes the remuneration of the Chair and other members of the board of AWE. The
Remuneration Committee oversees and governs the réemuneration policy and its 1mplementat10n Changes ‘in the

composition of the board and a summary of its members’ attendance at'scheduled meetings in the year ended 31 March Ny
2023 are shown in the Directors’ Report and Govemance Statement on pages 35 and 40 respectively.

Remuneratnon pohcy .

The Committee’s prrorlty is to ensure that remuneration policy is sufficient for AWE to be able to attract and retain
talented staff with the skills, values and behaviours required to deliver AWE’s mission.

As an NDPB, AWE is required to align with the Government’s approach to public sector pay policy and.ensure that-
pay awards are fair to public sector workers and the taxpayer. To meet its unique needs and ensure it can retain a _
competitive offering, AWE has been granted exemption from the Public Sector Pay Remit to allow’it-to separately -
negotiate with its Trade Unions a suitable pay deal for its employees. The use of these freedoms, and wider AWE
remuneration policy, is overseen by the Commlttee to ensure they remain in lme w1th wider public sector policy and
company performance

~ In application of the remuneration policy for 2022-23, annual incentive payments were determined by an assessment

of company performance as well as individual performance of those board members eligible for incentives. Long-

- term incentives payments were determmed by the overall company and individual performance over the 3-year period
to 31 March 2023

Directors’ contracts
Directors were appomted and their remuneratlon determined as follows:

... Executlve Dlrectors Appomted Wlth the approval of the MOD, and remuneration reviewed by the
Remuneratlon Committee with reference to the prevailing market condmons
o Alison Atkinson (Chief Executive Officer)
o. Barry Hunter (Chief Financial Officer)
o Andrew McNaughton - a Non-executive Director prior to begmnlng a new role as Executwe
Director at AWE on 6 February 2023, however retained his status as a statutory- drrector of AWE
plc .

« Chairman Appomted by the MOD and remuneration decided by the MOD w1th reference to the prevallmg
- market conditions:
o  Sir John Manzoni (Charrman)

. Shareholder representative non-executive director Representative director of the sole shareholder in the
- Company, appointed by the MOD They are not separately remunerated for their role as directors of the
.Company:
. o Henry Lloyd (MOD appointed non-executive director) -
o Nlco]e Kett (MOD appointed non- executlve director) - stepped down from-the board onl June 2022%

o Non-executlve directors Appointed with the approval of the MOD, and remuneration decided by the MOD
- in line with the remuneration set for other mdependent non-executive directors: .
o Richard Elsy
Claire Flint
Dame Sue Ion
Richard Keys o :
DrJ Stephen Rottler -~ ' ' .

O 0 0O
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Directors’ remuneration

The fees or salaries that were paid to the directors for the year ended 31' March 2023 are shown below. The prior year
figures are shown for the 9 month period following AWE becoming an NDPB on 1 July 2021 and ‘ending 31 March
" 2022 (employed director full year equivalent fees and salary are shown in brackets) Benefits in kmd values reflect
the premium paid for private medrcal insurance.

' Long-term | . .
- : Fees & Annual Benefitsin | Pension
Fullpame | Year : . - incentive . Total (£)
‘salary (%) | bonus (£) payment (£) lqnd (£) |Benefits (£) 4
Sir John Manzoni | 2022-23 150,000 . - " - ' 150,000
202122 112,500 . i B 4 . 112,500,
Alison Atkinson * | 2022-23] . 407,365 173,250 ‘ 4 . 4 4 580,615
2021-22 296,625 ' ' :
o ‘ . (395,500) | 4 . . 2,894 : .._ 299,5_19
Barry Hunter 2022-23 257,500 4 o4 285200 0 33,475 293,495
’ ‘ 2021-22 109,523 N o : 4
| | (250,000) | . T .1,260. - 14,812 125,595
“Richard Elsy- 2022-23| . 29,995/ o . - A 29,995
2021-22] 22,496 v . . . .- . 22,496,
Claire Flint .~ [ 2022-23 29,995 - : . R Cod 29,995
2021-22 22,496 4 4. - . 22,496
Dame Sue lon | 2022-23, 29,995 . - e - 29,995
- : |- 2021-22 22,496 1 1 4 - 1 - 22,496
" [Nicole Kett -2 2022-23 R e 4 - R 4 N
o -2021-22 ) g 4 4. 4 - -
Richard Keys 2022-23 - 29,995 I - - A - 29,995
' - ' -2021-22) . 22,496/ 4 . 1 e - 22,496
- [Henry Lloyd.! 2022-23 i 4 . i Yol -
' » 202122 14 ;- 1 .
lAndrew - - 2022-23 24,996/ - I 4 N I 24,996
McNaughton 2021-22 ' : o o
(to 5 Feb 2023) 3 . 22496 1 ] - ] 22,496
Andrew - - -2022-23 60,478 . B »
[McNaughton 1 (395.500) 1T 1 . 60478
(from 6 Feb 2023) | 2021-22) ’ . .
5 - - - - - o]
Dr J Stephen - 2022-23 29,995 e o . o o 29,995
ottler - - 2021-22] 22,907, - B - B 22,907,

! Nicole Kett and Henry Lloyd were Civil Servrce employees who recerved no addrtronal remuneration for duties as

a director of AWE.

2Nicole Kett resigned as a Shareholder representative non- executrve director on 1 June 2022.

.3 Andrew McNaughton began a new role as Executive Director on 6 February 2023, however retained his status as a
~ statutory director of AWE. He was paid £24, 996 in fees up to 5 February 2023 for his role as a non-executive

director.

4 Following Alison Atkinson submlttmg notice of her resignation, a clawback provision was triggered in respect of a

. buyout payment made in 2021 prior to change of ownership for in-flight long term incentive schemes. As per the

- terms of this buyout, Alison Atkinson was required to repay part of this payment, equating to £142,500. This was
repaid in June 2023, and has therefore not been deducted from the 2022-23 salary figures disclosed in this report.
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Pension entitlements

AWE offers a deﬁned contribution scheme (Group Personal Pension). Executlve directors are entitled to the same
. contribution structure as all employees. In the reported period only one Executive director, Barry Hunter, participated
in this plan and received employer contributions at 13% of his salary, which is detailed in the rémuneration table.
Alison Atkinson and Andrew McNaughton (for the period since comniencing his Executive Director role), the other
Executive directors, recewed a taxable payment in lieu of pension equivalent to 13% of their base salary. This payment
is included within the Fees & salary ﬁgure in the, remunerat1on table.

Falr Pay Disclosures.

~ Reporting bodles are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the hlghest pa1d dlrector and
the median remuneratron of the Company’s workforce. :

% Change

lRemuneration element Catego 202223 2021-22
gory (annualised) (annualised)
| - Highest paid £407,365 £395,500 3%
: director . ) v
_ [Salary and allowances- RS . e
ge o £52,546 £50,162 5%
employees ; .
: Highest paid e A 290
Performance pay nnd director £173,250 £359,243 ‘(,524)
[ponuses Average for . £2,757 C£1,219 126%
employees :

Employee’s ﬁgure excludes the hlghest paid director. .

Remuneratlon in the ratios table below and staff ranges refers to annuahsed salary, performance pay- and beneﬁts It
does not include any pension values . -

Pay ratros \] hlghest paid-director:

h : h .
. Year 25%p e:::il;tlle pay .| Median pay ratio 5% e:::il:)tlle pay
2022-23 14:1 “11:1 ) 9:1
2021-22 '. 21:1 16:1» 13:1

_ Reportmg bodies are requ1red to set out for each of the ratios the ‘total pay, performance pay and benefits; and the

salary component of this. The ﬁgures for the ratlos for the year ended 31 March 2023 are below:

Percentile

- Staff ﬁgure: pay mcludmg
perfarmance pay and henefits

- Salary clement only

25" percentile .£40,119 £34,634
Median_ £51,084 £44,835 -
75% percentile " £65,654 £60,118

The pay ratios for all reported statistics have reduced compared to the ratios for the prior period (9 months ended 31
March 2022). This has been driven by a lower performance pay and bonus figures for the highest paid director, as
well the introduction of a performance bonus for other employees who .were not previously eligible for a performance
bonus. The ratlos are consistent with the pay, reward and progressxon pohcres of AWE.

.Actual staff remuneration on an annuahsed basis for full-trme work on 31 March 2023 (mcludmg the highest paid

- director and performance pay; excluding pension beneﬁts) ranges from £11,000 to £580,615 per annum (2022:
£11,000 - £754, 743) ,
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The Remuneranon Commmee recognises the need to be awaré of publlc sector pay constraints and pol|c1es whlch it
-must seek to balance with the need to remain competitive in a private sector market. Base pay and incentive levels
- ‘continue to be carefully reviewed and monitored to ensure they meet the needs of the business, in consultatlon with

the MOD. . : ’
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Overview

AWE is committed to driving high performance through creating a culture of inclusivity, agility, and empowerment.
The People Strategy is designed to deliver this whilst ensuring the continued attraction, retention, and motivation of
highly- skilled employees. Many employees work in high hazard environments, and a strong safety culture,
' underpinned by a full programme of training is maintained.’ Alongside safety, security i$ paramount, given the
importance of AWE’s mission and role in maintaining national security. Many skills are in short supply and the local
employment market is highly competitive, so.it is imperative that AWE’s overall employee value proposition is
. compelling. The information below is set out in lme with reportmg requxrements to mdlcate the effectiveness and
ongoing delivery of this strategy .

Employee Voice

AWE participates in the ‘Best Companies’ engagement survey. The survey within the period of this report was
conducted in May 2022. Under the survey methodology, AWE scored 662. 7 on the engagement index, which places
it within the range of ‘One Star’ companies within the Best Companies’ survey participation group. The maximum
possible is Three Star (for a score of 738). This was a decrease from 682.4 in October 2021, but still mamtammg the
‘One Star status. The employee response rate to this survey was 73%, which compares to-a 61% industry average.
As a result of this survey and through the Best: Compames rankmos AWE was: rated in the “Top 25 Best Big
Compames to work for — 2022’ . ‘

As an organisation» undergoing transformational change, -internal communications and engagement are vitally
important. AWE’s internal communications and engagement strategy is informed by organisational priorities, results-

of engagement surveys and regular meetings with Trade Unlons and other listening forums including Engagement 0

Champions and Employee Voice groups.

Comprehensrve internal communications and engagement plans are developed using a number of channels including
a company intranet, a Communications Briefing Group and subsequent Team Talk cascade, an in-house magazine,
channels focused: on the leadership community and more targeted briefing and ‘toolbox talks’ for those working in
manufacturing facilities and project sites. Recognising that line managers are employees’ most trusted source of
information, AWE invests in ensuring they are able communicators and credible leaders. Several channels, including
a Léadership Conference, bi-annual Leadership Workshops, monthly ezine and Leadership Hub provide messages and
the supporting narrative needed to cascade company information. AWE engages with its employees through its two
Trade Unions (Prospect and Unite the Union) under its voluntary recognition agreement, and via an Emp-loyee Forum.
AWE’s Executive teamare highly visible to employees through the delivery of annual Business Brleﬁngs regular all
employee CEO Q&A sessions, personal blogs and more locally, through walkabouts and at All Hands meetings.

A programme of mandatory‘trammg is in place for all employees.alongsrde role specrﬁc trammg. Line managers are
accountable for working with their -direct reports to create career development plans. Opportunities for internal
secondments to'gain different experiences are provided. Base pay is benchmarked against comparable roles of the
same size in wider industry to create pay ranges for each grade and job family. Pay progressmn is related to
competence qualifications, and performance

AWE plc has an Executive Drrector Env1ronment Safety, Health, Quality & Enterprise Excellence whose -
responsibilities include all safety and eénvironmental matters. It also has an environmental management system which
is central in delivering on AWE’s commitment to protecting the environment. AWE holds ISO. 14001 certification
which is a worldwide recognised environmental management standard. A focus on safety is maintained through
regular safety briefings, ‘safety moments’ and a ‘stop for.safety” initiative whereby the whole of AWE pauses for a
short time to listen, review, and.learn about a topical safety issue.. AWE’s Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and
Dangerous Occurrences Regulations (RIDDOR) In)ury Rate iri the period of the report was 0.032 which compares
favourably to industry benchmarks.
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Trade Union Relationships

The Company has arrangements witH the Trade Uﬁions_ Unite and Prospect which, among other. thiﬁgs, embody
.collective bargaining agreements for pay covering much of the workforce. The data below has been collated in line .
with the Trade Union (Facility Time Publications Requirements) Regulations 2017 for the year ended 31 March 2023. ~ -

Number of employees who were °
relevant union officials during the
relevant period - -

A 46 ’ T 4342
Table 1 — Relevant Union Officials :

Full-time equivalent employee
number

Percentage of time ' * Number of ‘em_bloyees‘

0% T ~ I
1-50% - . S 41
51%-99% . : s
100% oo " co ’

Table 2 — Percentage of time spent on Facility Time

Activity Spend
- Total cost of Facility Time : . £502,048
Total Pay Bill , ‘ £391,046,755
Percentage of pay bill spent on fécility o
time ' ’ AO' 1 3%

Table 3 — Percentage of pay bill spent on Facility Time ,

"Time spent on paid trade union
activities as a percentage of total paid

| facility time hours calculated as: :

(total hours spent on paid trade union ' 100%

activities by relevant union officials | - :

during the relevant period + total paid

facility time hours) x 100

Table 4 — Paid Trade Union activities
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i Eniployee Health & Wellbeing

Sickness absence has been between 2.9% and 3.9% during the 12-month period from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 20_23‘
(sickness absence rates are calculated based on hours sick-as a percentage of available hours). : '

Absence Rate

4.50%

4.00% — - : . . o
3.50% g _ / ~ ' . N i . AV\
3.00% ™~ ' S : — :

© 2.50% e —— ' — e

2.00%

1.50%

1.00%

0.50%.
0.00% r T ..l 8 T ™ — T 4“ |A ' T - T : T T : T - _-l i .
Apr-22  May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22  Sep-22  Oct-22  Nov-22 ‘Dec-22  Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-ZE!.

AWE won three accolades in the 2021 Employee Benefit Awards. These are’prestigious industry awards and an

endorsement of our focus on this aspect of our People Strategy. AWE has a dedicated Wellbeing Manager who has

introduced a wellbeing strategy designed to move from reactive to preventative wellbeing. The focus has been on -
improved use of support tools and the training of 200 wellbeing champions across the business. Mental health remains .
a priority and is supported through theé Mental Health action plan which delivers counselling and proactive return to
work programmes as well as line manager training. A Health Operational Governance board, with Executive
sponsorship, has been created to review absence data in detail and coordinate initiatives. This is underpinned by 4 full
programme of line manager training; toolbox talks and awareness campaigns in line with the Wellbeing comms plan.

' Employment of Disabled Persons'

In 2019 AWE achieved Disability Confident Employer Status, demonstrating its commitment to current and future
. employees with disabilities. Disability Confident is a government scheme designed to encourage employers to recruit

and retain disabled people and those with heaith conditions. It has replaced the. previous Two Ticks Positive About

Disabled People scheme. It is voluntary and has.been developed by employers and disabled people s representatlves

AWE gives full .and fair c0n51derat10n to applications made by disabled persons. Ind1v1dual circumstances regarding
disability are considered and adjusted for throughout the recruitment process by asking if any adjustments are required
at the application form and throughout. AWE complies fully with the Equalities Act 2010 throughout the employee
lifecycle including provision of training, learning and career development. With the increase in virtual learning AWE
is committed to ensurmg online training material is fully accessible to all learners, regardless of whether they have a
disability or not. :

_ AWE ha's a Disability and Neurodiversity (N-able-D) workstream supporting the Diversity and'.lnelusion work of the
organisation, sponsored by the Executive team. The team raise awareness of disabilities and how to support colleagues.

Should an employee acquire.a disability during their employment at AWE, all efforts will be made to ensure
reasonable adjustments for the individual circumstance are in place to enable the employee to continue employment
with” us. AWE has the Passport to Work ‘initiative, which is for employees who have a disability, medical or
neurodivergent condition that requires adjustments to be made for them in the work environment and helps the
employee and thelr manager 1dentify and understand the adjustments required.
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Employee Turnover
Attntlon in AWE i$ calculated by taking the number of staff ex1tmg the organnsanon in the 12 months period prior to
* the reporting date and dividing by the average headcount for the same period. Average headcount is calculated by -

summmg the headcount at each accountmg period end and d1v1d1ng by 12.

The attrition rate for March 2023 was 8. 10%. We experienced an increase in attrition from Apnl 2022 we are currently
‘seemg a downward trend smce October 2022, reﬂectxve of external market condmons and the economic climate.

1 - :
- Attrition rate

| 9.5%

“| g.0%

’i‘7.s% —

7.0% . . . ; S [ S o ,
Apr22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 AugZZ Sep 22 OthZ Nov-22 " Dec-22 Ja'n-23 Feb 23 Mar23

i e 2l e e e

. Staff composition (FTE)
Staff.composition for year ended 31 March 2023

The overall-proportion of female staff based on full-time-equivalent (FTE) at 31 March 2023 is 24.3% compared to
23.7% reported at 25 March 2022 (excluding Zero Hours contracts). The total: employee figure disclosed below is
_ different to the total disclosed in the staff costs and numbers section of this report This is due to the figures below

reﬂectmg the posmon at perlod end. :

31 March 2023 | , 31 March 2022

* Staff catégory | ' . : .

o Number (FTE) _ % . Number (FTE) %
Directors - Total Directord— 10 ’ . Total Directors — 11
Male ° ‘ . 7 100% | . . ST 63.6%
Female o 3 S 30.0% 4 " 36.4%
Ex . ) Total Executlve Team — : *  Total Executive Team —

xecutive . )
_ 1 . 10 4

‘Male ' .9 81.8% | . : .9 . 90.0%
Female I ‘ 2 18.2% ‘ 1 " 10.0%
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. People Report (continued)

Staff category 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number (FTE) | - % ‘Number (FTE) S %

Senior._rrlanageré ~ Total serrior managers -265 t "Total senior managers — 243

Male T 204 O 710% ‘ 188 o 71.4%
Female : ‘ 61| . 23.0% : 55 : 22.6%
Employees | Total other empldye_és -6387 . Total other employees — 6,025

Male A T 4832 757% | 4,600 o 763%
Female - 1,555 | 24.3% 1,425 : ©23.7% |

Excluding zero hours and secondees in..
Off;payroll engagements

- As part of the review of tax arrangements of public sector appointees, published by the Chief Secretary to the Treasury
on 23 May 2012, bodies have been asked to report on their off-payroll engagements and related tax arrangements for
the periods and scope outlined by HM Treasury The report does not include mdependent panel members This data

s shown in the followmg tables.

'The table below sets out the highly paid off- pdyroll worker cngagcments as at 31 March 2023 eaming £245 per day
or greater. | ' ) .

Number of existing arrangements as of 31 March 2023 - 173
Of which, no. that existed: : .

Less than 1 year. : T 70
For between 1 and 2 years : § 41
For between 2 and 3 years R 14
For between 3 and 4 years A . 14
‘For 4 or more years - 34

Table 5 — Highly pazd ojf payroll worker engagements as at 3 1 March 2023, earning £245 per day or greater

The table below sets out all hrghly paid off-payroll worker engagements at any point durmg the year ended 31 March
2023, eammg £245 per day or greater .

Number of. temporary off-payroll workers engaged 193
during the year ended 31 March 2023 - :
Of which: :
Not subject to off-payroll leglslatlon : : . 18
Subject to off-payroll leglslatlon and determined as in- 66
scope of IR35 »
Subject to off-payroll legislation and determined as sout-| -
. 109
of-scope of IR35° : .
No. of engagements reassessed for complrance or 104
assurance purposes during the year . o
Of which: No. of engagements that saw a change to 11
IR35 status following review

Table 6 — Highly paid off-payroll worker engagéments at any pomt a’urmg the-year ended 3 1 March 2023 earning
£245 per day or greater .
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Employment Legislation (IR35) changed in April 2021 to include private sector erganisations to provide an IR35

~ determination of off-payroll workers emplojment status for tax. AWE assess all contingent worker positions for.-
IR35 before advertising the requirement with Public Sector Resourcing to ensure the determination is known from
the outset of the recruitmient process. A Status Determination Statement is produced and provided to the Contingent’
Worker and Public Sector Resourcing between point of offer and before commencement of the assrgnment The
AWE approach to IR35 has been subject to HMRC valrdatlon internal and extemal audlts :

There were no off—payroll engagements for any board members in the perlod of this report

Staff Costs and Staff Numbers

" 15 months ended 31 March 2022

ot

Staff costs ; Year ended 31 March 2023 )
comprise - Permanent | Agency staff Total Permanent . 'Agenc_y staff | Total
- comprt staff (£°000) | - (£'000) (£2000) | staff (£2000) | (£2000) | (£000)
Salarics and 353,290 124,756 | - 378,046 401,579 36,901 | 438,480
wage costs O _ - T
f;’:t‘:l‘“w"t" © 38,370 - 38,370 41,002 - | 41,002
Pension costs __ 39,147 | -1 39,147 45478 | 45478
Redundancy and : , ’ :
severance 116 | - i16 972 , - 972
ayments L o ' . .‘ K
Total 430,923 - 24,756 | . 455,679 489,031 36,901 | 525,932
 Table 7 — Staff costs and staff numbers - : ' ‘
Employee Numbers (FTE) by Job Famlly '
. ’ I Year ended 31 March 2023 15 months ended 31 March 2022
Category "Perman | Agency | Seconde 3 “Perman Agency | Seconde
. ent staff .| " staff es , Total ent staff | staff es - Total
Science 1,169 2 51 1,176 1,143 51 3 1,152
Engineering ' - . R .
and 2,948 67 17 3,032 23581 - 86 34 2,479
manufacturing | - ) ’ i o :
Business 2,391 90 1 2,482 2,751 " 102 12| 2,865
services . : .
| Total 76,508 159 23 |- 6,690 - 6,252 193 4 49.] 6,496 |

Table 8 — Employee numbers (FTE) by Job F amzly

The Craft job family (including roles that carry out various activities on _plant and equipment (e.g.,

installation, repairs,

replacement,’ calibration, testing, modificztions) was allocated to Business Services. in the 15 months ended 31 March 2022 but
now sits within Engmeermg and manufacturing in the year ended 31 March 2023. °
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Peopl_e Repbrt (céntinued)'

Exit packages

ce f_YmTo_n'dFdFsilM:Tr?thHZS_ _1Sr'—th'sIe_n'dedBl]March'?zozz_ _

- Exit - . Number of Total Number of. Total :
o . |- Numberof | ; Number of :

-package . | . other - number of other number of
cost band compulso::y - -departures . | exit packages : gompulsm:y departures | exit packages
_redundancies redundancies .
- v T o agreed v <f by cost band PR agreed by cost band
| <£10,000 - 7 7 - 13 . 13
£10,000- - . : ; . ' :
| £25,000 SR R : ' + 4
£25,00 -
- -£50,000
1 £50,00 -
£100,000
£100,00 -
£150,000
£150,00 -
£200,000
£200,00 -
£250,000
£250,00 -
£300,000
Total . _
| number . ) 1i
of exit
packages
| Total cost : 1 o : : .
of exit - £115,856 £115,856 - £1,380,113 .£1~,380,113
packages ' | ' : S

- AP R S R e 2

Consultancy

Spend for the year ended 31 March 2023 on consultancy dellvered via mdwnduals contracted to provide services for
AWE was.£24.4m (15 months ended 31 March 2022 - £33. lm) :
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Independent Aud1tor S Report to the
Members of AWE plc

Oplmon on financial statements .
I have audited the ﬁnanmal statements of AWE plc for the year ended 31 March 2023 which- compnse the AWE plc:

. . Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

e Income Statement Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity for the penod
then ended; and

e the related notes including the signiﬁcant accounting policies.

" The financial reportmg framework that has been apphed in the preparatlon of the financial statements 1s apphcable'
law and the UK adopted Intematlonal Accountmg Standards. :

In my opinion the ﬁnancral statements

"e give a true and falr view of the state of AWE plc’s affalrs as at 31 March 2023 and its proﬁt for the period - .
then ended; and

o haveé been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted mtematlonal accounting standards; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requrrements of the Compames Act 2006

Basis for opinion :

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Audltmg (ISAs) (UK) and appllcable law. My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responstbzlttzes for the dudit of the
fi nanczal statements section of my report '

“Those standards require me and my staff to comply w1th the Financial Reportmg Council’s Rewsed Ethzcal Standard
201 9.1 am independent of AWE plc in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the.
financial statements in the UK. My staff and I have fulfilled our other ethlcal responsibilities in accordance with these .
requlrements :

I believe. that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and approp'riate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern :
In auditing the financial statements, I have concluded that AWE plc s use of the going. concern ba51s of accounting in
the preparatlon of the financial statements is appropriate. )

My evaluation of the dlrector s assessment of the entity’s ability to contmue to adopt the' going concern basis of
accounting included a review of the evidence supporting the directors’ assessment which included consideration of
the long-term plans-and continued programme of work under the main contract with-the MOD.

‘Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any ‘material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on AWE plc's ability to continue as a going concern fOI
a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorlsed for issue.

My respon51b1ht1es and the responsnbllmes of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant

sectlons of this report.”

Other Informatlon .
The other information comprises mformatlon mcluded in the Annual Report but does not include the financial
statements and my audltor s report thereon The directors are responsrble for the other. information. .

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and except to the extent otherwrse
explicitly stated in my report, I do not express any form of assurance conclusxon thereon. :
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-Independent Audltor s Report to the Members of AWE plc (contmued)

My responsibility is to read the other information and in domg S0, consrder whether the other information is materrally'
inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audrt or otherwise -appears to be materially
misstated. :

If I identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, I am required to determine whether this
gives rise to'a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work I have performed, I
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I.am required to report that fact.

" I'have nothmg to report in thrs regard
~Opinion on other matters prescrlbed by the Compames Act 2006
In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:"

« the information glven in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are-prepared is consistent with the financial statement; and :

o the Strategrc Report and the Drrectors Report have been prepared in accordance with applrcable legal
" requirements. 4

Matters on which I report by exceptlon : : :
In the light of the'’knowledge-and understandmg of AWE plc and its environment obtamed in the course ‘of the audit,
I have not 1dent1ﬁed material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report

" I have nothing to. report in respect of the followmg matters n relatlon to which the Compames Act 2006 requires me -
to report to you if,-in my oplmon

« adequate accounting records have not been kept or retums adequate for my audlt have not been recelved from
branches not visited by my staff; or :

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and'ret'nrn's; or
e Acertain disclosures of director’s remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e a corporate governance statement has not been prepared by the Company; or

« Ihave not received all of the 1nformat10n and explanatlons I require for my audrt

Responsrbllmes of the directors for the financial statements
As explamed more fully in the Statement of Dlrectors Respon31b111t1es the directors are responsible for

. mamtammg proper accounting records

« providing the C&AG with access to all 1nformat10n of which management is’aware that is relevant to the
‘preparatlon of the financial statements such as records documentation and other matters; :

e providing the C&AG with additional information and explanations needed for his audit;

«  providing the C&AG with unrestricted access to persons within AWE plc. from whom the auditor determines
it necessary to obtain audit evxdence : :

e preparing financial statements, which give a true and fair view, in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

« ensuring such internal controls are in place as drrectors determine are necessary to enable the preparatron of .
financial statement to be free from materral mlsstatement whether due to fraud orerror;

. p preparmg the Annual Report in accordance with the Compames Act; and

o  assessing AWE plc’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applrcable matters related to going
concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the directors éither intend to liquidate the
entity or to cease operatlons or have no realistic alternative but to do so. : '
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of AWE plc (continued) .

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of thé ﬁnancial statements _
My responsibility is to audit and report on the financial statements in accordance with' the -applicable law and
TInternational Standards on Audltmg (ISAs) (UK). :

My objectives-are to obtain reasonable assurance -about whether the ﬁnancral statements as a whole are free from

© material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report that includes my opinion. Reasonable

assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
- will always detect a material. misstateient when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in'the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
‘demsrons of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting non-comphance with laws and regulatmns
. including fraud .

[ design procedures in line w1th my responsrbrhtres outlmed above to detect material misstatements in respect of .
" non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud. The extent to which my procedures are capable of

detectmg non—complrance with laws and regulatrons including fraud is detailed below. '

‘ldentlfymg and assessmg potential risks related to non-compllance with laws and regulations, including fraud
Inidentifying and asséssing risks of material misstatement in respect of non- compllance with laws and regulatlons
including fraud I: :

'« considered the nature of the sector control.environment and operatronal performance mcludmg the desrgn
of the AWE plc’s accounting policies, key performance indicators and performance incentives.

. -Inquired of management, AWE plc’s head of internal audit and those charged with governance; including
obtaining-and reviewing suppor'ﬁng documientation relating to AWE plc’s policies and procedures on:

o identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations;
o detecting and respondmg to the risks of fraud; and . '

o the internal controls established to mrtlgate risks related to fraud of non- comphance with laws and
regulations including AWE plc’s controls relating to. AWE plc s complrance with the Compames'
" Act 2006 and Managing Public Money.

. Inqulred of management, AWE plc’ s head of internal audrt and those charged with govemance whether:
o they were aware of any mstances of non- comphance with laws and regulatlons and
o they had knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

"« Discussed with the engagement team and involving relevant internal and external specialists, including
' pensions and financial instruments experts regarding how and wheré fraud might occur in the financial
. statements and any potential md1cators of fraud. . '

As a result of these procedures, I considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within AWE plc for fraud
and identified the greatest potent1a1 for fraud in the following areas: revenue recognition, posting of unusual journals,
complex transactions and bias in management estimates. In common ‘with all audits under ISAs (UK), I am also

required t6 perform specific procedurés to respond to the risk of management override of controls. S

“ I also obtamed an understanding of AWE plc s framework of authority as well as other legal and regulatory
frameworks in which AWE plc operates. I focused on those laws and regulations that had a direct effect on material
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements or that had a fundamental effect on the operations of AWE plc.
The key laws and.regulations I considered. in 'this context included Companieés Act 2006, Atomic Weapons
Establishment Act 1991, Managmg Public Money, employment law, tax legislation and health and safety legislation,
Ofﬂce for Nuclear Regulatlon regulations, Environmental Agency regulations and anti- money laundering regulatlons
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In addltlon I consrdered

: the results of analytrcal procedures to 1dent1fy any unusual or unexpected relatronshlps that. may indicate risks

of material mlsstatement due to fraud,

reviews of mtemal audit reports; and

) knowledoe gamed through enqumes of management to understand the governance and control-processes

relatmg to compliance with laws and regulattons

Audlt response to ldentlﬁed risk
To respond to identified risks resulting from the above procedures

- I reviewed the financial statement dlsclosures and testing to supponing documentation to assess compliance _

with provisions of relevant laws and regulatlons descrlbed above as-having direct effect on the ﬁnancral
statements ’

I enqulred of management -the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee and in-house legal counsel concemmg
actual and potential litigation and claims; '

" I reviewed minutes of meetings of those charged with govemance and the Bodrd and internal audit reports

in addressing the nsk of fraud’ through- management override of controls testing the appropnateness of
Journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements on estimates are indicative of a
potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any 51gn1ﬁcant transactions that are unusual or out51de

" the normal course of busmess and

attended Audit and Risk Assurance Commlttee meetings and had regular c commumcatlon with management '
and internal audit to identify any instances of fraud non- compllance w1th laws and regulatlons and 1rregular :
transactions. : '

I;communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members *
Jincluding internal specialists and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compllance with laws and
regulationis throughout the audit. :

A further descnptlon of my respon51bllltles for the audit of t.he financial statements is located on the Financial
. Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my report.

. Other auditor’s responsnbrlmes : : .
I communicate with those charged with: governance regardmg, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the dudit and 51gn1ﬁcant audit ﬁndmgs mcludmg any sxgmﬁcant deﬁcrencres n- mtemal control that I identify during
my audtt :

Hilary Lower (Senior Statutory Auditor)
27 September 2023 '
. Forandon behalf of the

Comptroller and Auditor General (Statutory Auditor)
"National Audit Office * '
157-197 Buckingham Palace Road

Victoria
London

SWIW 9SP .
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- Financial Statements
incéme Sfate_meht | | |

Year ended 31 March 2023 S » .
' S Year ended " 15 months endéd

© " Note . 31'March2023 31 March 2022

' £'000. £000

Revenue . - L L3 14766660 - 1425739
.Cost of sales - ' 5 (1,498,112) - (1,456,898)

“Gross loss .. ' _ : S B (21,446) . - (31,159)

, Othgr Qperatmg income . . ‘; ‘ . 4 18,405 . | 21,473

" Administrative expenses o s, o - 1,316 T (1,199)

Exceptional items: °

Write-off of pension asset preYlously recoverablq - 5-‘ . o . . o (423,000),

. under contract . . Coe i E .
Operating loss . L 1,725 . (433,.885)
Financial expenses - - e . s o B S (30).

Net financing expense - o o ' ' ) 91 . : (30)

Loss before tax o ' T (1,634) : (433,915)

Taxation - o . 9 .. 5543 ©(5,235)
Profit/(Loss). for the périod - ) ‘ o l ' T L3909 - (439,150)
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Statement of Other Comprehenswe Income
Year ended 31 March 2023

Profit/(Loss) for the period

- Other comprehensive income -

© Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Lossin value of pension asset previously recoverable under

contract (to date of write off)
Actuarial movemient in relation to peﬁsion fund

Othef comprehensive (-loss)/ilicom.e'for'the'period

Total compreheltsive loss tor the period -
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.Year ended 15 months ended

Note - 31 March 2023 *31 March 2022
: " £'000 . £000

3909 . - (439,150)

- (219,000)

N (181,000) 538,000
(181,000) . 319,000

(A77,001) " (120,150)
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Balance Sheet

1

_at 31-March 2023 - , ‘ o
' " Note =~ 31March2023 31 March2022
‘ . £000 - £000
Non-current assets _ ' ' ' ' S
Investments in group companies - . /] e S R S
Other financial assets’ ) 18 T 4 s T
Deferred tax assets - - , N 3 5,161° - 381
Right-of-use assets e (2 : 1,635 1492
' IR ‘ 6801 1,889
.Current assets S ) . ) . . .
Contract assets - . N ~ 3 107,093 " 59,400
. Other financial assets ’ Coo1s 19 : L9
' Trade and other receivables 2 76353 116,806
'Cash and cash equivalents . ’ : N . _ 1i3,371 _ " 74,868
S ' I s 306,836 251,083
‘Total assets S S o 313,637 252,932
Current llab.ilities' o . . o
Lease liabilities S o 9 . s . -8
Trade and other payables . . R 73 © 289,013 226,713
Tax payable . , - L » : - 26l
. Contract liabilities s : 3 S 16,404 : 23,118
Provisions . 16 800 S 1L176
Other financial liabilities I B 7 ’ 106
' - : "’ ' 306,766 - - 252,196
Non-current liabilities - . S , :
Lease liabilities . ° ‘ 19 . 1,051 614
Trade and other payables - - 14 .. 1515 L 2,406
- Employee benefits _ 5 - _ 238,000 o 53,000
" Provisions - ST _ 16 : 376 1,694
Other financial liabilities - C8 L Ly
' ' 240942 57,717
» T(?tal liabilities 547,708 309,913
Net liabilities - ‘ ‘ S (23407) (56,981)

Individual figures may not sum to the total dite to rounding '
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A Equity

' Share capital
‘Retained eamnings -
Cépital reserves

"Total-equity -

Note -

17

17

AWE plc

", Annual report and financial statements
31 March 2023

31 March 2023 31 March2022

£'000 . ©.£000
50 50
(297,121) . ©.(120,031)
63,000 , 63,000
7 (234,071) © - (56,981)

" These financial sfateipents were approved and signed oit behalf of the board on 27 September 2023

I[ain Stevenson
Chief Executive Officer

Comp'any registered number: 02763902
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Statement of Changes in Shareholder S Equlty

Year ended 31 March 2023 : : . S
Share Retained - Capital

: ) . Total equity
A ~ capital earnings ~ reserves S
" Note . ©  £000  £000 - - £000 £000
Balance at | Janvary 2021~ © . o Uso. - 171718 - 17828
Total comprehensnve mcome for the
period . . L . : - . '
Loss for the penod : . o L s 1(439,150) B (439,150)
Other comp'rehensive income Cas S Lo o319000 0 0 < 319,000
Total comprehensrve income for the . T ‘(1 20,150) . ) (120,150)
period . . : K - .
Transacrions wrth owners, recorded
. directly in equity i . ' o . ‘ o
Dividends - o I (17,659) B (17,659)
Capital contrlbutlons : 17 - - - 63,000 , 63,000
" Total contrlbutlons by and dlstrlbutlons to . o - (17,659) © 63,000 45,341
. owners .. st
Balanceat 31 March 2022 - ' o " 50 (120,031) - 63,000 (56,981)
Share" - Retained Capital . . -Total
- capital  earnings  reserves .~ equity
" Note . - £000 £000 - £000 - £000
Balance at | April 2022. - . .- o 50 (120031) - 63,000 (56,981)
Total compre_he_hsive income for the
year L : , ' o '
Profit for theyear - . ~ . . T 3909 S 3,909
Other comprehensive income .~ - B o . (181,000) . _' - (181,000) -
Total comprehensive income for the year - s (177,091) - (77,091
Balance at 31 March 2023 o o 50 . ~(297,121) : 63;000 (234,071)
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‘Cash Flow Statement
. Year ended 31 March 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

" Profit for the year

Adjus;ments for:

Fair value (gains)/losses on derivatives
Interest paid .. L -

’ Deprecmtlon of rlght-of-use assets
Write-off of pension asset
RDEC settlement -
. -Taxation

. Decrease in trade and other receivables:

Increase in contract assets/contract ]iabilities‘

Increase in trade and other payables
Increase/(decrease) in employee benefits

" Decrease in provisions

Tax paid
Net cash from operating activities -

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid . o
Capital contribution
" Principal repayments on leases
" Interest repayments on leases
. Net cash from ﬁnancingactiirities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equlvalents at 1 Apr11 (l January)

. Cash and cash equlvalents ‘at 31 March. (31 '

.December)
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- Note

12

14
15
16

17
17

19

.19

13
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‘15 months ended .

Year ended
* 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£'000 " £000
3,909 (439,150)
a12) 4
21 .26
1,056 L1154
- 423,000
oo (6,392)
(5,543) 5235. . .
(668) (16,123)
40,453 52,065

(54,407) - (37,570

67,066 79,624 -
4,000 (53,000)

- (1,694) (419)
55,418 40,700 .
(5,184) - -
49,566 24,578 .

- (17,659)

- 63,000
(1,043) | (1,090) -

(20) (26)

(1,063) . 44225
48,503 68,803 -
74,868 6,065
123,371 74,868 .
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies

AWE is a public limited company mcorporated domrcrled and reglstered in England 'in the UK. The registered
number is 02763902 and the registered address is Room 20, Building Fl61 2, Atomic Weapons Establishment;
Aldermaston, Readmg, Berkshlre RG7 4PR. The Company’s principal actlvmes are the management and operation
of AWE comprising a number of sites mcludmg Aldermaston and Burghﬁeld on behalf of its parent the MOD. '

These financial statements present information about the Company as.an individual undertakmg and not about its
group. They have been prepared on the basrs set out in the Framework Document as dlrected by the SoS for Defence

- The Company ﬁnancral statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards (“UK-adopted IFRS”). The financial statements have been. prepared for the year -
ended 31 March 2023. -

The accountmg policies set out below have unless otherwrse stated, been applied consrstently to all periods presented

in these financial statements. As an NDPB, the Company also, where considered appropriate, adopts the interpretations -

but not-adaptions of IFRS in the FReM. The Company applles additional disclosure requirements in the FReM, where
‘these are companble with the requirements of the Companies Act. Judgemerits made by the diréctors, in the application
of thes¢ accounting policies that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant '
risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed on page 79. - ‘

Measurement convention

The financial statements are prepared on the hrstoncal cost basis except certain financial assets and habrlmes
(1ncludu1g derlvatlves) that are measured at thelr fair value

Gomg cohcern

The Company's business activities, together wrth the factors likely to affect its future’ development its performance
and position, financial risk management objectives, details of its financial instrument and derivative activities are
“described in the Directors' Report on page 35 and in the accounting policies on pages 72 to 79. '

The Company is-expected to continue to generate positive cash flows on its own account under existing contractual
arrangements with the MOD. The Compa'ny has its banking arrangements with Government Banking. Government
Banking provides a shared banking service across central government ‘and wider public sector customers. Current *
- arrangements include the provision of sufficient funding secured from.the MOD which will enable the Company to
. continue operatmg ’

. The directors consrder that the Company has'a secure long-term position on which to found their expectatlon that the
Company will continue as a going concern, based on the national requirement and-associated funding for the activities
- carried on at the facilities operated by the Company, and the Company’s practical tenure as the operator. The only UK
facilities currently capable of maintaining and manufacturing the nuclear warheads necessary to deliver the UK’s
CASD posture are those managed and operated by the Company. The directors have considered the possibility that
the Company could be replaced with another operator of these facilities within the timeframe to be considered. for
going concern purposes. They have been advised that such a change would require lengthy and substantial regulatory
. and other processes and that consequently there is a sound basis for assuming that the Company will continue to be
the manager and operator of the facilities for that timeframe at a minimum, and that the continuation of the UK’s
CASD policy means that the requlrement for the actxvrty conducted by the Company at the facilities will continue for -
the’ foreseeable future : . ' :

Based on these arrangements, the directors believe that the Company will contmue to receive support from the MOD
in carrying.out its principal activities for a number of years, which is corroborated through funding forecasts received
from the MOD whlch indicate this: :

On the basis of their asses‘sment of the- Company’s financial position, the Company's directors have a reasornable "
expectation that the Company. will be able to continue in operational existence for at least the period through to 30
September 2024 In making this assessment the directors have given sufficient consideration to the current external
social, political, and economic environment and have consrdered the 1mpact of plausrble downside scenarios including
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Gomg concern (continued)

" . the plausibility of a reverse stress case. These events and circumstances do not alter the drrectors assessment of the
Company s ability to contmue as a going concern as set out above. : :

F orelgn currency .
Transactrons in foreign currencies are translated to the Company’s functronal currency at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities deniominated in foreign currencies at the balanice
sheet date are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
differences arising on translation are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are -
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated | using the exchange rate -at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
retranslated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

Financial instruments
()] Recognition and mmal measurement

" Trade receivables are initially recogmsed when they are ongmated All other financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially recogmsed when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provrsrons of the instrument.

A ﬁnancral asset (unless it is a trade receivable without assignificant ﬁnancmg component) or financial lrabrhty is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through proﬁt or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade rece1vable w1thout a srgnrﬁcant financing component is
' mrtrally measured at the transaction price.

.(ii) Classrﬁcanon and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
The Company holds financial assets that are either classified as measured at amortlsed cost or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their 1mt1al recognmon unless the Company changes 1ts busmess
model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the
- first reporting perrod following the change in the business model .

A financial asset is measured at amortlsed cost if it meets both of the following conditions:
o tis held within a busmess model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, and-

« its contractual terms glve rise on specrﬁed dates to cash flows that are solely payments of prmcrpal and 1nterest :
on the prmcrpal amount outstanding. '

Der'iVative financial instruments, like-the forward _foreign currency -contracts held by the Company,-are measured at’
FVTPL. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is récognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company
has elected to not adopt hedge accountmg under IFRS 9. '

-Investments in subsrdrarles are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 9.

Cash and cash equrvalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash
equrvalents for the purpose only of. the cash flow statement. :

A Financial Iiabilities and equity

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL ifitis classified as held-for-trading, it is 4 derivative, or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
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1 Accountlng policies (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised

in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in proﬁt or loss. : :

(m) " Impairment

The Company recogmses loss allowances for expected credlt losses (ECLs) on ﬁnancral assets measured at amortrsed
cost and contract assets (as defined in TFRS 15).

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recogmtlon and
when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost-or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Company'’s historical expenence ‘and informed credrt assessment and including forward-looking information.

"-The Company consrders a financial asset-to be in default when

«  the borrower is unhkely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full without recourse by the Company to
actlons such as realising security (if any. is held), or. .

. the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.
Write-offs .

The gross carrying amount of a ﬁnancral asset is wrltten off (erther pamally or in full) to the extent that there isno .
realistic prospect of recovery. - . .

(iv) Derecognition
Financial assets A
The Company derecognises a ﬁnancral asset when ‘
»  the contractual rights to the cash flows from the ﬁnancral asset expire; or
;' it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in whrch either:
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred; or

" the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownershlp and it
does not retain control of the financial asset. S

'F inancial liabilities

The Company derecogmses a financial liability when its contractual obhgatlons are drscharged ‘cancelled, or expire.
The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different, in which case a new’ ﬁnancral liability based on the modified terms is recognised
at fair value. .

On’ derecognition of a financial liability, the difference‘ between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.
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1 'Accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits '
@) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement in the periods
during which services are rendered by employees. :

. (i) . Defined benefit plans _ '
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net

-, obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits is calculated separately for "

each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employées have eamed in return for their service in the

current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets
- (at bid price) are deducted. The Company determines the net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) for the
_ period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined beneﬁt obhganon at the begmnmg of the accountmg‘
period to the net defined benefit liability/(asset).

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on bonds that have a credit rating of at least AA that have maturity
_ dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are denominated in the currency in which the -
. benefits are expected to be paid.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
"(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest). The Company recognises them
immediately in other-comprehensive income (OCI) and all other expenses related to defined benefit plans in employee

" -benefit expenses in profit or loss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the pomon of the changed benef t related to past
service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss when the plan
amendment or curtailment occurs. The. Company then calculates the current service cost for the remainder of the
reporting period, post the amendment or curtallment using the same actuarial assumptions as those used to remeasure
_ the net defined benefit liability/(asset).

The calculation of the defined beneﬁt-obligations is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method: When the calculation results in a bénefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value
of benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reduchons in future contrlbutlons and takes into
- account the adverse effect of any minimum funding requirements. -

The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. The.
gain or loss on a settlement is the difference between the present value of the defined benefit obligation being settled
as determined on the date of settlement and the settlement price, including any plan assets u'ansferred and any.

©.  payments made directly by the Company in connection with the settlement.

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus if the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employce
and the obligation can be eshmated reliably. .

Provisions 4 ‘ '
A provision is recognised ‘in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive ,obligation asa.
result of a past event, that can be reliably measured, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be

required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by dlscountlng the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects risks specific to the liability. '
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1 . - Accounting policies. (continued)
" Revenue

Income principally comprises revenue from the provision of supplies and services arising -from contracts” with -
customers. It is included within operating iricome, exclusive of related VAT, where applicable. -

. Income from contracts with customers is. recognised in accordance. with IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with’
) Customers which has been applied in full. The Company follows the five-step model in IFRS 15 by applymg the
following steps:  ~

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a‘customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obllgatrons in the contract. -

Step 3: Determine the transaction price. ~ -~ . -

Step 4 Allocate the transactlon prlce to the performance obhgatlons in the contract.

- Step §: Recogmse the revenue when (or as) the entlty satrsﬁes a performance obhgatlon

The bulk of what the Company provides to éxternal customers is the provision of services on a rolling basis, i.e., the
M&O and secondments. The performance obligations in these projects are satisfied over time using output methods
-to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurement of value to the customer using items such as milestones and
time elapsed. In some instances, the Company provides goods and services where the performance obligations are
satisfied at a point in time. In these cases, the perfonnance ‘obligations are deemed to be met when the customer.
assumes control of the relevant asset. :

The profile of i mvorcmg and/or cash payments is not the prlmary dnver of revenue recognition as these are payment
mechanisms and may not be linked to the transfer of control to the customer as explained below.

Invorces issued and/or paid before performance of the service or delrvery of goods will not be 1ncluded in revenue for
the accounting perrod and will be shown as a contract liability on the balance sheet. Revenue is recognised as detalled :
" above and where revenue exceeds the value that has been invoiced, it accumulates as a contract asset.

The primary contract with MOD is the M&O contract‘ This is a Qualifying Defence Contract and requires AWE to
deliver and maintain the nuclear warhead capability of the United Kingdom on behalf of MOD. A suite of agreements
govern the delivery of this obligation which, in addition to the M&O contract, include the Pension Scheme.
‘Management Contract (PMC). Under the M&O ‘contract AWE 1s recompensed for all costs and liabilities arising -
together with a small contractua] margln ' ’

For the duration of AWE’s obllgatlons under- the M&O, it is obliged, inter alia, to. prov1de sultably qualified and
" . experienced personnel to discharge its obligations and acts as employer incurring all the costs, expenses and liabilities
of doing so. This includes the provision of pension benefits for both current employment and the maintenarice of
benefits for current and former employees who have deferred pension rights as members of the Company’s defined
benefit pension scheme. The M&O also requires- the Company to undertake the effective management and
administration of the pension schemes and in exchange AWE is recompensed for all costs and liabilities arising
pursuant to the PMC contract; this obligation contained in the M&O contract bemg fully extended by that contract -
and bemg applicable to services provided under the PMC :

_ While the M&O and PMC are separate coritracts they are closely linked and the latter cannot exist in its current form
. without the former bemg in place and in force. In the opinion of the directors and following the receipt of mdependent
" legal advice, they are satisfied that in substance the PMC is an extension of the M&O and is based on the same
commercial principles of provision of services for consideration.- Accordmgly, these contracts are treated as linked for
the purposes of assessing revenues under IFRSIS

The Company receives payments w1th regards to its pension schemes as .part of the MOD’s fulfilment of the Pension
Management Contract (PMC). The PMC sets out that the MOD is obliged to pay to AWE plc the contributions and
the charges with regards to the ¢ operatron management and administration’ of all AWE pension schemes mcludmg
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1. Accounting policies (continued)
Revenue (commued)

both the defined' benefit and defined contrrbutron schemes Charges include all costs and expenses and include
payments in relation to past servrce deficits. : ’

The payments received by the Company in respect of the defined Benefit pension scheme deﬁc1t fundmg are .
distinguished from the payrments received for regular cost of service pensmn provision primarily in respect of the -
-defined contribution scheme. These latter payments are accounted for as revenue in the income statement. Payments
~ inrespect of the deficit funding are provided as a direct reimbursement of payments made by the Company under a

~ commitment from MOD in respect of liabilities incurred principally in periods prior to the acquisition of the Company
by MOD. This funding obligation is also reflected in the guarantee provided by HM Treasury to the trustees of the -
defined benefit scheme to meet that liability directly should the Company be unable to do s0. Accordingly, the deficit
funding payments from MOD are recognised as a transaction with MOD as shareholder and dealt with as a contribution

to equity.

: Expenses

Fmancmg income and expenses

Financing expenses include interest payable and finance charges on lease liabilities recognised in-profit or loss using ‘

the ‘effective interest. method, unwinding of the discount on provisions, ‘and net foreign exchange losses that are
recognised in the i income statement (see foreign currency accounting policy).

: Fmancmg income compnse interest receivable on funds invested and net forergn exchange gains.

Interest income-and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, usmg the effectlve interest method.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement
except to the extent that it relates to items recogmsed directly in equity, in-which case it is recognised in equ1ty

Current tax is the expected tax payable or recelvable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substannvely enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Current tax takes .mto .con51derat10n the tax payable on any imputed profit over and above the profit reco_rded in the
taxable income or loss for the year with regards to the performance of contracts with customers. The imputed profitarises
in circumstances where the profit applied for the purposes of assessmg the tax llablhty on any contract 1s assessed to be .
different to the profit reported in revenue, and therefore the taxable income or loss.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes-and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrymg amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utrlrsed :

Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of-an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for: consideration (right-of-use asset) :

As a lessee N .
At commencement or on modlﬁcatron of a contract that contains a lease component, along with one or more other
lease or non-lease components, the Company accounts for- each lease component separately from the non-lease

" components. The Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its
_ relative stand-alone prrce and the aggregate stand- alone prlce of the non-lease components.
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1 ' Accountmg pollcres (contmued)

Leases (contmued)

The Company recogmses a rrght—of-use asset and a lease lrabxhty at the lease'commencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the comméncement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlymg asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on Wthh itis located, less any
lease incéntives received.

The right-of-use asset issubsetIuently depreciated using the straight-line-method from the commencement date to the
end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the .

* lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case
* the right- -of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same

basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is perlodlcally reduced by impairment’
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability as explained below..

“The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are unpaid at the commencement

date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot bereadily. determmed the Company's -
lncremental borrowmg rate. o o

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease 11ab111ty comprise the followmg

s fixed payments mcludmﬂ in-substance fixed payments.

+  variable lease payments that depend on an lndex or a rate, mmally measured usmg the mdex or rate as.at the .
commencement date. ‘

* amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee

T the exermse price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certam to exercise.
.*  lease payménts in an optlonal renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exerctse an extension optlon
. penaltres for early termmatlon ofa Iease unless the Company is reasonably cértain not to terminate early

" The lease habrhty is measured at amortised cost using the effective, interest method. It is remeasured. when there is a

change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, there is a change in the Company's estimate
of the amount expected to. be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company changes its- assessment of
whether- it will exercrse a purchase, extensmn or termmanon optlon or if. there is a revised in-substance ﬁxed leasei
payment :

When thé lease liability is remeasured in this way, a correspondmg adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the -

© right-of-use asset. To the extent that the right-of-use, asset is reduced to nil, any further adjustment requlred from the(

remeasurement is recorded in profit or loss.
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets -
The Company has.elécted not to recognise nOht—of “use assets and lease liabilities for lease of low-value assets and

short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of less than 12 months). The Company recogmses the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

UK-adopted IFRS not yet applied

"The followmg UK-adopted IFRSs have been 1ssued but have not been applied in these financial statements Their - -
- adoption is not expected to have a'material effect on the financial statements

IFRS-17. Insurance Contracts and amendments to TFRS 17 [nsurance Contracts for mandatory implementation
from January 2023. .

'Amendments to IAS 1 Presentatron of Fmancral Statements Classrﬁcatlon of Llabrlmes as Current or Non-
'current .

Amendments to IAS 37: Onerous.Contracts—Cost of Fulﬁllmg a Conlract
‘Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 3.

Amendments to IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equlpment—Proceeds before Intended Use.
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1 . A Accountmg policies (contmued)
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018- 2020

Améndments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in. Accountmg Estlmates and Errors to introdtice a new
deﬁmtron for accountmg estimates. :

" Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statements 2 Making Matenahty
Judgements Disclosure of Accounting Policies. .

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Lrabrhtres Arlsmg from a Srngle
Transaction.

Accounting estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the ﬁnancral statements requires. management to make Judgements estimates and assumptions that

. affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for revenues
and expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those
estimates. The following judgements has had the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial

" statements: . : '

Defined benefit pension scheme

The cost of defined benefit pension. plans is determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves
. making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to
the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and the long term nature of these plans, such estimates
. are subject to significant uncertainty. In determining the appropriate discount rate; management considers the interest
rates of corporate bonds in the respective currency with at-least A/A rating, with extrapolated maturities corresponding-
to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The underlyrng bonds are further reviewed for quality, and
those having excessive credlt spreads are removed from the population of bonds on which the discount rate is based,
" on the basis that they do not represent high quality bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality
tables. Future salary increases and pension’ increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Further detarls are
. grven in note 15. - :

Revenue-recognition —Input method =

Where performance obligations are satisfied over time, the Comipany uses the mput method to recogmse revenue. This |
method.is based on efforts or. inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to total expected inputs to

- . the satisfaction of that performance obligations. For example resources consumed costs incurred, time elapsed labour

hour expenses or machine hours used
Other operating income - Research and development tax credit

Refer to note 4 for consrderatlon of the accountmg estrmates and Judgements relating to the research and development
" tax credit.

Provisions‘

Refer to note 16 for consideratiOn of the accounting estimates and judgements relating‘ to provisions.

Léases |

None of the underlymg lease contracts had an identifiable mtemal rate of borrowmg (IBR) In these cases, the

Company has applied the HM Treasury- IBR (Incremental Borrowing Rate) of 3. 51% (15 months ended 31 March
'2022 0.95%) for any new contracts entered
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2" . Segmental Analysis °

AWE have assessed its operating segments’ based- on the manner in which it reports and reviews management
Ainformation and performance internally. . - ’ : S

'In the table below, revenue is disaggregated by these operatmg segments

The four segments that form part of the M&O contract are: Mission Dehvery, wh1ch aligns and mtegrates the
programme delivering the AWE coré programmes (Trident, Replacement Warhead (RW), Nuclear Threat Reduction
" (NTR), and Warhead Underpinning Technology (WUT)); Operations, which produces warheads and supports the
underwriting of product performance; Infrastructure Programme Delivery (IPD), which enhances and renews AWE’s
critical infrastructure; and Enabling and Corporate functions, which provide the specialist skills and knowledge to the
programmes and enterprise, including engineering and science functions.

The other operating segments are: Pension, which provides the pension .provisions- for the company, Other
Government Departments (OGDs) which comprises work undertaken for HMG outside of M&O contract; Coulport,
which comprises work undertaken in relation to the ABL alliance contract at the Royal Naval Armament Depot
(RNAD) at Coulport; Other, which is for all other activity principally commercial activity outside of government:

. RDEC (Research & Development Expenditure - Credit- is the income recelved from HMRC ‘'in respect of our -

expenditure on research and development

Year ended .15 months ended
" 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

£'000 £'000_
Mission Delivery o T 227,740 254814
~ Operations - o o 4 o . 227,100 260, 470
Infrastructure Programme Delivery R ' : 713,868 606,119
Enabling and Corporate Functions ‘ o . o 251,390 231,637
Total M&O - : o T 1,420,098 1,353,040
Pension - . ' ’ - Co18,695 .- . 22,700
Other Government Departments (OGDs) - , ' 39,505 52,213
Coulport - : : _ SRR T 14297 16,931
* Other . , | 2416 - 2,328
" Total Non M&O -~ . o e 14913 94172
RDEC o o ’ T (18,405) o @1473) -
Total Revenue : S ' C v ' 1,476,666 - 1,425,739

’
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"3 .Revenue

o Dlsaggregatlon 0f revenue .
In the table below, revenue is disaggregated by the type of customer and timing of revenue recognition. 100% of the -
Company's revenue is derived from UK sources. The Company's Executive does not review the business on a
geographical basis. Therefore, a geographlcal analysis would not be necessary to and users’ understanding of these

Aﬁnanc1a1 statements

Year ended
31 March 2023

15 months ended

31 March 2022

. : £000 £000
Type of customer . o )
MOD - : ' o S 1,446,883 1,409,812
Non-MOD ' ' 29,783 15,927
1,476,666 1,425,739
" Year ended 15 months ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

) £'000 - £'000
Timing of transfer of goods or services o . . .
Products and services transferred at a point in time o 49 ‘ 356
Produ_cts and services transferred over tiAme . 1,476,617 1,425,383
Total - o 1,476,666 1,425,739

(i) Contract balances A
The following table provides mformatlon about receivables, contract assets and contract llabllltles from contracts .
with customers. .

Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

_ . S £'000 £000
"Receivables a2 5,122 68,456
. Contract assets : A ' 107,093 59,400 .
Contract liabilities (16,404)

(23,118) »

' The contract assets prlmarlly relate to the Company’s rights to con51deratlon for work completed but not bllled at
the reporting date on the contract with the MOD. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights
become unconditional. The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration recelved for the contract

- with the MOD.

The amount of revenue recogmsed in the current period from petformance obligations satisfied (or partially
satisfied) in previous periods was £nil (15 months ended 31 March 2022: £nil).

The amount of revenue recognised in the current period that was included in the contract liability balance at the
. beginning of the period was £23,118k (15 months ended 31 March 2022: £2,147k). The amount of deferred revenue
at 31 March 2023 i is circa £4m
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3 Revenue (continued)

. ,(ii_i) h Petfor,hiance Ol)ligarions

'The M&O contract and its dependent contracts with the MOD are treated as a single performance obligation. This .
+ 18 based on the premise that in the absence of the M&O' contract the other contracts would not be in place. A single -
fee rate is used to calculate revenue for all components of the combined contracts. The M&O and its dependents
are accounted for as service contracts and revenue is recognised over time. As all allowable costs under the M&O
contract and its dependents are rermbursable the revenue on these contracts is calculated using the 'cost plus'
method. :

" Other operating income .
: : ~ Year ended

. .15 months ended -
* 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- £'000 £ 000 A
R'esearch,an-d deveiopment tax credit 18,405 21,473

" The other operatmg income balance relates to research and development tax relief recerved from HMRC through.. .
the Research and Development Expendrture Credit (RDEC) scheme .

The- RDEC income for the current penod represents the best estimate of qualrfymg research and. development
expendlture at period-end, which is based on project manager and subject matter expert assessments made at the -
commencement of, and during, the period. Variations to the actual income received could arise as a result of changes .
arising during the completion of a further detailed review of the RDEC assessment in advance of the subm1551on of ~
the claim to HMRC and/or HMRC makm0 adjustments to the claim thereafter

S Expenses and auditor’s remuneration

Included in profit/loss are the following::

Year ended -
"~ 31 Marcll 2023

15 months'ended'_
31 March 2022

£000 - £000

Included in cost of sales: .
Foreign exchange (gam)/loss (except those ansmg on ﬁnanmal instruments - (51 ' 3 40
at FVTPL) ' : T
'Depréciation on right-of-use assets 1,056 1,154
‘Inclu(d'ed in administrativeAeﬁvp_ens}es: _

- Impairment loss.on other trade receivables -

" Included in exceptional items: _

. Write-off of pension asset prevlously recoverable under contract 423,000

184

The wrrte off of £423mrelates to a pension asset that could no longer be recogmsed following the change in ownership
structure with effect from 1 July 2021.- The asset was revalued at the transition date of 30- June 2021 and the full

" amount was written- off to the proﬁt/loss
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5 . Expenses and auditor’s remuneration (continued)

Auditor's remiineration: :
o Year ended

31 March 2023
o £'000

Audit of these financial statements - v o - - 210

Year ended

31 March 2023

. £'000
Amounts recervable by the Company s auditor and its assocrates in respect

“of: o ' ,
" Audit rélated assurance services T ' : - -

31 March 2023

15 months ended

31 March 2022 .

£000

£ 250

15 months ended
31 March 2022
" £000

222.

4’ Followmg the transfer of ownershrp of AWE from AWE ML to MOD on 30 June 2021, the NAO replaced Emnst &

“Young LLP (EY) as statutory audrtors

The amount' charoed for the audrt of the financial statements relates to work performed by NAO. No fees were paid
for audit-related assurance services in the year ended 31 March 2023 (£222k in the 15 months ended 31 March 2022

for EY support with the productron of non statutory transmon accounts as at, 30-June 202 l)

6 Staff numbers and costs

The average number of persons employed by the Company (including executive drrectors) during the year, analysed

by category, was as follows

. Nu_mber of employees

Year ended
31 March 2023

Scrence . : . : S - o - 1,178

15 months ended

31 March 2022

1,143

Engineering and manufacturmg : . . . 2,962 2,358

Busmess servrces . _ o ) ’ 2,324 2,751
' 6,464

6,252

' The Craft job family was allocated to Business Services in the 15 months ended 31 March 2022, but now sits within .
Engineering and manufacturing in the year ended 31 March 2023 — comparitives remain unchanged.
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6 _ Staff number and costs (c;ontirtued)» .

. The aggregate payroll costs of these nersons were as follows:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 .
£'000 £000°
. Wages'and sal'_aries ‘ 353,406 402,551
Social secnrity costs . . 38,370 ’ 4A1,002 ' 4
Expenses related to defined benefit plans 4,000 . 9,000
Net interest on net defined benefit pension plan liability 2,000 ~10,000" - -
Defined benefit plan costs prev10usly recoverable under contract ) _ - - (7,000)
vContrrbutlons to deﬁned contrrbutron plans 3 39,147 45,478
' 436,923 501,031
. 7 . Directors"remuneration .
‘ - o ‘Year ended 15 mionths ended

£000 £000
Directors’ remuneration - ' 1,188" 1,932
Post-retirement beneﬁt costs . 38 15 .
.. Amounts receivable nder long term incentive schemes . - 1,412
Compensation for loss of office ' - 235"
- 1,226 3,594

" Year 'ended

15 months ended .

" 31 March 2023

31 March 2022,

"~ The aggregate of rémuneration and amounts recelvable under long term incentive schemes of the hlghest pald
_ director in the year ended 31 March 2023 was £581k (15 months ended 31 March 7022 £1, 498k)

None of the directors were accruing retrrement beneﬁts in the company defined benefit schemes in, the year ended .

31 March 2023 (15 months ended 31 March 2022: none)
8 _ Finance income and expense

-Recognised in profit or loss-

Year ended
31 March 2023

15 months ended

© 31 March 2022

£'000 . © £000.
"Net (gam)/loss on forward forergn currency contracts. measured at . ("'2) . 4"
FVTPL -
Interest expense on lease. habllmes 21 26
Total finance expense 91)
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9 . Taxation

Recognised in the income statement -

15 months ended
31 March 2023 31-March 2022
' £'000 - ~£'000
Current tax . :
_ Current yéar 3,756 4,490
- Adjustments for prior years (4,490) 471
+ Current tax (credit)/expense - (734) 4,961
Deferred tax - . . hy
Current year ' 4,960 274
", -Adjustment for prior years - -(9,770) -
Deferred tax (credit)/expense » . (4,810) 274
Total tax (credit)/expense (5,543) 5,235
Reconciliation of effective tax réte A
" Year ended 15 months ended

£'000 £000

Loss for the period (1,634) (433,915)
Tax uéing the UK corﬁoration tax rate of 19% (2022: 19%) (51 0) (82,444) .

' Non taxable items - wrlte off of pension asset previously recoverable L '80.370

under contract : ’

Pension scheme contrlbutlons . (380) -

Pehsion scherne tax deduction - 1,140 2,280

Tax arising on imputed fee 8,087 4,527

. Other short term timing differences ~ 180 31

Adjustment in respect of prior years (14,260) ' 471

Total tax (credit)/expense (5,543) 5,235

~ Year ended -

- 31 March 2023

31 March 2022

.- The imputed fee arises as a result of the fee applied for the purposes of assessing the tax liability on certain contracts.
This has béen assessed as higher than the actual fee reported in revenue, and therefore the taxable income or loss is
increased accordingly. The imputed profit rate used in the tax calculation is based on an estimate dlSClOSCd to, but not
yet agreed with HMRC. HMRC have not challenged the position to date.

The current corporation tax rate is 19%, whlch came into effect from 1 Apnl 2017 but wxll increase to 25% from 1

. April 2023 The Company has remeasured its deferred tax asset at the end of the reportmg perlod usmg the higher rate
of 25% fo . o
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10 Investments in subsidiérﬁes

The Company has the following investments in subsidiaries: -

_ _Ownership
‘C:‘l’:r:: 31 March
held 2023
. Room 20, Building F161.2 Atomic oo :
AWE  Pension  Trustees Weapons Establishment, Aldermaston, Ordinary . 100%

'lelte‘d. Reading, England, RG7 4PR

31 March 2023

31-March
2022

100%

" AWE Pension Trustees Limited is ihcorporated, in England and Wales and is a trustee of the AWE Pension Fund.

1m Det:erred"tax assets and liabilities
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities "

A deferred tax asset arises with regards to the Annual Cdmpen_satioh Payment (ACP) provieion and the tax losses
arising in the 15 months ended 31 March 2022. The latter is reported as a prior year adjustment in the current year on .
the basis this posmon was crystallised on the completlon of the final tax return dunng the year ended 31 March 2023

The movement in the deferred tax balance i$ as follows:

Provisions ‘Tax loss . Total

» o ' ~£000 £'000 ~£000
~Balénce at 1 January 2021 . , 625 - 625
,Recogmsed in income statement y S 274) . - (274)

- Balance at 31 March 2022 S _ . 351 - 351
 Balance at 1 April 2022 - : S 351 - ) - 351
‘Adjustment in respect of prior years - ' - 19,770 - - 9,770
Recogm'sed in iricome statement . } - ' ' . (127) . (4,833) (4,960)
Balance at 31 March 2023 . o 224 - 4,937 5,161

T 12 Trade and other receivables ‘ : .
B 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 -

£000 - £'000

Curreht ) o

_Trade receivables due from related parties E 5,120 68,433
Other trade receivables . : 2 - 23
Other receivables o : T 45766 26,027
Prepayments - » _— 25,465 22,323
' ' ) 76,353 116,806
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13 - Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

£'000 - “£'000
Opening balance 74,868 - 6,065
Net change in cash and cash equlvalent balances 48,503 68,803
Closing balance : 123,371 74,368
Analysia of cash and cash equivalents: _ o
Cash held with Government Banking 123,371 71,663
Cash held in commercial bank account . 3,205
' 123371 74,868
14 Trade and other payables ] _ )
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£'000 ~ £'000
Current ‘ :
Trade payables dile to related parties 2,880 1,353
Other trade payables ' 107,100 32,163 -
VAT payable -3,391 © 33,111
Social security cost payable ' 9,694 ) ?,12;7
Non-trade payablesand accrued expenses ' 165,948 150,959
' ‘ 289,013 226,713
Nom-current ‘
Accrued expenses - L S ‘ ‘ - 1,515 2,406

The payables expected to be settled in more than 12 months consist of the accruals. for the’employee bonus.

15 ~Employee benefits

,Pension plans - defined benefit ,

On 31 January 2017, the defined benefit pensron scheme closed to new entrants and future accruals for existing
members, other than the members working at Coulport, following agreement between ‘the Company, the pension
‘scheme trustees and the Government. On 21 July 2022 MOD provided a guarantee in favour of the trustees of the
defined benefit pension scheme (the. “Scheme”), under- which it comnutted to meet any payment due to the trustees
in relation to the Scheme that was not met by AWE when due. S .
The Company continues to make payments in accordance with perrodrc calculatxons as advised by the Scheme'
Actuary. : . : .

The ‘Trustee has a nsk regrster that outlines all risks assocrated with the Scheme The Trustee has a Statement of
Investment Principles that outlines how Scheme assets are invested. .

There have been no plan amendments, curtarlments or settlements in the year ended 31 March 2023 (15-months -
ended 31 March 2022 — none).

" The information disclosed below is in respect of the one deﬁned beneﬁt scheme for which the Company is the
sponsorlng employer.
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15 Employee benefits (cohtinue,d) . '
' . .31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£000 . £000
Defined benefitasset = .~ - .. (1,292,000) 0 (1,995,000) -
Defined benefit liability. *~~ S L 1,530,000 - . . 2,048,000

. Net liability fordeﬁﬁed benefit obligatioﬁs (see following table) 238,000 - . © 53,000

Movement in lnet‘deﬁned benefit liability/asset .
I Net defined benefit

© Defiited benefit. F ir value of plan égsets -
obligation Falpvatie of pran assen liability (asset)
M 3]1] 31 March 31 March - 31 March 31 March’ 31 March
L vare 2022 . 2023 2022 2023 . 2022
2023 ' o - _ -
£000.  £000 £'000 £/000 £000 . £000
Opening balance 2,048,000 - 2,583,000  (1,995,000) (1;939,000) 53,000 644,000 -
" Included in profit or loss S L o C
- Current sérvice cost 4,000 9,000 ° - - 4,000  9,000°
. Interest cost/(iicome) 55,000 - . 41,000  (53,000). - (31,000) 2,000 . 10,000
Included in OCI .
. Remeasurements
loss/(gain): : o ‘ SR D L
Actuarial (gain)/loss .. (512,000) - * (498,000) 693,000 - (40,0000 "~ 181,000  (538,000)
- Other ' _ ‘ ‘ . Ry A
Contributions paid 'by. the N , - (2,000) (72,000) .(2,000) ~ (72,000)
employer . . . . : o . . K
Benefitspaid =~ . (65,000) (87,000). . 65000 87,000 . o .
Closing balance. 1,530,000 2,048,000 ~ (1,292,000) (1,995,000) 238,000 53,000

Contributions paid by the employer in the year ended 31 March 2023 relate entirely to payments in reldtion to the
members working at Coulport (£0.3m) and expenses reimbursed to the pension scheme (£2.0m). In the prior period
the payments were in relation to both to members working at Coulport (£0.3m), the past service deficit (£72.0m of -
‘which £63.0m was funded by the MOD after change in ownership) and expenses reimbursed to the pension scheme
(£2.0rn). There were no past service deficit payments made in the year ended 31 March 2023.
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15 - Employee benefits (continued)

- Plan assets

The farr value of the assets in the scheme at each balance sheet date were:

31 Mareh 31 March 2022

£000 £000

Cash and cash equivalents : P - 50,000 - 165,000
'Equity instruments | S B T 323,000 " 492,000
Debt instruments eg, Govemment bonds . . 402,000 498,000
Realestate j S 96000 111,000
Derivatives . S 102,000 400,000
Investment funds . ) ‘ . 319,000 - 329,000

Total o I o . 1,292,000 1,995,000

All equity securities and government bonds have quoted prices in actlve markets. All government bonds included
_in the debt instruments above are issued by European governments and are AAA— or AA-rated. All other plan assets
" are-not quoted in an active market. o

' Actuarlal assumptlons A . o
The followmg are the pnncrpal actuanal assumptrons at the reporting date (expressed as'weighted averages)
31 March 2023 . 31 March 2022

Discount rate at period end - o : _ 4.7% 2.7%
Rate of increase in pensionable pay ' R o ’ - 2.8% o 32%
Rate of increase in pensions in payments- _ ' S _ r
. Uncapped: . S o o J , | v 28% - - 32% -
Subject to 5%pa cap : : ‘ o S 2% - 31%
Rate of increase in pensions in deferment ) A : v - - o .
Uncapped o - S 28% . 32%
Subject to S%pa cap : - - L 29% ©3.1%

Inflation assumption (CPT) . . T 2.8% o 32%

The assumptlons relatmg to longev1ty underlymg the pension liabilities at the balance sheet date are based on
standard actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future improvements in longevrty The assumptlons
are equlvalent to expecting a 65-year old to llve fora number of years as follows :

o Current pensroner aged 65: male - 22.8 years (2022:-22.7 years) female 24.7 years - (2022 24.6 years)

«  Future retiree upon reachmg 65 (current age 45): male — 24.4 years (2022: 24 3 years) female -26.1 years .
(2022 26.0 years). ..

- ! Balance is net of some repurchase agreements. =
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. Sensrtwrty analysns -
_ The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the assumptrons set out below. The following table
" summarises how the impact on'the defined benefit obhgatlon at the end of the reporting penod would have increased
.(decreased) as a result of a change in the respective assumptions by, -% per cent a year .Opposite changes in the -
assumptrons wrll produce approxrmately equal and opposite changes in the liability. - :

31 March 2023 2022
£000 - £000
,Dlscount rate - - B ' o S . . 122,000 o 213,000

Future pensxon increases I S , : . : '(106,000) (178,000) -

In valuing the liabilities of the pension fund at 31 March 2023, mortality assumptions have been made as indicated
. above. If life expectancy had been changed to-assume that all members of the fund lived for one year-longer, the
value of the- reported liabilities at 31 March 2023 would have mcreased by £450m (15 months ended 31 March.
2022 -£72. Om) . )

The above sensrtrvmes are based on the average duratlon of the benefit obhgatlon determmed at the date of the last,
full actuarial valuation at 31 March 2021 and-are applied to adjust the defined beneﬁt ‘obligation at the end of the .
reporting period for the assumptions concerned. Whilst the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of
cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation to the sensitivity of the assurnptrons shown.

. Funding . . . . .
The contributions due to thé Scheme are set out in the schedule of conmbunons The most recent schedule of '
contributions was signed on 1" August 2022 as part of the actuarial valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2021.
On 21 July 2022 a Crown Guarantee from the Secretary of State for Défence to the Trustee of the'Scheme became
effectrve . -

The Company has not pald any contrrbutrons into the defined beneﬁt plani in the year ended 31 March 2023 as those
'due over this perlod were pard in a tlump sum of £34.4m in March 2022. . - :

"The weighted average duratron of the deﬁned beneﬁt obllgatron at the 31 March 2023 i is 16 years (31, March 2022:
20 years)

Pensnon plans deﬁned contrlbutlon

The Company operates a.defined. contribution pension plan
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16 ~ Provisions. . A
' ACP Contract 4
provision ~ ° provisions " Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
. Balanceat 1 April 2022 . s 1,05 2,870
Provisions raised - C L : - A . 1,657 1,657
Provisions utilised - ) : : . o 95)) : - 951
Provisions released - o o , : - T (2,400) (2,400) -
'Balance at 31 March 2023 . L 894 © 282 1,176
Non_—current . Cel - . 376 - 376
‘Current A o ' - 518 282 800
' . 282 1,176
ACP provision:

The ACP provision reflects the anticipated "payments due to ex- employees who have left the company with a
- redundancy package or settlement agreement. All annual payments are approved at the outset of the agreement and
" are payable until the recipient reaches 60 years of age. The llabrlrty arises substantrally in respect of a collective
redundancy package put-in place 2015. This package is due to complete in December 2025 and covers 25 ex-
employees (31 March 2022: 34). In addmon there is one further arrangement due to complete in January 2024
having started in April 2016 . .

The provision represents the estimated cost to be incurred until the end of the agreements and is reduced monthly
by the:amount paid to recipients :

_ There are two uncertainties within the provision. The annual payment amount per person increases each April in-

line with inflation. This is estimated and included in the provision for future years with a true up reflected in April o '

“once the actual inflation amount is known. In addition, payment and therefore the company’s remaining liability
ceases in respect of a recipient should they die.during the period of the arrangement. -

Contract pfovisions Pain/gain: .

Certain engineering contracts provide a mechanism whereby the benefits of cost savings (contractor gain) or -
burdens of cost overruns (contractor pain) are shared with the contractor when certain thresholds are met. This
results in the recognition of an asset or liability on the Company's balance sheet dependmg on the contract position.

A review of the contract position is triggered when thresholds relating to percentage completion of contract-and
cost to complete are breached. There is a de minimis limit applied at +/- £0.2m on all pain/gain calculations before
" the adjustment will be recogmsed .

At 31 March 2023 there is one contact (31 March 2022: two) in progress where the threshold had been reached,
which is in a loss position with a liability of £0.3m recognised in contract provisions (31 March 2022: £4.7m net
asset, being one contract in a savings position with an asset of £4.9m recognised in other recervables and.one
contract in a loss position with a liability of £0.2m recognised in contract provzszons)

The entire pam/gam provision is expected to be utilised within 12 months.
 Contract provisions - Coulport:.

‘At the close of the prior period at.31 March 2022 contract provisions included £0.8m relating to a savings shortfall
to the Guarantee of Savings (GoS) target within the Coulport contract (15 year contract to 2027). As at 31 March .
2023 there is no contract provision held in relation to this matter. On 19 April 2023 it was agreed that GoS savings
shortfall liability would be removed from the Coulport contract and the accumulated contract provision of £2.4m
has been written back in'the year ended 31 March 2023 as this has been determined as an adjusting post balance
sheet event. .
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17 Capital and reserves

Share-capital

A _ L * Ordinary shares " I . Special shares
On Issue S 31 March 2023~ 31 March 2022 31 March-2023 31 March 2022
At 1 April 2022/1 January 2022 .. 50,001 50,000 . : 1
Transfer of special shares to - : : r o .
n: - 1 D (D
ordinary shares , _ , . ' _ .
© At31 March 2023/31 March 2022 50,001 50,001 - -

. The special share was previously owned by’ HM Govermment which enabled the MOD to assume full ownership

" and control of the Company on early termination of the M&O contract with AWE ML. This option was exercised-
resultmg iri the change in ownership from Lockheed Martin to the MOD on 30 June 2021, effective from 1 July
2021, whrch resulted in the special share being transferred to ordinary share capltal ,

The authOrlsed issued and fully paid up share caprtal of the Company are a$ follows

31March 2023 31 March 2022~
S £

50,001 (2022: 50,001) ordinary shares of £1 each L 000 50,001

The holders of ordinary shares are ent_itled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vqte per share at meetings of the Company. The Company did not issue any ordinary shares during the year.

Di vzdends

The dividends below were pa1d dunng the period, all 'of which were pard prior to 30 June 2021. These d1v1dends
were met out of distributable reserves of the Company available at the time.

Year ended 15 months ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£'000 - - £000
£nil (2022: £353.18) per q'u'aufyrng. ordinary share L : - C 17,659

. The directors have declared no dividends since the change in ownership on 1 July 2021.-

Capitél reserve

S o . 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 _
L : £2000 © £2000
Balance at 1 April : o « ‘ 63,000 ' -
Capital contribution ~~ ~ - = o - - 63,000 °
Balance at 31 March . « . o 63,000 . 63,000
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17 Capltal and reserves (continied)

Smce the change in ownership on 1 July 2021, -AWE received £63m in fundlng from the MOD equal to the amounts :
paid by the Company to the pension scheme in respect of the deﬁcnt fundmg on the scheme.

18 - Financial instruments
Fair values .

Fair value measurements are categorlsed mto a three-level hierarchy, based on the type of inputs to the valuatlon-
techniques used, as follows: .

Level 1: quoted pnces (unadjusted) in active markets for 1denncal assets or liabilities. :

. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or llablllty, elther ’
" directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Level 3: mputs for the. asset or llabxhty that are not based on observable market data (unobservable mputs)

During the financial year ﬁnanc1a1 mstruments remamed in Level 1.

At 31 March 2023 the Company did not have any hablhtles cla551ﬁed at level 2 or 3.

All trade receivables and payables recognised by the Company at the repomno date are measured at their transaction
price-and not fair value as they do not contain a significant financing component. The carrymg amounts of these
" financial instruments have been dlsclosed in Notes 12 and 14 respectively.

The fair value of the derlvatxve ﬂnanc.lal mstruments is dlscus_sed below.

Market risk:
" The Company holds the followmg financial mstruments that are exposed to exchange rate risk:

31 March 2023 : . : Euro Us Dollar Other Total
- o : o S T £000 L T £'000 £'000 £'000
-Cash and cash equivalents - N o 1,008 ' 425 - - 1,433

Trade payables _ R (74 (458) : - O (1,135)

| o 331 @33 . - 298
31 March 2022 ‘ o

Cash and cash equivalents A 1,283 150 - - 2,853

" Trade payables o : T(@25) 669) - .. - (694) .

1,258 901 - 2,159
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T 18 Financial instruments (continued)

Average contractual Notional value . Fair Value

Outstanding contracts. . ;
. ‘ _ _ exchangerate - . r
31 .31 - 31 . 31 "~ 31 - 3
March - March March - -March®  March March
2023 . 2022 . 2023 . 2022 2023 - - 2022
: £'000 - £000  £'000 £'000
Less than 12 months 1.3419 13477 212 208 231 453
1-2years . - - 13997 13419 33 - 212 38 210
. 2-3years - L o ‘ 13997 _ R .34
Purchase USD - ' . . 245 453 269 . 697
Less than 12 months ' - Co - ‘ E 1.1330 - . e 1,4AS6>‘ - ' l,'844g
- 1-2 years S - ' - - - : -
2-3'years . 4 S v T e - - -
Purchase EUR . S CSL 1486 0 - 1,844
-‘Less than 12 months 13089 13038 . (90) . - (89) on - . (86
2 years _ R 1.3089 L - o - - - - (8%)
23years. 7 o oo - . L -
Purchase GBPsell USD .. -~ . ' - (90) (179) 97 (174)
' L o ' ‘ © 155 1,760 172 2,367
Fair value adjustment - - . oS 17 095
Outstanding forward contraets
Current =~ . Non-current N Total :
31 ) P ) 31 - 31 31
March March ©  March . - March March. ‘March !
02023 . 2022 2023 - 2022 2023 2022
£000 . £000.  £'000 . £000  £000  £000 -
Asset . T19 .9 4 S 24 4.
C Liability v T (D) (106) . ) S o9y

Credit risk: . o , ,
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
- to meet its contractual obllgatrons and arises- pr1nc1pally from the Company’s receivables from customers.

The Company's customer base consists almost entirely of UK government departments and other UK governmental
bodies. As a result, the credit risk exposure associated with the Company's trade recewables and contract assets are '

© low given the balances are ultlmately owed by the UK government..

Accordmgly, the probabllrty of - default is consrdered to be very low, and no 1mpa1rment loss allowance has been, o
recognised on trade recenvables or contract assets at the reportmg date. - '
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18 Financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk:

: -AWE plc
Annual repon and financial statements
31 March 2023 -

quu1d1ty risk i is the risk that the Company will not be ab]e to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.-

The liquidity and cash flow risk is also consxdered low as thls is managed by the ﬁmdmg provnded by and available.

from the Company s shareholder, the MOD.

"A maturity analysis for lease llablhtles has been included in Note 19 The entire balance mcluded in trade and other
" payables (with the exception of the employee bonus accrual which is immaterial) is expected to be settled w1thm
12 months, therefore-a maturity analy51s has not been provided for these financial llabllltles o

Thée. Company occupies facilities, utilise motor vehic]es pieces of plant and machinery and IT equipment which are
treated as lease obligations and valued in accordance with IFRS. 16. All contractual future cash-flows are fixed and
have been reflected in the measurement of the lease liabilities below. As at the repomng date the remammg lease
terms of the facilities span between one and seven years. : . .

19 °  Leases
Right-of-use assets

. Net book values

Balance ata'l January 2021

Additions to right-of-use assets -

Depreciation charge for the year

" Balance at 31. March 2022 . °

Balance at 1 April 2022 _
Additions to right-of-use assets
.. Depreciation charge for the year

Balance at 31:M'arch 2023 -

’

Buildings ~ _Motor . Plant& o T g
vehicles machinery  equipment

. -£2000 . £2000 £000 - '£000 £2000.

1,007 434 . 406, LT95 L 1,942

S - 611 93 Lo . 704

. (457) (362) (288) @7 (1,154)

550 683 211 . 48 1,492

) Buildings Motor Plant & T rtal
. vehicles machinery~  equipment

£000 © £'000 £000 £000  £000

550 683 1. 48 1,492

1,199 - - - 1L,199 .

(607) " (334)- (76) (38 (1,056)

349 1357 10 1,635 :

1,141
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Notes to the ﬁnancial statements (c;bn_tinued) :
19 . Leases (continued)

Lease liabilities

£'000. . £000
Maturtty analyszs contractual undzscounted cash ﬂows . ©
Less:than one year ~ - : 545
- One to- ﬁve years ' 968 1,092 .
More than five years 110 43 -.
Total undiscounted cash f_lows ’ ' . 1,623 2,130 o
Lease ltabtlzttes mcluded in the statement of fi nanctal pos:tton r i L
" Non-current : 1,051 614
Current . 542 822
1,593 . 1,436 -
'Amoun‘ts,recogn.ised in profit or loss:
- Interest on lease liabilities 21 26 -
i Amounts recognised in statement of cash ﬂows . R
1,063 1,116

Total cash outflow for leases

© 31 March 2023

31 March 2022

995

No payments were made durmg the year (15 months ended 31 March 2022: ml) relatmg to short-term leases low- :
- value leases or varlable lease payments .

20 Contingencies

A contingent lliability isa pbtential liability that nlay occur depending on the outcome of an uncertain future event;

they do. not meet the criteria for a provision. Unless their likelihood is considered 'to be rémote, the Company - -

- discloses them as contingent liabilities. As at. the balance sheet date the Company does not have any contmgcnt
habllmes . ‘ oL .

Remote continge'n‘t liabilities -

Under IFRS contingent llablhtles ‘that are considéred to be remote are not_disclosed, however, their narrative
.~ disclosure is required by the FReM. Remote contingent liabilities occur where the possibility. of future settlement
©. is very small, As at the balance sheet date the Company does not-have any remote contingent 11ab111t1es

Zi Losses and specxal payments

Managmg Public Money requires the Company to provide a statement showing losses and spe01al payments by
value and by type where they exceed £300 000 in total and those that, md1v1dua11y, exceed £300,000."

- Durmg this period, no losses or spec1al payments were incurred/made that were mdrvrdually or in aggregate in
excess of £300,000 (15 months ended 31 March 2022 £ml) :
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22 Related partles

- During the year ended 31 March 2023 ‘AWE had a srgmﬁcant number of material transactions with the MOD,

. predominantly sales totalling £1,632.5m (9 months post transition period ended 31 March 2022: £978.2m) and
receivables outstanding at-31 March 2023 of £3. 8m (31 March 2022: £67.5m). The amount billed to ‘the MOD each

month represents an individually srgmﬁcant transaction. .

During the_ year ended 31 March 2023 there were transactions with ‘other central govemménf bodies totalling
£18.1m (9 months post transition period ended 31 March 2022: £11.7m) and receivables and payables outstanding
- at year ended 31 March 2023 £1,323k (31 March 2022: £964k) and £416k (31 March 2022: £42k) respectively. -

On 30 June 2021, AWE ML a group of companles owned by Lockheed Martin Corporation Inc (Lockheed),
transferred its ordinary shares in the Company to the MOD. This resulted in AWE becoming an NDPB of the MOD,
with the MOD regarded as.the ultimate controlling party. The table below details the related party transactions that
occurred in the period 1 January 2020 to 30 June 2021 in relation to AWE ML. .
Transactions between the Company’s subsidiary, AWE Pension Trustees Limited, and.other related parties (i.e.,.
other entities that are under the control/srgmﬁcant influence of AWE dlrectors) for the year ended 31 March 2023 .
have been dlsclosed below. . :

" Gross supplies and services purchased 'P:i_yables outstanding
"~ Yearended 15 months ended- " Year ended 15 months ended
31-March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 3 1'March 2022 _
£'000 : C£000 £'000 . £'000 -
Seco N/a 899 U Na - Na
Lockheed Na - 17310  Nia . Na
-Jacobs (JEG Acqursmon Co o L : : '
Ltd) . ; N/a , 16,298 N/a N/a
‘AWEML E : . Na - , Nia ' N/a
AWE Pensions Trustees . . . ‘ : . o
Limited : 2,200 4,839 _ . . 292
Sheffield Forgemasters =~ . _ oo ’ o R )
Engineering Limited (SFEL) . 25,652 © 2,573 . 1,594 E ‘ 125.
Office for Nuclear Regulation 6,647 o 4151 ? 576 L 671
Other related parties " 2,622 812 295
37,121 46,882 2465 1,311

As at 31 March 2(')2'3,.there were no provisions held in relation to bad or doubtful debts in respect of amounts owe<'i
by MOD (31 March 2022: £22k related to a 2017 invoice which has now been written-off).

Other than their remuneration and business-related expenses, none of the board members have undertaken any
material transactions with the Company or its related parties-during the year ended 31 March 2023 (15 months
‘ended 31 March 2022: none), and none have a financial interest in the actlvmes of the Company such as to influence -
_their work with the Company (15 months ended March 2022: none).. .

Transactions with key management personnel

.Compensation w1th key management personnel has been dlsclosed mn Note 7 and thé Dlrectors Remuneratlon
Repor’c .
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23 Other commitments

_AWE has entered into non-cancellable contracts as follows:
) ’ . 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

. : - £000 £000
Not later than one year | T o j 829204 . 23824l
Later than one year but not later than 5 yearsA B : E ‘ 121,288 ‘ 274,179 .
Later than 5 years ‘ B S , 190 - 4,661
Total purchase commrtments (contracted for but not - . o 950.682 ' , 5'17 081
provrded) : ’ S ’

24 Ultimate parent company and parent company of larger group

The ultimate controllmg party is the MOD

E}

~ The largest and smallest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by th¢ MOD,
" Whitehall, London;, SW1A 2HB, United ngdom The consol1dated financial statements of tl‘llS group are available '
on the gov.uk websrte .

.25 ) Events after the reporting period

Except as noted below there have been no events since the 31 March 2023 to the date the-accounts were authorised
for issue which would affect the understanding of these accounts. International Accounting Standards requnre AWE
to disclose the date on which the accounts are authorised for issue. -

On 19 April 2023 it was agreed that GoS savings shortfall liability would be removed from the Coplport contract
and the accumulated contract provision of £2.4m has been written back in the year ended 31 March 2023 as this

has been determined as an adjustmg post balance sheet event. More detarls are provided i in note 16.

. The Board has authorised these accounts to be 1ssued on the date they were certified by the Comptroller and Audltor
~ General.’ ,
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Glossary of Terms and Abbreviations

AASH
ACP
AO
BAT
‘BE,IS-
BNG

" CAL.-
cAsb '
CEO
CFO
DESA
DNE .
DNIC
DREAM
- DSTL
- ECL
ENEL
ESH&Q
_ESS

ETS

Framework Document-

" FReM:
FTE

- FVTPL
GAAP

| GBS

GGC

GHG

HMG

HPC

Annual Assessment of Stockpile Health
Annual:Compensation Payment |

Accounting Officer

Best Available Techmque

Department for Business, Energy, and Industrial Strategy
Biocliver51ty Net Gain

Corporate Assurance and'Legal '

Continuous at sea deterrent -

- Chief .Execut-i-vc Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Defence Equipment Sales Authority

Defence Nuclear Enterprise -

. Defence Nuclear Investment Committee

. Defence Related Envirorimental Assessment Methodology‘

Defence Science and Technology Laboiatory
Expected credit-losses .
Employers Network for Equality & Inclusion

Environment; Safety, Health & Quality

Env,ironmental Sustainability Strategy

’ Emissions Tradmt7 Scheme

The Framework Document is publicly- available at:

. https://www.gov. uk/govemment/publications/awe -plc-framework- document

Government Financial Reporting Manual

Full-time equivalént

Fair value through profit or loss
- Generally accepted account'ing principles

" Government Banking Service

Greéning Government Commitments

Greenhouse Gas -

His Majesty’s Government

- High ,Performance Computing
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IAC o
IBR
ICO .
ICT
IFRS.
R3S
150
LPG
M&O
 MoD
NAO

'NDPB

" NNC

ONR
" OSHA
-PMO
~ PMS
PRS
' RBG
* RDEC
REGO
" RIDDOR
A~'.nsAG’ '
SDS

SECR

SESH&Q

" SET
SID
SoS
© sox
' SQEP
SRO

AWE plc
.Annual report and finiancial statements
31-March 2023

. Investrnent ApproVals Committee

Incremental borrowmg rate

Informat1on Commrssroner S. Ofﬁce

Informatron Commumcatlon Technology

Internatronal F mancral Reportmg Standards

Employment legrslanon

Intematronal Orgamsatron for Standardlsatron :

L1queﬁed petroleum gas

" Management and operations

Ministry of 'l)‘efen.ce

 National Audit Office -

Non-department public body o

Non—Nuclear Components
Office for Nuclear Regulatlon
Occupatronal Safety and Health Admlmstratron

Portfolio Management Office

- Programme Master Schedule
* Periodic Reviews of Safety

~ Responsible Business Group- :

Research and Development Expenditure Credit

) Renewable Energy Guarantees of Orlgin

. ) * . - - - 4 .
Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations

Radiation Science Group

- Sustainable Development Goals

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting
Security, 'Envi'ronment; Safety, Health, and Quality

Science, and technical support

. Senior Independent Director

Secretary of State

Sarbanes Oxley

' Sultably Quahﬁed and Experlenced Personnel

Senior Responsrble Officer

100 -



‘STAR

“STEM

TCED.

"TOR
TU.

ULEV

- AWE plc
Annual report-and financial statements -
31.March 2023

Sustainable Technology Advice and Reporting

Science, technology, engineering, and mathematics

- Task Force on Climate Related F inéncial Disclosures

Terms of Reference . -
’I;rade‘ Union

Ultra-Low Emission V'éhicles
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